ChArleatOn seceionce on onie CCSD BOARD OF TRUSTEES VISIOMN 2(5 16

[z : AGENDA
County SCHOOL DISTRICT August 11, 2014

Business Meeting
75 Calhoun St., Charleston, SC 29401

1.1: Student Transfer Appeals Action
The Board will discuss student transfer appeals received July 22, 2014 — August 4,
2014.

1.2: East Cooper Montessori Charter School Charter Amendment Action
The Board will discuss a charter amendment request for East Cooper Montessori
Charter School.

1.3: Worker’s Compensation Settlement Claim Action
The Board will discuss a worker's compensation settlement claim.
1.4: Legal Update — General Counsel Action/

The Board will receive a /eia/ uidate from General Counsel. Information

1. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE, & PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA Action
V. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS (15 minutes) — Mrs. Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Recognitions
Strategy & Communications
V. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT — Dr. Nancy J. McGinley, Superintendent of Schools
VI. VISITORS, PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
VII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
7.1: A. Open Session Minutes of July 28, 2014 Action
The Board will vote on the open session minutes of July 28, 2014.
7.2: Executive Session Action Items of August 11, 2014 Action
The Board will vote on executive session action items of August 11, 2014.
7.3: A. Financial Minutes of July 28, 2014 Action
The Board will vote on the financial minutes of July 28, 2014.
VIII. CAE UPDATE
I1X. MANAGEMENT REPORT(S)
X. COMMITTEE REPORT(S)

10.1: Audit & Finance Committee — Mr. Todd Garrett

A. Audit & Finance Committee Update Information
The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on
the following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward
to the Board,

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

B. Head Start/Early Head Start Financials Action
The Board will vote on a recommendation to approve the Head Start/Farly Head
Start financial for the period ending, June 30, 2014.

C. Request to Exempt School Choice Study from Competitive Bid Action
The Board will vote on a recommendation to exempt the School Choice Study from
the competitive bid process.




D. 2014-2015 School Resource Officer Memorandums of Agreement
The Board will vote on a recommendation for the 2014-15 School Resource Officer
memorandums of agreement.

Action

E. Shuttered Facility — Archer Campus
The Board will vote on a recommendation to place the Archer Campus in the
shuttered building condition.

Action

F. Seek Approval to Initiate Sale of Property Contiguous to the Fraser
Elementary Site

The Board will vote on a recommendation to not offer the 24 Amherst St. property
for sale and retain it as part of the Fraser Elementary campus.

Action

G. New North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School — Building &
Finishes

The Board will vote on a recommendation to approve the reallocation of project
savings from Wave 1 and 2 projects and authorize staff to award a contract for the
new North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School — Building & Finishes
(Solicitation No 14-CMG-B-003).

Action

H. Recommendation to Remove Honey Bee Observation Hives

The Board will vote on a recommendation to endorse the proposal from staff to
remove existing observation bee hives from all District and District-sponsored
schools.

Action

10.2:

Policy & Personnel Committee — Mr. Tripp Wiles

A. Policy Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on
the following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward
to the Board,

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

Information

B. First Reading - Policy BD - Organization of the School Board
The Board will vote on the first reading of Policy BD — Organization of the School
Board.

Action

10.3:

Strategic Education Committee — Mr. Michael Miller

A. Strategic Education Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on
the following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward
to the Board,;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

Information

XI.

POTENTIAL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

11.1:

Establishing the Core Projects and continuance of the Citizens Oversight
Steering Committee regarding the Phase 1V 2017-2023 Building Program
The Board will vote on a recommendation to approve the attached list of projects
for the 2017-2023 building program.

Action

11.2:

2013-2014 Board Expenditure Report
The annual Board Expenditure Report is provided as information as required by
Board Policy BID — Board Member Compensation and Expenses.

Information

XI1.

NEW BUSINESS




W)
\Q -
~

11y SCHOOL DISTRICT

HEAD START
BOARD AGENDA ITEM
TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014
SUBJECT: Head Start/Early Head Start Financials
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Head Start/Early Head Start financial for the

ending period, June 30, 2014.

The material is submitted for: X Action [ ] Information
X] Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Respectfully submitted:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bbbby F

Superintendent of Schools Chief of Finance & Operations
; J i /f‘\’l,-.—-(—/ [4] 1tem voted on and

Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board

Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on 6 ~ '/ - ,“'“/

=]

D Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy Committee Policy Committee on




Head Start
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
Head Start/Early Head Start Financials

BACKGROUND:

In accordance to the Head Start Performance Standards 642(d)(2)(A), each
Head Start agency shall ensure the sharing of accurate and regular
information for use by the governing body and the policy council, about
program planning, policies, and Head Start agency operations, including - A)
monthly financial statements, including credit card expenditures.

DISCUSSION:

The following Head Start and Early Head Start Financials are presented to
the board for review (June 2014). The Head Start/Early Head Start financials
are presented to the Board for approval on a monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve Head Start/Early Head Start financial for the period, June 1, 2014
to June 30, 2014.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

DATA SOURCES:
Financial data from MUNIS and credit card expenditure report from
Procurement.

PREPARED BY:
Ruth Taylor, Assistant Associate Superintendent

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A



%L ZT'0ST'ot $ 00°925‘8259 $ 1VLOL ANVYD

- S TELYTYSS S Y3IH10 V101
%0 EV'6L9°S S LYV'OLOTET S SIVIY3LVYIA/S3NddNS TVLOL
%0 0L°81T6 S 8970EOF S S3DIAYIS 3ISYHIUNd TV1OL
%0 v6°6/6°L S T8TISETOT S SLI4IN39 V1OL
%0 SO'TLE'ET S TIE6E6LIY S SAYVIVS TVLOL

STANLIANAIXE (T¥8 ANNA) TAVIS AVIH ASDD

P10C ANANC dOTYdd HHL 304



%l

%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%L1
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%1
%0
%0
%E

R T S ¥ S T RV SR Vo S V0V Vi VA A IV TV VA T4 I T B 0 R T RV R VA A L)

ZT°0ST9% S 00°97582s‘9 S |elol puein
- S €07IS6¥6 ) SINNOJJV IAIM-T00HIS 666
- $ TSS002L S AYVLIN3INIT3 NOSH3II¥d HLIA3 06
- S 06°97L6VT S AYVLIN3INITI NOIZ LIN 906
. S TL97S89 S AYVININTTI STHONH JINNIN TT8
- S 000296 S AYVLN3INTI3I NOLONITI3 83 018
0Z' 70T S OT°/IP'8 S S3DIAY¥3S NVINNH ALNNOD SHD Z44
00°Z6¢€ S L6T90%9S S Il SYIAW SVYINOHL 25/
- S IY61SS8 S AYVLININITI TIIHOLIN NVITNr ZTL
87" T8T S 99°886°/LTV S 1¥V1S avaH VM SS9
- S E€€/LLE'STT S AYVLINIAITTI 33LNVS-SIIAVT LS 705
- S YTI6LTTS S TO0HIS A¥VINIYd XYVd ONVIAIWN 92
- S T¥'/08°09T S AYVLIN3INITI NVHODHO0D DV STP
g S Tysvveee S AYVLN3IT3 NOLSNNQ 4 VAIILYIN TZ¥
85719 S 6£GSTT0E S AYVIN3INITI NIMAOOD 9 M TZH
- S PYE00EVTT S AYVLN3INII3 NOSAY1 ST
= S S9°878/YT S AYVLIN3INITI SNYNG V3 €TV
4 S vSTI6TYT S AYVLN3INTT3 VHODIHD ZTY
SYL0L'T $ 99°GE8YTIT S ¥1D ININJOTIAIA ATINVE B QTIHD TTV
g S 65196°SL S AYV.LNIINTT3 ANVISI STNVT OTE
= S 90'6Z6°0TC S AYVININITI INIVSYT-AVHYNIN 60€
T70S8 1Y S L0°£0LTS9T S TO0HISIYd/SHI/LYVLISAVIH TST
Y107 ANAC dOIYAd HHL 404

NOILVOOT Ad NAAOAIVHAL SHANLIANAIXH

(I¥8 ANNA) LAVIS AVAH dsSdD



%T ZT°0SToF $ 00'925‘8259 $ [el01 pueas

%0 » S T6LYPTYSS S $123rd0 ¥3HLO 069
%00T L9°T6E S L9T6E S aANIMOSYD ZLt
%00T 08°8%S $ 08'8ps S IOVISOd ZTt
%Y 96'8ELY S OO0O0fTOST S S3I1ddNS 01t
%0 - $ 000000 S SIDINY3IS G3ISYHIUN YIHLO 66€
%ETT 90"8€€ $ 00°00€ S ONIANIg ANV ONILNI¥d 09€
%00T €8'6LEL $ €86LEL S 13AVYL 31VIS 40 1NO 8E€
%00T €9'6/S S €9°6.LS S TIAVYL LVIS NI ZEE
%0 - S 0ovrveL's S JONVYNSNI ALY3IdOYd vZE
%00T Z0°09% S TO09% S S3LNLILSENS IDYNOSLNO ZZE
%07 9T'19¢€ S 0888LT S JOVMIS/HYILYM SAS 11LN JI1aNd TZE
%0 0891 $ s67o9'te  $ SANN4 ¥H1O 9INI3Y - dINCD ,SWIM 042
%0 7907 S IE6LTY S XV1 NOILVSNIdINOD INJIWAOTJININN 092
%T L PSLT S SPZZOSTE S ALI¥ND3S TVIDOS 0€Z
%I 75'9/9°¢ S SOvve'sss S INJNTFHILIY FTAOTdING 022
%0 9T’ €9£C $ 90°€9/TT9 S SNI 3411 ANV HLTV3IH dNOYD 0T2Z
%0 8T°LSTT S VYTIEP'ESST S AYVIVS TVDIYI1D/1SY ¥IHOVIL STT
%0 - $ 807/96TZ S AHYTVS TYDINHIAL #TT
%8 8%'GET’6 S 8SYPIETIT S AYVIVS Y3HLO TYNOISSId0¥d £TIT
%0 - $ 09918979 ¢ AYVIVS @3 TYNOISSII0¥d/Y¥IHOVEL ZIT
%T 6€6.0CT S T9E98sY8 S AYVTVS FALLVHISININGY OTT

P10C ANAC dOINMAd HHL 404

LOArd0 A9 NAO@IVIYG STINLIANAdIXH
(I¥8 ANNA) LIVLIS AVIH dSDD



%L 9T'ZEECT S 00°T90°8VLT S |elol puein
%0 - S TOTIP8'SIE S YIHIO TVLIOL
%00T £€5°05S S €50SS S S311ddNS 1¥10oL
%6E 08°SET’S S 09TEO'ET ) S3DIAY¥IS QISVYHIYNG TVLOL
%0 8T TE9T S SQOEITV6E S SLI43IN38 TVIOL
%0 GS€T0S S 08%Z59Z0°T S S3IYVIVS TV.LOL
PI0Z ANNC dOIdAd HHL H0A
STANLIANAIXH

(Z¥rs ANNA) LAVLS AVAH ATIVA dSDD



%1 9T"ZEECT $ 00°T908PLT $ |[ejol pueiy

%0 - S TOT¥8EIE S S173r90 ¥3H1O0 069
%00T 0T LET S 0T/LET ) IOVLSOd ZT¥
%00T EEETY S ECEIV S S3I1ddNS 0T¥
%0 - $ 00°000°S S SIDIAY3S ISVHIUNJ ¥IHLO 66€
%00T 767781 S w6 V8T S TIAVYEL 31V1S 40 1NO 8EE
%00T 61°88C S 61°88C S TIAVHL LVLS NI 2EE
%00T L9700 S [97700°¢ S $31NLILSENS 3DYNOSLNO ZZE
%0 - S 09'87r'C S JONVYNSNI ALYIdO¥d vZE
%0 - S 0TLvv S IOVYMIS/YILVYM SAS TILN DIMand TZE
%0 76'€E S [E€08L ) SANNd YH1O FINITY - dINOD ,SEIM 042
%0 €Ty S S0'Z00T S XYL NOILYSN3IdINOD INJWAOTJININN 092
%0 65°0LE S vETVLOL S ALI¥ND3S TVIDO0S 0€Z
%0 TIT'8LL $ T8'69TTIT S IN3INIYILIY FTA0THING 022
%0 V' Shy S 8YS6ELPT S SNI 3417 ANV HLTV3H dNOYD 012
%0 LETTS S 79675958 S AYVIVS TVII¥I12/1SV ¥3IHOVIL STT
%0 - S ST0LZST S AYVIVS TVIINHOAL #TT
%9 88'€87'C S OTvIT'6E ) AYVIVS ¥3HLO TYNOISSII0¥d €TT
% 0£°802°C S €8°019'STT S AYVIVS JALLVYISININGY OTT

P10 ANNL AONMHAd AH.L 404

LOACdO Ad NAOMIVIYG TN LIANAIXH
(Z¥8 ANAD LAVIS AVIH ATIVE dSDD



%T v8'8TLSEL'T $§ 9TZTEETT S 00 T90‘SKLT S jelol pueio
%0 ¥ELTS'6TE S V€ LTS'6TE S SINNOJ2V IAIM-TO0OHDIS 6660
%1 €T'686'CET $ 8¥'955'T S T19°ShS'GET S SIDIAYIS NVINNH ALNNOD SHD  £4£0
%0 6S°GEE'STT S = S 65°SE6'STT S [ SHIAN SYINOHL  ZSZ0
%0 6ETZEPYT S 66706 S BEIIVtYT S 1YVIS AVIH YM SS90
%0 LT TV LLT S = S LTTTVLLT S AYYLNINTII FILINVS-SINVI LS  #0S0
%0 87 TS8EET S BOYVII S LT996°€ET S HOIHTIVLIS 84 $SH0
%0 SS'86T'9YT S . S GS'86T'9YT S TOOHDS AHVYINIYd MYVYd ANYIQIN 9270
%L R6°6/1'69T S 09/191 S 8S/60°TLT S 1D INJINAOTIAIA ATINYL 8 ATIHD  TTI¥0
%E TZ'€00'S62C S 0v'7se’s S T19°556°€0¢E S TOOHDS3IYd/SHI/L¥VISAVIH TSTO
aiasn 13sang SIYNLIANILX3 INNT 13sand SNOILYDO1

JOVIN3IOH3d FIaVIIVAY

$10T ANAL AOTIAd HFHL 04
NOLLVDOOT A9 NAAO@IVIIA
STINLIANAIXA
(Z¥b8 ANNA) TIAVIS AVAH ATIVE dSDD



GG'L100 62-S0-¥L0Z ¥ o | A3V NILSNY

86282 000 S6°282 9sBY2IN - BSEL# LEYVYIN-TYM ¥102/5L/S0 #102/9L/50
62'¢ 62¢C 000 Xe} 7L02/SL/S0 102/9L/S0
¥6'9¢2 000 ¥6°9¢ 3SBYINd - 6SEL# YILNIOHIANS WM ¥102/SL/S0 #102/9L/S0
[era=1% T 000 XEl ¥1L02/¥L/S0 #L0OZ/ISLISO
€661 000 €466l 8SBYDINd - BYEZH U3 LNIDH3IANS WM ¥L0Z/v /S0 ¥L0g/sL/so
8zZov 82 0% 000 XVL rL0Z/EL/S0 vLOgIFLIS0
€9°1L09 000 29°L09 ISBYIINd - LGLSHE AY=Z004D 01718 v102/EL/S0 vL02/vLISO
G9'8€ 698 000 Xv.L L0Z/EL/SO L02/7L/IS0
98°L9¥ 00°0 98'L9% 9SBUdInd - 60¥GH# AHZ00HD 0179 102/€L/S0 PL0Z/¥LIS0
AR} 25’8 000 xXel 102/CL/S0 ¥102/€L/S0
6998t 000 69°99% BSBYINd - Syl L XINgNd ¥102/2L/S0 L0Z/EL/50
€8¢ £5°E 000 XE} ¥L02/ZL/S0 rLog/el/co
LSTEL 00°0 FANANN 9SBUDING - 6SE L# WIINIDHEILNS WM v1L02/2LIS0 rLOg/eL/s0
69°L 69°L 00’0 xe} ¥1L02/2LIS0 ¥L02/EL/S0
S0°S0E 000 co'soe aseyaind - 6GE L# W3 INIDEILNS M ¥LOZ/ZLIS0 PLOg/IEL/IS0
=t 4 =t 4 000 Xe] ¥102/20/S0 #102/S0/S0
B66'6% 00°0 66'6% aseyolnd - Ze8SLL00 SANIVLS 102/20/50 ?L02/80/S0

L1LINNITD 'SHIMOr

L¥'616'C 19712 09°LSB'Z 0l 3unod

GL'698'L 000 S.'698'L 8SBYlINd - ABVEHS3HL 184 1L02/PL/S0 71L02/5L/50
29'ed 29'ed 000 xel ¥102/52/%0 ¥102/82/%0
£6°LLE 000 £6'LLC 3asey2ind - INI SNOILD3INNOD 321440 ¥L02/52/v0 102/82/%0
oLl 000 veiL 3SBYIINd - INVHNVLSIY SHIHLOW 7102/€2/¥0 v1L02/82/%0
£6°¢cl 000 €6°CL 3SeY2Ind - O M3N - T3AVEL ONA ¥1L02/S2/%0 ¥102/8¢/¥0
1691 000 1694 9seYaIng - 82 SONVSYHIA ¥L02/52/%0 ¥102/82/%0
6¥'099 000 6%'099 aseydind - ANODO NNI NIQHVO NOLIH ¥102/S2/70 ¥10¢/8¢2/%0
SZ'y sy 000 xe} ¥1L02/ST/¥0 ¥102/82/%0
SL°0L 00°0 SL0L 2SBYIING - LOOLOEVBLNI NOLSITHVHD ¥1L02/S2/¥0 v102/82/¥0
00'se 000 00°se aselUdINd - 6L9.LLL6EZ8S00 HIV VL13A ¥1.02/SZ/%0 1L02/8c/¥0

1V "TIH
puads pieq [ej0]  Xel Wwey @014 way| uondusseg way  @ieg 9seyaind a3k 350d

SWeEN [Ind HO

JuaWAEY

10 8SBYDING J0 HGR( ISIN JO Jpais) OSIA JO S8OUBADE YSED 40 3uQ adA ] uonoesues]
§6:L1:00 62-S0-FL0Z 8wi] podey
AZOWY ‘NILSNY Jeumg Hoday

65°6G'€2 LZ-60-¥L0Z PUE 00:00:00 9Z-¥0-¥L0Z UIIM2G 2jeQ IS0d
3ong aunsuyDd (HOTAVL s,40]Ae] ypny 1oy puads pies 4
HLNY) € NOILYONAS AOOHATIHO ATYYS LSLO JO UOSPIBLOI BULY
(MOTAVL HLNY) NOILYONAS QOOHATIHO ATHYS 1510 J0 2uQ di

1S10 TOOHIS ALNNOD NOLSITHYHD aweN Auedwo)



€G:21:00 62-S0-¥LOZ

¥ o 2

AZOWY NILSNY

$5ee 000 YGEe aseyaind - AO9D'0S 10¢/90/50 ¥102/80/50
S8'89%'C 000 cg'e9%'z 2seyINd - NYV3T ATdV3 NY 1dvH 7102/50/S0 ¥102/30/50
Ze e 000 AR A 8sBldINd - STTVS DAIVYN #102/E0/S0 102/50/S0
607 60°% 000 xe} #102/20/S0 ¥102/50/S0
90'8¥ 000 Q0°ey aseydind - 3DV 14 EN 3TSONRSINGVE #102/20/50 ¥102/S0/S0
ev's e¥'s 000 XE} 7102/20/50 #102/50/50
18'€9 o000 18°E9 8SBUDING - IV 1dIMEN ITIONBSINGVE ¥102/20/s0 ¥102/S0/S0
8v'e 8¥'E 000 XE} 7102/20/50 ¥102/S0/S0
68°0F% 000 68°0F 9sBYINd - AOD ITSONESENEYE 7102/20/50 ¥#102/50/S0
€0°LS€ 00°0 £0°48€ aseyaInd - 0/4 LH0S3Y 8N NOLYH3HS #102/€0/50 ¥102/S0/S0
818 818 000 xXe}p #102/€0/S0 10¢/S0/S0
00'8LE 000 00'8LE 3SBY2ING - 0/4 LH0S3H 8N NOLYHIHS #102/€0/S0 #102/50/S0
€0'vL g0'¥L 000 xel ¥102/20/50 ¥102/S0/S0
60'GSL 000 60691 aseudind - LO0000LSTE9ELLLLSTHVLS ¥L02/20/50 #102Z/50/c0
vTe vee 00°0 Xe} ¥102/20/50 #102/20/S0
818 000 aL'ge 98BYdINg - Z00000.LS¥89ELL LLSTdVLS ¥102/20/50 ¥102/S0/S0
S6'6 00°0 S6'6 25BYAING - NOILYN IOI0OA 7102/20/S0 ¥1L02/s0/S0
gLG gL's 00’0 XE)} 102/20/S0 #102/20/S0
0609 00’0 06°09 aseydind - 30V 1dIMEN FT80ONBS3INEVYE ¥102/20/50 ¥102/50/50
elsReTAR 000 99'szlL 8seuUdind - T13L0OH NOLYH3HS 71L02/L0/S0 ¥102/S0/S0
oLv oLy 000 XEe} #102/20/S0 102/20/S0
Lg'8t 000 (34 aseydINd - WOOD ITEONESENAVYE #1L02/20/S0 ¥1L02/20/S0
8F 8y 000 XE} #102/10/50 ¥1L02/20/50
2L'9% 000 2L oG 3aseydInd - 3DV IdIMHN I1SONRSINYVYE #102/1L0/S0 ¥102/20/S0
96°L2 00’0 96°.2 3seyaind - SONIELS NYIHOVIVdAIY #102/10/S0 ¥102/20/S0
00001 000 00°00L Fseyaind - 277 ONINIVEL INOLSHOVIL ¥L0Z/0E/¥0 ¥102/20/S0
92961 00’0 92961 aseyaind - AO9'0S 7102/62/%0 #102/L0/S0
0E°0L 000 0€°0L 9SBUING - OHdOLL3INTVd TVdAVYd #1L02/62/¥0 PLOZ/OE0
VNNY ‘NOSAYVHIIY
89°'LL 29's 9099 Z Junod
29's 29's 000 Xe} v102/S1/S0 vLOZ/gL/IS0
90799 000 9099 aseyaind - L00000LE20S08LLLSTIdVLS 71L02/5L/S0 #1L02/91/s0
YNZA 'OOMOYIN
00°18L'2 90 veEL ¥6°929'2 0Z -unoa
0g'L 0gL 000 xe} ¥10¢/91L/50 L02/6L/S0
er'ell 000 gv'ell eSBYIINd - ZL7# X1M8nd #102/9L/50 v102/61L/S0
09 or'9 000 xe} ¥1L02/51/50 v102/91/50
puadg pieg [ejol  Xel wey| 8214 Way uonduoseq wey|  2jeQ 8seyaind aje(q 1504

swen lind HO



GG:L1-00 62-50¥L0C

¥ o €

AJOVH NILSNV

101 LL0L 0070 xe} #L0Z/80/S0 #102/60/50
99'6LL 000 99'6LL 85BYING - S5900# SIMOT +1.02/80/50 #102/60/S0
62 B'Z 000 X} ¥102/50/50 #10Z/90/S0
ZE62 000 ZEBE @seyaind - S5800# SIMOT ¥102/50/50 #10Z/90/S0
8z'98 8z'o8 000 xe} ¥102/20/50 #10Z/50/S0
00°GLO"L 000 00°SLOL aseyaind - [43LYIN ONIATING YNITOXEYD 7102/20/50 ¥1L02Z/S0/S0
S90FL S9°0%) 000 asBY2INd - £Z# INI NOSNOHI4 +10Z/08/+0 #10Z/L0/S0
€LPEo'L 000 L6l aseyaind - £Z# LIN3 NOSNOY3d ¥10Z/0E/70 £102/1L0/50
LS'BE LG'6E 000 asBYINd - ONI $3TVS 3NIGTY ¥L0Z/0E/¥0 ¥102/L0/S0
05°59% 00°0 05°69% aseyaind - ONI S31vS INILTY #L0Z/08/70 #102/L0/50
06°LL 06'LL 000 xe} #1L02162/%0 10210170
00°0%L 000 00°0% aseyoind - NYWaYvOd ANV Y002 #L0Z/6Z/%0 ¥L0Z/0S/70
1N38719 ‘AD90NIS
vE'eZs 8e'vL 96°80% $ junes
00's2¢ 000 00'sze asBeUINg - 1H¥V1SAVYIH Al NOIDIY #L0Z/9L/50 ¥102/6L/50
60°EL 60°EL 000 X2} #L0Z/90/50 #102/1L0/S0
00°+S) 000 00'+S5L BSBYING - 8¥EZH LUVINFTYM £102/90/50 ¥102/20/50
62'L 62°L 000 xe} #10Z/90/50 ¥102/L0/S0
96'62 000 96'62 aseyaind - BPEZ# WILNIDHILNS WM #10Z/90/G0 #10Z/20/50
SIAV ‘M00Y
£1°55€'S 96'%L 12°082'S ¥ unoo
Lz's 00'0 A 9SBUIING = NHVIT ATV NV 1dvH 7102/02/S0 ¥102/22/S0
vE'LY 000 ve'L9 8sBUINd - NYVYIT ATHVI NV 1dvM ¥L0Z/0Z/S0 ¥102/22/50
ELEL 000 EL'EL 3sVYHOHENd #LOZ/LLISO #10Z/02Z/50
vl Ll 000 xe) #L0Z/LL/50 ¥L0Z/02/50
L8SEL 00°0 1G°GEL aseyaing - Z0000099E8S L8 L LLSTdVLS 7L0Z/LL/SO ¥10Z/02/50
61°90% 000 61°90% 25BUDING - NYVST ATEVYI NV 1M ¥LOZIYLIS0 #10Z/9L/50
092C 092 000 XV.L #L02Z/SL/S0 #102/9L/S0
8E0LL 000 ge 0Ll @seyaind - 8¥rS# AM3ID0YD 0T+g #L0Z/SL/S0 ¥10Z/3L/50
£e’L €8 000 X2 ¥10Z/EL/S0 $L0ZITLISO
8026 000 9026 aseyaIng - Z000000995S8LLLLSTAVLS 7LOZIELIS0 #L0T/7L/S0
Lz Lz 000 xe} #L0Z/EL/S0 #L0ZI%LIS0
o¥'8re 000 0v'8¥2 eseydInd - L000000S9SS8LLLLS VLS ¥LOZ/EL/S0 #10Z/7L/50
(sg'gL) (sggl) 000 X2} #1L02/L0/50 #10Z/60/50
(Lg'gal) 00°0 (Lg-o0l) HpaI1D - T3LOH NOLYY3HS #102/20/50 ¥102/60/50
(zo'ge) (zo'sg) 000 xe} #102/L0/50 ¥102/60/50
(L¥'512) 000 (1¥512) HpaID - T3LOH NOLVEIHS #102/L0/50 ¥102/60/50
B:mﬂw pied [ejol Xe| way| a3ld Waj] :O_“_.n__._umwn_ wej| ajeq eseyling 8jeq isod

sweN jind HO



€G1L100 62-50-7LOT

¥ 0 ¥

AZOVH NILSNV

60'¥SL'SL 61°G.G 06'8LL'GL SOl unoo Hodes
18°290'% 0e'8le 1SvPL'e ¥Z Junoo
880 880 000 xe} 7L02/£2/50 ¥102/92/50

0g0L 000 0e 0L asBUING - 659004 SIMOT 7102/€2/50 710Z/92/S0

S9vZ So've 000 xel ¥10Z/22/S0 ¥10Z/EZIS0
00°062 000 00°062 aseUDINd - NYWNQYVOS ANV 002D ¥102/22/S0 #1L0Z/E2/S0

042 0.2 000 xe} ¥102/ZL/S0 #10Z/EL/S0

8L°1E 000 81LE 3SBUDING - S5900% SIMOT 71L02/2L/50 71L0Z/EL/S0

L0 120 000 xe} ¥102/60/50 ¥L0Z/ZLISO

ve'g 000 ve'8 8sBYDING - /6F00% SIMO 7102/60/S0 ¥L0Z/ZLISO

Sl S¥L 000 xe] ¥10Z/60/S0 ¥1L0Z/Z1/50

LL'2L 000 Lzl aseYINd - €011 L0430 IWOH THL ¥102/60/50 vL0Z/2L/S0

(51¢) (s1¢) 000 ypa4Q - 69004 SIMOT 7102/60/50 ¥LOZ/ZL/S0
(L128) 000 (2128) WpAID - 59004 SIMOT 7102/60/50 71L0Z/ZL/S0
n._._Un_w pied [BjoL Xe|] wej| 2oud we}j :O_un_uommﬂ wej 2je aseyaing 2jeq iscd

aweN [Ind HO



1Nty SCHOOL DISTRICT
75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Contracts and Procurement Services
BOARD AGENDA ITEM
TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: Request to Exempt School Choice Study from the Competitive
Bid Process

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston
County School District Board of Trustees exempt the School Choice Study
from the competitive bid process.

The material is submitted for: X Action [_] Information
Xl Open  [] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bobby
Superintendent of Schools Chief of Finance & Operations
N/A
William Lewis, Chief Operating Officer

':?JL/ P /\:’c“fn{ﬂp i ' Item voted on and
Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on _ D - ”;/

|:| Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy & Personnel Committee Policy Committee on




Contracts and Procurement Services
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
Request to Exempt School Choice Study from the Competitive Bid Process

BACKGROUND:

Charleston County School District through school enrollment and census
data has identified a disconcerting trend, whereas a growing number of
school-aged children who live within Charleston County are not attending the
CCSD schools within their neighborhood. This issue appears county wide
however, there are particular areas within CCSD where the issue has
become more problematic with greater than 30% of the children choosing to
enroll outside the neighborhood.

DISCUSSION:

To learn more about this trend, CCSD would like to conduct a district-wide
School Choice Study, targeting families across the county. The goal of the
study would be to confirm their enrollment and census and determine what
types of schools children are attending, but more importantly, understand
the rationale for parents choosing to send their kids to schools outside their
neighborhood.

Instead of solely focusing on where this issue is more prevalent, CCSD would
like to reach out to a broader audience of families across CCSD, including:

Parents of students currently enrolled in CCSD schools

e Parents with student living within Charleston County who don't
currently attend school they are zone for, but attend a private,
parochial or other type of school

e Parents of school-aged children who don’t currently attend school

The most challenging aspect of this program will be the research
methodology, as there is no single mechanism to effectively reach all
members of the target audience. Without a list of families with children
enrolled at non-CCSD school or not enrolled in school all together, we will
use a two-pronged research approach:

1. Online survey - we will create an online survey to gather perceptions
of CCSD schools.

2. Focus Groups - Develop insight into the rationale behind a parent
decision to send children outside of CCSD schools, we would conduct
two, in-depth focus group sessions.

Currently, under the CCSD’s Procurement Code the acquisition of services of
a confidential/sensitive nature that would cause injury to students, staff



and/or CCSD if procured through public solicitation is exempt from the bid
process by the Superintendent. The acquisition of this service through a
public solicitation may not cause injury to CCSD. However, a negative
impact on the conducting and results of School Choice Study is highly
possible. Releasing this information in the public domain prior to the
development of the survey and the focus groups could affect CCSD’s ability
to communicate with parents and receive accurate data.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board
of Trustees exempt the School Choice Study from the competitive bid
process.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
Office of Strategy and Communications/$18,500

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

DATA SOURCES:
Erica Taylor, Executive Director, Office of Strategy and Communications
Wayne Wilcher, Director of Contracts and Procurement

PREPARED BY:
Wayne Wilcher, Director of Contracts and Procurement

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
Wayne Wilcher, Director of Contracts and Procurement



'SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Risk, Safety and Environmental Management
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014
SUBJECT: 2014-2015 Schoal Resource Officer MOAs
RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Board of Trustees
approve the agreements with the Charleston County Sheriff’s Office, City of Charleston,
City of North Charleston, and Town of Mount Pleasant for the School Resource Officer

Program for the 2014-2015 school year.

The material is submitted for: { Action [ ] Information
Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

X X
{/ /Lc v/gf{;
Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bobby
Superintendent of Schools Chief Financial & Operations Officer
M/p /:jc“ g m Item voted on and
Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board |,
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on &~ ~/ t/f

|:| Item voted on and
Trip Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy Committee Policy Committee on




Risk, Safety and Environmental Management
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
2014-2015 School Resource Officer MOAs

BACKGROUND:
For approximately the past fifteen (15) years, the Charleston County School
District has had an agreement with four (4) law enforcement agencies to
provide School Resource Officers (SROs) to Middle and High Schools within
their jurisdiction.

For the four (4) law enforcement agencies in this action item, there are 40
SROs and a specialized team serving schools within the City of Charleston
with 19 Officers. The approximated total cost of this program is $4.5 million,
($55,000 average salary per officer for 10 months, plus benefits and
equipment for 40 SROs, 19 School Specialized Officers and 5 Supervisors.

DISCUSSION:

School Resource Officers are critical members of our team for maintaining a
safe and secure school environment. Following the tragic Newtown, CT
incident the Charleston County School District along with our Public Safety
Partners took a critical view of what assets we had in place and how we
make improvements. Each Public Safety Agency came up with a different
plan on how to deal with Elementary Schools in their jurisdiction. The City of
North Charleston’s plan is to have an SRO at each school within their
jurisdiction. The Town of Mount Pleasant has added an addition SRO with
supervisory authority to work with all of the Elementary Schools within their
jurisdiction. The City of Charleston added a team of 19 Officers to work with
our Elementary Schools and all of the private schools within their
jurisdiction. There were no changes at the Sheriff’'s Office. All of these
changes and additions were funded by the Public Safety Agencies.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
agreements with the Charleston County Sheriff’s Office, City of Charleston,
City of North Charleston, and Town of Mount Pleasant for the School
Resource Officer Program for the 2014-2015 school year.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
$681,000 available in the 2015-2015 GOF budget, Security and Emergency

Management.



FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
To continue this program the cost of these agreements will have to be
factored into the annual budgets.

DATA SOURCES:
William “Jeff” Scott, Director, Security and Emergency Management

PREPARED BY:
William “Jeff” Scott, Director, Security and Emergency Management

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

The Charleston County School District
And
The Charleston County Sheriff’s Office
For
The School Resource Officer Program, 2014-2015 School Year

|. Rights and Duties of the Sheriff

The Charleston County Sheriff’s Office (hereinafter referred to as CCSO) shall provide
School Resource Officers (hereinafter referred to as “SR0O”) as follows for the 2014-
2015 School year, beginning on August 11, 2014 and ending on June 4, 2015:

A. Number and funding of SROs:

1. CCSO shall assign one regularly employed deputy
to each of the following schools.

(1 SRO provided) Lincoln High School (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Baptist Hill High School (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Clarke Academy (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Fort Johnson Middle School (1 funded by CCSO)

The CCSD shall fund three (3) Deputies at the rate of $34,500 per
Deputy.

2. The CCSO shall assign a full-time supervisor during the

regular school year to oversee the Deputies assigned above

and to perform scheduled or non-scheduled visits to the middle and
high schools.

3. At the discretion of the Sheriff and the Superintendent of the
Charleston County School District, SROs may be assigned to such duties
at the elementary school level to ensure full coverage of the Charleston
County School District schools located in the jurisdiction of the
Charleston County Sheriff’s Office.

4. The CCSO shall provide a monthly report of calls for service
and criminal incidents to the Superintendent. The report shall include
trend data with a narrative explanation.



B. Regular Duty Hours of SROs:

1. Each school listed above shall have an SRO assigned on a full-time
basis during the regular school year of eight (8) hours a day. (Note: An
SRO may be called upon to leave the assigned school when he or she is
needed at another school for a call for service to handle a criminal
incident.). The Supervisor may temporarily reassign any SRO during
school holidays and vacations during the school year or during the period
of law enforcement emergencies. Availability of an SRO during the
summer months are at the discretion of the CCSO.

2. The SRO assigned to the above schools will be permitted to travel to
off-campus based programs that are a part of the school at the request of
the Principal or the Assistant Principal and with the consent of the Sheriff
or his designee for educational purposes and emergencies.

C. Duties of SRO:
1. Instructional responsibility of SROs in the schools:

a. The SRO shall act as an instructor for specialized short-term
programs at all schools when approved to do so by the Principal or
a member of the faculty.

b. The SRO shall act in the capacity of law enforcement officer,
teacher and counselor for Public safety classes.

2. Additional duties and responsibilities of all SROs:

a. The SRO shall coordinate all of his/her activities and programs
with the Principal and staff members concerned and will seek
permission, advice and guidance prior to enactment.

b. The SRO shall develop expertise in presenting various law
related subjects to students. The SRO will submit the subject and
the number of classes taught on the monthly report. This
information will be kept for review by the Charleston County
School District Facility Security and Emergency Preparedness
Office and the Charleston County Sheriff’s Office.

c. The SRO shall encourage individual and small group
discussions with students, based upon materials covered in class, to
further establish rapport with the students.



d. When requested by the Principal, the SRO shall attend parent
and faculty meetings to solicit support and understanding of the
SRO program.

e. The SRO shall make himself/herself available for conferences
with students, parents, and faculty members in order to assist them
with problems of a law enforcement or crime prevention nature.

f. The SRO shall become familiar with all community agencies,
which offer assistance to youth and their families, such as mental
health clinics, drug assistance centers, etc. The SRO shall make
referrals to such agencies when necessary thereby acting as a
resource person to students, parents, faculty, and staff.

g. The SRO shall assist the Principal in developing plans and
strategies to prevent or minimize dangerous situations.

h. Should it become necessary to conduct formal police interviews
with the students and/or faculty, the SRO shall inform the

Principal or his/her designee and adhere to law enforcement policy
as well as other legal requirements with regards to such interviews.

i. The SRO shall take law enforcement actions as required against
intruders and unwanted guests who may appear at the school and
related school functions to the extent that the SRO may do so
under authority of the law. As soon as practical, the SRO shall
make the Principal aware of such action.

k. The SRO shall maintain detailed and accurate records of the
School Resource Officer Program on a monthly basis and shall
forward same to the SRO supervisor who will forward copies to
the Superintendent or his designee.

I. The SRO shall not act as a school disciplinarian as disciplining
students is a school responsibility. SROs are not to be used for
regularly assigned lunchroom duties, as hall monitors, or for other
monitoring duties. If there is a problem, the SRO shall assist the
school until the problem is solved.

m. If an incident is a violation of the law, the Principal shall
contact the SRO and his/her supervisor immediately. The SRO
shall then determine whether law enforcement action is
appropriate.

n. In cases of contested expulsions, the SRO will provide case
information or testimony to the Superintendent or her designee,



and upon the request of the Superintendent or her designee,
testimony at the hearing.

3. Co-curricular activities and school functions.

a. Upon request of the Principal or designee, and approval of the
Sheriff or his designee, an SRO may accompany his/her

school to events outside of the County of Charleston and

within the State of South Carolina for purposes of providing law
enforcement services as authorized by state law. See. S.C. Code
(Ann.) Sec. 5-7-12.

b. When the SRO works outside of the normal weekly work school
hours, which includes but is not limited to providing services for
the events described in paragraph a. above, the payment for the
SRO shall be based on an hourly rate determined by CCSO
Policy, and in effect upon execution of this agreement.

I1. Program Goals and Evaluation

The Charleston County School District requests the assistance of the CCSO in keeping
our schools safe and orderly.

The CCSO in conjunction with the Charleston County School District shall develop
program goals and objectives for the School Resource Officer Program. These program
goals shall be in line with the Charleston County School District’s action plan for a safe
school climate. This means that the SRO will be an active law enforcement official on
campus, a classroom instructor and a resource for teachers, students and parents. The
SRO shall also be active in conferences, counseling and referrals. Indicators of success
shall be developed objectively and independently to measure how well goals and
objectives were obtained.

The CCSO shall evaluate the effectiveness of the School Resource Officer Program and
report monthly to the Charleston County School District on the SROs activities.

I11. Rights and Duties of the School District

The School District shall provide the SRO of each high school and middle school with
the following materials and facilities, which are deemed necessary to the performance of
the SROs duties.

A. Access to an air-conditioned and properly lit private office. This office shall
contain a telephone along with a school computer, which will be used for general
business purposes. Only the SRO will have access to this office.



B. A location for files and records, which can be properly locked and secured
within the office.

C. A desk with drawers, an office chair, and filing cabinet.

1V. Employment Status of School Resource Officer

The CCSO shall be responsible for the recruiting of SROs. The CCSO and the
Charleston County School District Office of Security and Emergency Management shall
be responsible for interviewing and evaluating SROs who shall serve at the pleasure of
the Sheriff and the Superintendent, respectfully.

V. Reassignment, Resignation or Dismissal of School Resource Officers

A. In the event the Principal of the school to which the SRO is assigned feels that
the particular SRO is not effectively performing his/her duties and responsibilities, the
Principal shall state these reasons in writing to the CCSD Director of Security and
Emergency Management. Within a reasonable time after receiving the recommendation
from the Principal, the Director of Security and Emergency Management or his designee
shall advise the Sheriff or his designee of the Principal’s concerns. If the Sheriff desires,
the Superintendent and the Sheriff or their designees, shall meet with the SRO and the
Principal to mediate and resolve any problems of the school to which the SRO is
assigned. If within a reasonable amount of time after commencement of such mediation,
the problem cannot be resolved or mediated, or in the event mediation is not sought by
the Sheriff, the SRO shall be reassigned from the program at the school and replacement
shall be obtained.

B. The CCSO may dismiss or reassign an SRO based upon the department’s
rules, regulations and/or General Orders and when in the best interest of the
citizens of Charleston County.

C. In the event of the resignation, dismissal or reassignment of an SRO, or in the
case of absences by an SRO, the Sheriff shall provide a temporary

replacement for the SRO immediately and within thirty (30) school days of
receiving such notice of such absence, dismissal, resignation; a replacement will
be assigned.

VI. FERPA
The SROs of the CCSO shall act as the Law Enforcement Unit for the Charleston

County School District, with regards to information sharing as it relates to the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)



V1. Special Resources

The Associate Superintendent or his/her designee may request the Sheriff provide
assistance to the CCSD from specialized resources within the Sheriff’s Office (K-9,
EOD, helicopter etc.). Upon approval of the Sheriff, units and resources will be made
available to the CCSD in accordance with CCSO policies and procedures.

VIIl. Good Faith

The School District, the Sheriff, their agents and employees agree to cooperate in good
faith in fulfilling the terms of the agreement. Unforeseen difficulties or questions will be
resolved by negotiation between the Superintendent and the Sheriff or their designees.
The terms of this agreement are subject to change at the end of each school year. Any
recommended changes or modifications to the agreement shall be submitted in writing.

IX. Modification

This document constitutes the full understanding of the parties and no terms, conditions,
understandings or agreements meant to modify or vary the terms of this document shall
be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by both parties.

The services of the School Resource Officers will commence on the first day of teachers
in-service of the new school year and will continue through the last day of school. This
agreement shall be valid for the 2014-2015 school year.

Signed and sealed by:

FOR THE CHARLESTON COUNTY FOR THE CHARLESTON COUNTY
SCHOOL DISTRICT: SHERIFF’S OFFICE:

Nancy McGinley, Superintendent Al Cannon, Sheriff

Dated: Dated:




AGREEMENT BETWEEN

The Charleston County School District
And

City of Charleston Police Department
For

The School Resource Officer Program, 2014-2015 School Year

|. Rights and Duties of the Chief of Police

The Chief of Police shall provide School Resource Officers (hereinafter referred to as
“SRO”) as follows for the 2014-2015 School year, beginning on August 11, 2014 and
ending on June 4, 2015:

A.

Number and funding of SROs:

1. The Chief of Police shall assign one regularly employed police officer
to each of the following schools.

(1 SRO provided) Burke High School (funded by CCSD)

(2 SROs provided) West Ashley High School (2 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) St. John’s High School (funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) C.E. Williams Middle (funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Haut Gap Middle (funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) West Ashley Middle School (funded by Chas City
PD)

(1 SRO provided) James Island Middle School (funded by Chas City
PD)

(1 SRO provided) Burke Middle School (funded by Chas City PD)

The CCSD shall fund six (6) officers at the rate of $34,500 per
officer.

2. The Chief of Police shall assign the respective team commander or his
designee during the regular school year to oversee the Police Officers
assigned above and to perform scheduled or non-scheduled visits to the
middle and high schools.

3. At the discretion of the Chief of Police and the Superintendent of the
Charleston County School District, SROs may be assigned to such duties
at the elementary school level to ensure full coverage of the Charleston
County School District schools located in the jurisdiction of the
Charleston City Police Department.



4. The Chief of Police shall provide a monthly report of calls for service
and criminal incidents to the Superintendent. The report shall include
trend data with a narrative explanation.

B. Regular Duty Hours of SROs:

1. Each school listed above shall have an SRO assigned on a full-time
basis during the regular school year of eight (8) hours a day. (Note: An
SRO may be called upon to leave the assigned school when he or she is
needed at another school for a call for service to handle a criminal
incident.) The Supervisor may temporarily reassign any SRO during
school holidays and vacations during the school year or during the period
of law enforcement emergencies. Availability of an SRO during the
summer months is at the discretion of the Chief of Police or his designee,
and shall be the subject of a separate agreement.

2. The SRO assigned to the above schools will be permitted to travel to
off-campus based programs in the City of Charleston that are a part of the
school at the request of the Principal or the Assistant Principal and with
the consent of the Chief of Police or his designee for educational purposes
and emergencies.

C. Duties of SRO:
1. Instructional responsibility of SROs in the schools:

a. The SRO shall act as an instructor for specialized short-term
programs at all schools when approved to do so by the Principal or
a member of the faculty.

b. The SRO shall act in the capacity of law enforcement officer,
teacher and counselor for Public safety classes.

2. Additional duties and responsibilities of all SROs:

a. The SRO shall coordinate all of his/her activities and programs
with the Principal and staff members concerned and will seek
advice and guidance prior to enactment.

b. The SRO shall develop expertise in presenting various law
related subjects to students. The SRO will submit the subject and
the number of classes taught on the monthly report. This



information will be kept for review by the Charleston County
School District Facility Security and Emergency Preparedness
Office and the Charleston City Police Department.

c. The SRO shall encourage individual and small group
discussions with students, based upon materials covered in class, to
further establish rapport with the students.

d. When requested by the Principal, the SRO shall attend parent
and faculty meetings to solicit support and understanding of the
SRO program.

e. The SRO shall make himself/herself available for conferences
with students, parents, and faculty members in order to assist them
with problems of a law enforcement or crime prevention nature.

f. The SRO shall become familiar with all community agencies,
which offer assistance to youth and their families, such as mental
health clinics, drug assistance centers, etc. The SRO shall make
referrals to such agencies when necessary thereby acting as a
resource person to students, parents, faculty, and staff.

g. The SRO shall assist the Principal in developing plans and
strategies to prevent or minimize dangerous situations.

h. Should it become necessary to conduct formal police interviews
with the students and/or faculty, the SRO shall inform the

Principal or his/her designee and adhere to law enforcement policy
as well as other legal requirements with regards to such interviews.

i. The SRO shall take law enforcement actions as required against
intruders and unwanted guests who may appear at the school and
related school functions to the extent that the SRO may do so
under authority of the law. As soon as practical, the SRO shall
make the Principal aware of such action.

J- The SRO shall give assistance to other police officers and
deputies in matters regarding his/her school assignment whenever
necessary. The SRO shall, whenever possible, participate in school
functions as they relate to the duties of the SRO.

k. The SRO shall maintain detailed and accurate records of the
School Resource Officer Program on a monthly basis and shall
forward same to the SRO supervisor who will forward copies to
the Superintendent or his designee.



I. The SRO shall not act as a school disciplinarian as disciplining
students is a school responsibility. SROs are not to be used for
regularly assigned lunchroom duties, as hall monitors, or for other
monitoring duties. If there is a problem, the SRO shall assist the
school until the problem is solved.

m. If an incident is a violation of the law, the Principal shall
contact the SRO and his/her supervisor immediately. The SRO
shall then determine whether law enforcement action is
appropriate.

n. In cases of contested expulsions, the SRO will provide case
information or testimony to the Superintendent or her designee,
and upon the request of the Superintendent or her designee,
testimony at the hearing, unless such testimony could hinder a
criminal prosecution.

3. Co-curricular activities and school functions.

a. Upon request of the Principal or designee, and approval of the
Chief of Police or his designee, an SRO may accompany his/her
school to events outside of the City of Charleston and

within the State of South Carolina for purposes of providing law
enforcement services as authorized by state law. See. S.C. Code
(Ann.) Sec. 5-7-12. Under no circumstances may the SRO in his or
her official capacity, accompany his/her school to events outside
the state of South Carolina.

b. When the SRO works outside of the normal weekly school
hours, which includes but it not limited to providing services for
the events described in paragraph a. above, the payment for the
SRO shall be based on an hourly rate, at time and a half,
determined by Charleston City Police Department Policy, and in
effect upon execution of this agreement. Payment for these
services shall be made directly to the City of Charleston. All
overtime shall be approved in advance and in writing by the
Director of Security and Emergency Management. (This sub-
section does not apply to off-duty services that may be provided by
individual officers.)

1. Program Goals and Evaluation

The Charleston County School District requests the assistance of the Charleston City
Police Department in keeping our schools safe and orderly.



The Charleston City Police Department in conjunction with the Charleston County
School District shall develop program goals and objectives for the School Resource
Officer Program. These program goals shall be in line with the Charleston County School
District’s action plan for a safe school climate. This means that the SRO will be an active
law enforcement official on campus, a classroom instructor and a resource for teachers,
students and parents. The SRO shall also be active in conferences, counseling and
referrals. Indicators of success shall be developed objectively and independently to
measure how well goals and objectives were obtained.

The Charleston City Police Department shall evaluate the effectiveness of the School
Resource Officer Program and report monthly to the Charleston County School District
on the SROs activities.

I11. Rights and Duties of the School District

The School District shall provide the SRO of each high school and middle school with
the following materials and facilities, which are deemed necessary to the performance of
the SROs duties.

A. Access to an air-conditioned and properly lit private office. This office shall
contain a telephone along with a school computer, which will be used for general
business purposes. Only the SRO will have access to this office.

B. A location for files and records, which can be properly locked and secured
within the office.

C. A desk with drawers, an office chair, and filing cabinet.

1V. Employment Status of School Resource Officer

The Charleston City Police Department shall be responsible for the recruiting of
SROs. The Charleston City Police Department and the Charleston County School
District Office of Security and Emergency Management shall be responsible for
interviewing and evaluating SROs and making recommendations to the Chief of Police
for hiring. The SROs shall serve at the pleasure of the Chief of Police and the
Superintendent, respectfully.

V. Reassignment, Resignation or Dismissal of School Resource Officers

A. In the event the Principal of the school to which the SRO is assigned feels that
the particular SRO is not effectively performing his/her duties and responsibilities, the
Principal shall state these reasons in writing to the CCSD Director of Security and
Emergency Management. Within a reasonable time after receiving the recommendation
from the Principal, the Director of Security and Emergency Management or his designee
shall advise the Chief of Police or his designee of the Principal’s concerns. If the Chief of
Police desires, the Superintendent and the Chief of Police or their designees, shall meet



with the SRO and the Principal to mediate and resolve any problems of the school to
which the SRO is assigned. If, within a reasonable amount of time after commencement
of such mediation, the problem cannot be resolved or mediated, or in the event mediation
is not sought by the Chief of Police, the SRO shall be reassigned from the program at the
school and replacement shall be obtained.

B. The Chief of Police may dismiss or reassign an SRO based upon the
department’s rules, regulations and/or General Orders and when in the best
interest of the citizens of Charleston County and the Charleston City Police
Department.

C. In the event of the resignation, dismissal or reassignment of an SRO, or in the
case of absences by an SRO, the Chief of Police shall provide a temporary
replacement for the SRO as soon as possible within 5 working days, and within
thirty (30) school days of receiving such notice of such absence, dismissal,
resignation; a replacement will be assigned.

VI. FERPA
The SROs of the Charleston City Police Department shall act as the Law Enforcement
Unit for the Charleston County School District, with regards to information sharing as it
related to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
VII. K-9
Principals can request K-9 search assistance from the Charleston City Police Department
with the approval of their Associate Superintendent. CCSD and CCPD Policy and

approved procedures must be followed.

VIIIl. Good Faith

The School District, the Chief of Police, their agents and employees agree to cooperate in
good faith in fulfilling the terms of the agreement. Unforeseen difficulties or questions
will be resolved by negotiation between the Superintendent and the Chief of Police or
their designees. The terms of this agreement are subject to change at the end of each
school year. Any recommended changes or modifications to the agreement shall be
submitted in writing.

VI1I. Modification




This document constitutes the full understanding of the parties and no terms, conditions,
understandings or agreements meant to modify or vary the terms of this document shall
be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by both parties.

The services of the School Resource Officers will commence on the first day of teachers
in-service of the new school year and will continue through the last day of school. This
agreement shall be valid for the 2014-2015 school year.

Signed and sealed by:

FOR THE CHARLESTON COUNTY  FOR THE CITY OF CHARLESTON:
SCHOOL DISTRICT:

Nancy McGinley, Superintendent Joseph P. Riley, Mayor

Dated: Dated:




AGREEMENT BETWEEN

The Charleston County School District
And
The City of North Charleston
And City of North Charleston Police Department
For

The School Resource Officer Program, 2014-2015 School Year

I. Rights and Duties of the Chief of Police

The Chief of Police shall provide School Resource Officers (hereinafter referred to as
“SRO”) as follows for the 2014-2015 School year, beginning on August 11, 2014 and
ending on June 4, 2015:

A

middle and

Number and funding of SROs:

1. The Chief of Police shall assign one regularly employed police officer
to each of the following schools.

(1 SRO provided) Academic Magnet High School (funded by NCPD)

(1 SROs provided) North Charleston High School (1 funded by
CCSD)

(2 SROs provided) Stall High School (2 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Garrett High School (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Jenkins Academy (1 funded by NCPD)

(1 SRO provided) Liberty Hill Academy (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Charleston County School for Arts (1 funded by

CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Military Magnet Middle/High (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Northwoods Middle (funded by NCPD)

(1 SRO provided) Morningside Middle (funded by NCPD)

(1 SRO provided) Zucker Middle (funded by NCPD)

The CCSD shall fund six (6) officers at the rate of $34,500 per officer.
The CCSD shall fund one (1) officer at the rate of $60,000. The City of
North Charleston will fund the remaining SRO positions.

2. The Chief of Police shall assign a full-time supervisor during the
regular school year to oversee the Police Officers assigned above
and to perform scheduled or non-scheduled visits to the
high schools.

3. At the discretion of the Chief of Police and the Superintendent of the
Charleston County School District, SROs may be assigned to such duties
at the elementary school level to ensure full coverage of the Charleston



County School District schools located in the jurisdiction of the North
Charleston Police Department.

4. The Chief of Police shall provide a monthly report of calls for service
and criminal incidents to the Superintendent. The report shall
include trend data with a narrative explanation.

B. Regular Duty Hours of SROs:

1. Each school listed above shall have an SRO assigned on a full-time
basis during the regular school year of eight (8) hours a day. (Note:
An SRO may be called upon to leave the assigned school when
he or she is needed at another school for a call for service to
handle a criminal incident.) The Supervisor may
temporarily reassign any SRO during school holidays and
vacations during the school year or during the period of law
enforcement emergencies. Availability of an SRO during the
summer months is at the discretion of the Chief of Police.

2. The SRO assigned to the above schools will be permitted to travel to
off-campus based programs that are a part of the school at the
request of the Principal or the Assistant Principal and with the
consent of the Chief of Police or his designee for educational
purposes and emergencies.

C. Duties of SRO:
1. Instructional responsibility of SROs in the schools:
a. The SRO shall act as an instructor for specialized short-term
programs at all schools when approved to do so by the

Principal or a member of the faculty.

b. The SRO shall act as a teacher and counselor for Public safety
classes, in the capacity of law enforcement officer.

2. Additional duties and responsibilities of all SROs:

a. The SRO shall coordinate all of his/her presentations and
programs with the Principal and staff members concerned. The
SRO will keep the Principal and SRO Supervisor informed of
his/her campus activities or police department obligations.



b. The SRO shall develop expertise in presenting various law
related subjects to students. The SRO will submit the

subject and the number of classes taught on the monthly
report. This information will be kept for review
by the Charleston County School District Facility
Security and Emergency Preparedness Office and the

North Charleston Police Department.

c. The SRO shall encourage individual and small group
discussions with students, based upon materials covered in
class, to further establish rapport with the students.

d. When requested by the Principal, the SRO shall attend parent
and faculty meetings to solicit support and understanding of
the SRO program.

e. The SRO shall make himself/herself available for conferences
with students, parents, and faculty members in order to
assist them with problems of a law enforcement or
crime prevention nature.

f. The SRO shall become familiar with all community agencies,
which offer assistance to youth and their families, such as

mental health clinics, drug assistance centers, etc. The SRO
shall make referrals to such agencies when necessary
thereby acting as a resource person to students, parents,

faculty, and staff.

g. The SRO shall assist the Principal in developing plans and
strategies to prevent or minimize dangerous situations.

h. Should it become necessary to conduct formal police interviews
with the students and/or faculty, the SRO shall inform the
Principal or his/her designee and adhere to law
enforcement policy as well as other legal requirements
with regards to such interviews.

i. The SRO shall take law enforcement actions as required against
intruders and unwanted guests who may appear at the

school and related school functions to the extent that the
SRO may do so under authority of the law. As soon
as practical, the SRO shall make the Principal aware of
such action.

k. The SRO shall maintain detailed and accurate records of the
School Resource Officer Program on a monthly basis and



shall forward same to the SRO supervisor who will
forward copies to the Superintendent or his designee.

I. The SRO shall not act as a school disciplinarian as disciplining
students is a school responsibility. SROs are not to be used

for regularly assigned lunchroom duties, as hall
monitors, or for other monitoring duties. If there is a
problem, the SRO shall assist the school until the

problem is solved.

m. If an incident is a violation of the law, the Principal shall
contact the SRO and his/her supervisor immediately. The
SRO shall then determine whether law enforcement
action is appropriate.

n. If it is determined the incident warrants the juvenile be charged
with a minor or status offense, the NCPD School Resource
Officers will contact the Juvenile Diversion Officer/ Juvenile
Advocate and arrange for the Diversion Officer or Advocate for
further interview.

0. In cases of contested expulsions, the SRO will provide any
reported violations of State law or City ordinances and related
testimony to the Superintendent or her designee. Upon the request
of the Superintendent or her designee, the SRO will provide
testimony of the law or ordinance violations at the hearing.

3. Co-curricular activities and school functions.

a. Upon request of the Principal or designee, and approval of the
Chief of Police or his designee, an SRO may accompany

his/her school to events outside of the City of North
Charleston and within the State of South Carolina
for purposes of providing law enforcement services
as authorized by state law. See. S.C. Code (Ann.) Sec. 5-
7-12.

b. When the SRO works outside of the normal weekly work school
hours, which includes but it not limited to providing

services for the events described in paragraph a. above,
the payment for the SRO shall be based on an hourly rate
determined by North Charleston Police Department

Policy, and in effect upon
execution of this agreement.



1. Program Goals and Evaluation

The Charleston County School District requests the assistance of the North Charleston
Police Department in keeping our schools safe and orderly.

The North Charleston Police Department, in conjunction with the Charleston County
School District, shall develop program goals and objectives for the School Resource
Officer Program. These program goals shall be in line with the Charleston County School
District’s action plan for a safe school climate. An integral role of the SRO is to build
relationships with students, and faculty, and act as a classroom instructor, resource for
teachers, students, and parents, and be an active law enforcement official on campus. The
SRO shall also be active in conferences, counseling and referrals. Indicators of success
shall be developed objectively and independently to measure how well goals and
objectives were obtained.

The North Charleston Police Department shall evaluate the effectiveness of the School

Resource Officer Program and report monthly to the Charleston County School District
on the SROs activities.

I11. Rights and Duties of the School District

The School District shall provide the SRO of each high school and middle school with
the following materials and facilities, which are deemed necessary to the performance of
the SROs duties.

A. Access to an air-conditioned and properly lit private office. This office shall
contain a telephone along with a school computer, which will be used for general
business purposes. Only the SRO will have access to this office.

B. A location for files and records, which can be properly locked and secured
within the office.

C. A desk with drawers, an office chair, and filing cabinet.

1V. Employment Status of School Resource Officer

The North Charleston Police Department shall be responsible for the recruiting of
SROs. The North Charleston Police Department and the Charleston County School
District Office of Security and Emergency Management shall be responsible for
interviewing and evaluating SROs who shall serve at the pleasure of the Chief of Police
and the Superintendent, respectfully.

V. Reassignment, Resignation or Dismissal of School Resource Officers




A. In the event the Principal of the school to which the SRO is assigned feels that
the particular SRO is not effectively performing his/her duties and
responsibilities, the Principal shall state these reasons in writing to the CCSD
Director of Security and Emergency Management. Within a reasonable time after
receiving the recommendation from the Principal, the Director of Security and
Emergency Management or his designee shall advise the Chief of Police or his
designee of the Principal’s concerns. If the Chief of Police desires, the
Superintendent and the Chief of Police or their designees, shall meet with the
SRO and the Principal to mediate and resolve any problems of the school to
which the SRO is assigned. If, within a reasonable amount of time after
commencement of such mediation, the problem cannot be resolved or mediated,
or in the event mediation is not sought by the Chief of Police, the SRO shall be
reassigned from the program at the school and replacement shall be obtained.

B. The Chief of Police may dismiss or reassign an SRO based upon the
department’s rules, regulations and/or General Orders and when in the

best interest of the citizens of Charleston County and the North Charleston Police
Department.

C. In the event of the resignation, dismissal or reassignment of an SRO, or in the

case of absences by an SRO, the Chief of Police shall provide a
temporary replacement for the SRO immediately and within thirty (30) school
days of receiving such notice of such absence, dismissal, resignation; a
replacement will be assigned.

VI. FERPA
The SROs of the North Charleston Police Department shall act as the Law
Enforcement Unit for the Charleston County School District, with regards to information
sharing as it related to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
VII. K-9
Principals can make a written request for K-9 search assistance from the North
Charleston Police Department with the approval of their Associate Superintendent.

CCSD and NCPD policy and approved procedures must be followed.

VIII. Juvenile Diversion

The North Charleston Police Department and Charleston County School District will
work together to develop, recognize, and participate in alternatives to custody and
detention for juveniles charged with minor offenses on school grounds.

IX. Good Faith




The School District, the Chief of Police, their agents and employees agree to cooperate in
good faith in fulfilling the terms of the agreement. Unforeseen difficulties or questions
will be resolved by negotiation between the Superintendent and the Chief of Police or
their designees. The terms of this agreement are subject to change at the end of each
school year. Any recommended changes or modifications to the agreement shall be
submitted in writing.

IX. Modification

This document constitutes the full understanding of the parties and no terms, conditions,
understandings or agreements meant to modify or vary the terms of this document shall
be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by both parties.

The services of the School Resource Officers will commence on the first day of teachers
in-service of the new school year and will continue through the last day of school. This
agreement shall be valid for the 2014-2015 school year.

Signed and sealed by:

FOR THE CHARLESTON COUNTY  CITY OF NORTH CHARLESTON
SCHOOL DISTRICT:

Nancy McGinley, Superintendent Mayor

Dated: Dated:

CITY OF NORTH CHARLESTON
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Chief of Police



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

The Charleston County School District
And

The Mount Pleasant Police Department
For

The School Resource Officer Program, 2014-2015 School Year

|. Rights and Duties of the Chief of Police

The Chief of Police shall provide School Resource Officers (hereinafter referred to as
“SRO”) as follows for the 2014-2015 School year, beginning on August 11, 2014 and
ending on June 4, 2015:

A.

Number and funding of SROs:

1. The Chief of Police shall assign one regularly employed police officer
to each of the following schools.

(3 SROs provided) Wando High School (2 funded by CCSD; 1 funded
by MPPD)

(1 SRO provided) Cario Middle School (1 funded by CCSD)

(1 SRO provided) Laing Middle School (1 funded by MPPD)

(1 SRO provided) Moultrie Middle School (1 funded by MPPD)

The CCSD shall fund three (3) officers at the rate of $34,500 per
officer.

2. The Chief of Police shall assign a full-time supervisor during the
regular school year to oversee the Police Officers assigned above
and to perform scheduled or non-scheduled visits to the middle and
high schools.

3. At the discretion of the Chief of Police and the Superintendent of the
Charleston County School District, SROs may be assigned to such duties
at the elementary school level to ensure full coverage of the Charleston
County School District schools located in the jurisdiction of the Mount
Pleasant Police Department.

4. The Chief of Police shall provide a monthly report of calls for service
and criminal incidents to the Superintendent. The report shall include
trend data with a narrative explanation.



B. Regular Duty Hours of SROs:

1. Each school listed above shall have an SRO assigned on a full-time
basis during the regular school year of eight (8) hours a day. (Note: An
SRO may be called upon to leave the assigned school when he or she is
needed at another school for a call for service to handle a criminal
incident.) The Supervisor may temporarily reassign any SRO during
school holidays and vacations during the school year or during the period
of law enforcement emergencies. Availability of an SRO during the
summer months is at the discretion of the Chief of Police.

2. The SRO assigned to the above schools will be permitted to travel to
off-campus based programs that are a part of the school at the request of
the Principal or the Assistant Principal and with the consent of the Chief
of Police or his designee for educational purposes and emergencies.

C. Duties of SRO:
1. Instructional responsibility of SROs in the schools:

a. The SRO shall act as an instructor for specialized short-term
programs at all schools when approved to do so by the Principal or
a member of the faculty.

b. The SRO shall act in the capacity of law enforcement officer,
teacher and counselor for Public safety classes.

2. Additional duties and responsibilities of all SROs:

a. The SRO shall coordinate all of his/her activities and programs
with the Principal and staff members concerned and will seek
permission, advice and guidance prior to enactment.

b. The SRO shall develop expertise in presenting various law
related subjects to students. The SRO will submit the subject and
the number of classes taught on the monthly report. This
information will be kept for review by the Charleston County
School District Facility Security and Emergency Preparedness
Office and the Mount Pleasant Police Department.

c. The SRO shall encourage individual and small group
discussions with students, based upon materials covered in class, to
further establish rapport with the students.



d. When requested by the Principal, the SRO shall attend parent
and faculty meetings to solicit support and understanding of the
SRO program.

e. The SRO shall make himself/herself available for conferences
with students, parents, and faculty members in order to assist them
with problems of a law enforcement or crime prevention nature.

f. The SRO shall become familiar with all community agencies,
which offer assistance to youth and their families, such as mental
health clinics, drug assistance centers, etc. The SRO shall make
referrals to such agencies when necessary thereby acting as a
resource person to students, parents, faculty, and staff.

g. The SRO shall assist the Principal in developing plans and
strategies to prevent or minimize dangerous situations.

h. Should it become necessary to conduct formal police interviews
with the students and/or faculty, the SRO shall inform the

Principal or his/her designee and adhere to law enforcement policy
as well as other legal requirements with regards to such interviews.

i. The SRO shall take law enforcement actions as required against
intruders and unwanted guests who may appear at the school and
related school functions to the extent that the SRO may do so
under authority of the law. As soon as practical, the SRO shall
make the Principal aware of such action.

k. The SRO shall maintain detailed and accurate records of the
School Resource Officer Program on a monthly basis and shall
forward same to the SRO supervisor who will forward copies to
the Superintendent or his designee.

I. The SRO shall not act as a school disciplinarian as disciplining
students is a school responsibility. SROs are not to be used for
regularly assigned lunchroom duties, as hall monitors, or for other
monitoring duties. If there is a problem, the SRO shall assist the
school until the problem is solved.

m. If an incident is a violation of the law, the Principal shall
contact the SRO and his/her supervisor immediately. The SRO
shall then determine whether law enforcement action is
appropriate.

n. In cases of contested expulsions, the SRO will provide case
information or testimony to the Superintendent or her designee,



and upon the request of the Superintendent or her designee,
testimony at the hearing.

3. Co-curricular activities and school functions.

a. Upon request of the Principal or designee, and approval of the
Chief of Police or his designee, an SRO may accompany his/her
school to events outside of the Town of Mount Pleasant and
within the State of South Carolina for purposes of providing law
enforcement services as authorized by state law. See. S.C. Code
(Ann.) Sec. 5-7-12.

b. When the SRO works outside of the normal weekly work school
hours, which includes but it not limited to providing services for
the events described in paragraph a. above, the payment for the
SRO shall be based on an hourly rate determined by Mount
Pleasant Police Department Policy, and in effect upon execution
of this agreement.

I1. Program Goals and Evaluation

The Charleston County School District requests the assistance of the Mount Pleasant
Police Department in keeping our schools safe and orderly.

The Mount Pleasant Police Department in conjunction with the Charleston County
School District shall develop program goals and objectives for the School Resource
Officer Program. These program goals shall be in line with the Charleston County School
District’s action plan for a safe school climate. This means that the SRO will be an active
law enforcement official on campus, a classroom instructor and a resource for teachers,
students and parents. The SRO shall also be active in conferences, counseling and
referrals. Indicators of success shall be developed objectively and independently to
measure how well goals and objectives were obtained.

The Mount Pleasant Police Department shall evaluate the effectiveness of the School
Resource Officer Program and report monthly to the Charleston County School District
on the SROs activities.

I11. Rights and Duties of the School District

The School District shall provide the SRO of each high school and middle school with
the following materials and facilities, which are deemed necessary to the performance of
the SROs duties.

A. Access to an air-conditioned and properly lit private office. This office shall
contain a telephone along with a school computer, which will be used for general
business purposes. Only the SRO will have access to this office.



B. A location for files and records, which can be properly locked and secured
within the office.

C. A desk with drawers, an office chair, and filing cabinet.

1VV. Employment Status of School Resource Officer

The Mount Pleasant Police Department shall be responsible for the recruiting of SROs.
The Mount Pleasant Police Department and the Charleston County School District
Office of Security and Emergency Management shall be responsible for interviewing and
evaluating SROs who shall serve at the pleasure of the Chief of Police and the
Superintendent, respectfully.

V. Reassignment, Resignation or Dismissal of School Resource Officers

A. In the event the Principal of the school to which the SRO is assigned feels that
the particular SRO is not effectively performing his/her duties and responsibilities, the
Principal shall state these reasons in writing to the CCSD Director of Security and
Emergency Management. Within a reasonable time after receiving the recommendation
from the Principal, the Director of Security and Emergency Management or his designee
shall advise the Chief of Police or his designee of the Principal’s concerns. If the Chief of
Police desires, the Superintendent and the Chief of Police or their designees, shall meet
with the SRO and the Principal to mediate and resolve any problems of the school to
which the SRO is assigned. If, within a reasonable amount of time after commencement
of such mediation, the problem cannot be resolved or mediated, or in the event mediation
is not sought by the Chief of Police, the SRO shall be reassigned from the program at the
school and replacement shall be obtained.

B. The Chief of Police may dismiss or reassign an SRO based upon the
department’s rules, regulations and/or General Orders and when in the best
interest of the citizens of Charleston County and the Mount Pleasant Police
Department.

C. In the event of the resignation, dismissal or reassignment of an SRO, or in the
case of absences by an SRO, the Chief of Police shall provide a temporary
replacement for the SRO immediately and within thirty (30) school days of
receiving such notice of such absence, dismissal, resignation; a replacement will
be assigned.



VI. FERPA
The SROs of the Mount Pleasant Police Department shall act as the Law Enforcement
Unit for the Charleston County School District, with regards to information sharing as it
relates to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

VII. K-9

Principals can request K-9 search assistance from the Mount Pleasant Police Department
with the approval of their Associate Superintendent. CCSD and MPPD policy and
approved procedures must be followed.

VIIl. Good Faith

The School District, the Chief of Police, their agents and employees agree to cooperate in
good faith in fulfilling the terms of the agreement. Unforeseen difficulties or questions
will be resolved by negotiation between the Superintendent and the Chief of Police or
their designees. The terms of this agreement are subject to change at the end of each
school year. Any recommended changes or modifications to the agreement shall be
submitted in writing.

IX. Modification

This document constitutes the full understanding of the parties and no terms, conditions,
understandings or agreements meant to modify or vary the terms of this document shall
be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by both parties.

The services of the School Resource Officers will commence on the first day of teachers
in-service of the new school year and will continue through the last day of school. This
agreement shall be valid for the 2014-2015 school year.

Signed and sealed by:

FOR THE CHARLESTON COUNTY FOR THE TOWN OF MOUNT
SCHOOL DISTRICT: PLEASANT:

Nancy McGinley, Superintendent Eric DeMoura, Town Administrator
Dated: Dated:

Carl Ritchie, Chief of Police

Dated:




(_‘harlegton Yexcellence is our standard VI é:!](__) 2@16
CountySCHOOL DISTRICT e e

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

CHIEF FINANCE & OPERATIONS
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: Sate-ofSurplusPreperty Shuttered Facility - Archer Campus
(220 Nassau Street, Charleston)

RECOMMEN DATION ! Itis—hereby-recommended—that-the-CCSD—Beoard—of Trustees

Note: The protocol includes having an appraisal (attached).
Upon review of this recommendation, a revised recommendation is hereby
offered by unanimous support of the Audit & Finance Committee (8/4/14) as
follows:
In as much as there is an expected to be aggressive development is the
City of Charleston and in as much as land will be premium at an increasing
magnitude as time goes by, therefore it is recommended that the Board
acts to place this campus in the shuttered building condition with no
expectation that any consideration for sale would require Board approval
and is not anticipated any sooner than July 2016.
The material is submitted for: Action [] Information

Xl open [] Executive

e fol Sty

Respectfully submitted:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bobby
Superintendent of Schools Chief of Finance & Operations
N/A
William Lewis, Chief Operating Officer

r/Z’/M P (;“Lw; > @ Item voted on and
Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on rcﬁ[q ]14

E] Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy & Personnel Committee Policy Committee on




CHIEF FINANCE & OPERATIONS
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
Shuttered Facility — Archer Campus (220 Nassau Street, Charleston)

BACKGROUND:

The Archer campus has been shuttered and vacant since the new Sanders
Clyde was opened for business in February 2010. It is a small campus and
one that does not provide cost-effective reinvestment opportunities. The City
of Charleston has deemed it necessary to retain all or part of the structure
under the requirements of preservation and historic conservation within the
City limits.

DISCUSSION:

In the past eight to twelve months, the District has received multiple
inquiries with respect to the Archer campus. At least two of the inquiries are
from developers who are creating low-income housing opportunities within
the City. This is a form of redevelopment and evolutionary element of most
urban centers. As a result of this interest, and after talking to our legal
counsel (Lynn Crooks), we are seeking an opportunity from the Board to
establish a request for proposal and use a sealed bid public sale protocol.
Based upon support of this recommendation, the District will move forward
with putting together the RFP, advertisements, receiving bids and if
successful, bringing back a sale transaction to the Board for final approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

In as much as there is an expected to be aggressive development is the City
of Charleston and in as much as land will be premium at an increasing
magnitude as time goes by, therefore it is recommended that the Board acts
to place this campus in the shuttered building condition with no expectation
that any consideration for sale would require Board approval and is not
anticipated any sooner than July 2016.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:

The District will use fixed cost of ownership (FCO) funds to create the RFP as
necessary and to advertise.

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:

Should the District be successful in selling the property, we will generate
revenue that can be sequestrated either into our general operating fund
balance or a special revenue capital fund for the purpose of future capital
needs.

DATA SOURCES:
Michael L. Bobby
Lynn Crooks



PREPARED BY:
Michael L. Bobby

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
Lynn Crooks
John Emerson

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
Wayne Wilcher



7124/2014 Charleston County School District Mail - Fwd: Archer School

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Fwd: Archer School

Thu, Jul 24, 2014 at 2:02 PM

WAYNE WILCHER <wayne_wilcher@charleston.k12.sc.us>
To: FORTRENA HASKELL <fortrena_haskell@charleston.k12.sc.us>

Here's the email to support the Archer appraisal.
----- — Forwarded message -——----

From: Nick Thompson <nick@acrecot3.com>
Date: Wed, Jul 23, 2014 at 11:02 AM

Subject: Archer School
To: WAYNE WILCHER <wayne_wilcher@charleston.k12.sc.us>

This property was appraised on May 23, 2011 by me for CCSD. Since that time there has been reduced activity
in that area due to the economy and | have done some research in that general area and found that there has
been little activity that would indicate a change in the value of that property. If any change were to have
occurred, it would be in the land value with a probable offsetting decrease in the building value due to age and
depreciation. | would consider the value indicated in that appraisal to be representative of today’s value.
Sincerely, C. O. Nick Thompson, MAI, SRA

ACRE

C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAI
4996 Maybank Hwy
Wadmalaw Island, SC 29487

843-762-5722, office
843-696-5444, cell

nick@acrecot3.com

ol owash  This email is free from viruses and malware because avast! Antivirus protection is
befres  active.

hitps://mail g oog le.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ilk=cc30540d5b&view=pt&search=inbox&th=1476989cb34a9696&siml=1476983ch94a9696 112



Appraisals

Counscting - C. (. Nick Thﬂmpﬁ@ﬂ, IIE, MAJX

Real
Esiate 4996 Maybank HW}’
Phone 843-762-5722 Wadmalaw Island, S. C. 29487 Retired
Fax  B843-762-5723 Email: NickThem@CONickThompson11IMATLcom Marie W. Thompson
Cell  843-696-5444 New Email Nick@aerecot3.com

May 23, 2011

Mr. Troy Williams, Director of Facilities
Charleston County School District

3999 Riverview Dr

North Charleston, South Carolina 29405

RE: Appraisal of Archer School, City of Charleston, SC, 459-05-01-067.
Dear Mr. Williams:

In accordance with your request, the undersigned has inspected the above property and made the
requisite investigation to estimate the market value of the fee simple estate as of May 12, 2011.

Market Value as used above is defined in the attached report.

Based on the appraiser's investigation, analysis and conclusions, an opinion has been formed that
the market value of the subject property, in the fee simple estate, subject to the Certification,
General Assumptions and General Limiting Conditions, (which are incorporated into this letter
by reference and which are fully set forth in the attached report) was:

ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED AND EIGHTY THOUSAND DGLLARS
$1,280.000

The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuatlon a specific valuation,
or the approva! of a loan.




Mr. Troy Williams
May 23, 2011
Page 2

To the best of our ability, this appraisal meets or exceeds the requirements of Title X1 of the
Financial Institution Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) of 1989, Public Law
101-73, 103 STAT. 183, 51) (1989). The appraisal has also been made in conformity with the
Code of Ethics of and Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal
Institute,

If you have any questions, please call me at (843) 762-5722.

Sincerely,

C 0 Mmper
C. O. Thompson, ITI, , SRA

S. C. Certification CG 85

COTII - 2011c011












ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, III, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 1

Location of Property:

Owner:

Size of Property:

Zoning:

Highest and Best Use:

Improvements:

Value of Land;

Market Value of Property:

SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS

220 Nassau Street, City & Charleston County, South Carolina, TMS
459-05-01-067.

School District # 20 0f Charleston County

459-05-01-067 - 277 X 299, 82,823 SF, 1.90 acres

DR2, Diverse Residential

Vacant - Residential or community recreation area
Improved - School, or community center, as improved.

42,575 S.F. brick on concrete foundation elementary school building,
The current building is a functionally and economically marginal

improvement to the site, having been renovated in 2006.

$800,000

ONE MILILION TWO HUNDRED AND EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS

Date of Appraisal:
Appraiser:

Client:

$1.280,000

May 12, 2011
C. O. Thompson, III, MAI, SRA

Mr. Troy Williams, Director of Facilities, Charleston County School
District

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Caroiina 29487



b

ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, 1If, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inec.

CERTIFICATION OF THE APPRAISER

The undersigned certifies that to the best of his knowledge and belief:

The Market Value of the Fee Simple Interest in the following real property has been estimated as of
May 12, 2011, as is.

Archer Elementary School
City of Charleston, Charleston County, South Carolina
TMS No. 459-05-01-067

The property was inspected by C.O. Thompson, III, MAI, on May 12, 2011.

Neither ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, III, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, INC. nor the
signatories of this Certification, have any present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject
of this report and no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported special and General
Assumptions and General Limiting Conditions set forth in this report, and are my personal unbiased
professional analyses, opinions and conclusions.

To the best of the appraiser’s knowledge and belief, the statements of fact contained in this appraisal
report, upon which the analyses, opinions and conclusions expressed herein are based, are true and
correct. No one, other than the signatories of this Certification, prepared the analyses, opinions and
conclusions concerning the real estate set forth in this report.

No one else provided significant professional assistance to the person or persons signing this
Certification.

To the best of the appraiser’s knowledge and belief, the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions
were developed and this report has been prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice and to the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice of The Appraisal Institute. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the
Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.

As of the date of this report, I, C.O. Thompson, ITI, MAI, have completed the requirements under the
continuing education program of the Appraisal Institute.

The compensation for this appraisal is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetefhiined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of
a stipulated result or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the
approval of a lean.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Esland, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. Q. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

L2}

Based on the appraiser’s investigation, analysis and conclusions, an opinion has been formed that the
market value of the fee simple interest in the subject property, based on a Street inspection at the request
ofthe client, as of May 12, 2011, subject to the special and General Assumptions and General Limiting

Conditions (which are incorporated by reference into this Certificate and which are fully set forth in the
attached report) was:

ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED AND EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS
$1,280,000

LB,W

C.O. Thompson, I, MAL SRA
State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser, S.C. Certificate No. CG 85

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IIl, MAL, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

|

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS

This appraisal report has been made with, and is subject to, the following general assumptions:

That title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated. No
- responsibility is assumed for the legal descriptions or for any legal matter.

- That the definition of value together with other definitions and assumptions on which our
analyses are based are set forth in appropriate sections of this report and are a part of these
General Assumptions as if included here in their entirety.

- That title to the property is assumed to be marketable. The property is considered to be under
responsible ownership-and management and free of all liens and eneumbrances except as—
specifically discussed herein.

- That the facts, estimates and opinions furnished the appraisers by others and contained in this
report are considered to be from reliable sources and where feasible have been verified.
However, no responsibility is assumed for the accuracy of the information. We reserve the right
to modify the value estimates should more reliable or accurate information become available
subsequent to delivery of this report.

- All engineering and/or surveys are assumed to be correct. The sketches, plot plans and drawings
included in the report are included only to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

- It is assumed that there are no hidden or other unapparent conditions in the soil, sub-soil,
~ structures or property which would render them more or less valuable. The appraisers
specifically accept no responsibility for damage by termites, wood borers or any other wood
infesting insects. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for engineering or
mspection which would be required to discover them.

- Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may
not be present on or in the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no
knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is
not qualified to detect such substances. The presence of potentially dangerous or hazardous
materials, gases or toxic substances may affect the value of the property and in this appraisal the

— value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there is no such element on or in the property
that would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any
expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover them.

- Good structural and mechanical conditions are assumed to exist, and no opinion as to these
matters is to be inferred or construed from the attached report.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITT, MATL, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine.

ln

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local
environmental regulations and laws unless non-compliance is stated, defined and considered in
the appraisal report.

Itis assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been complied
with, unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the appraisal report.

It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, legislated or administrative
consents from any local, state or national governmental or private entity or organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value estimate contained in this
report 1s based. = —

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and/or improvements is within the boundaries or
property lines of the property described herein and that there is no encroachment or trespass
unless noted within the report.

It was assumed that the quality and condition of the interior of the property is consistent with the
visible exterior of the property improvements

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

=2

GENERAL LIMITING CONDITIONS

This appraisal report has been made with, and is subject to, the following General Limiting Conditions:

- The appraisers, by reason of this appraisal report, are not required to give further consultation,
testimony or to be in attendance in court or at any governmental or other hearing with reference
to the property without prior arrangements.

- The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements
applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separated allocations for land and
buildings, if any, must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so
used.

- Use and disclosure of the contents of this report are governed by the bylaws and regulations of
the Appraisal Institute. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any
conclusions as to value, the identity of the appraisers or the firm with which they are connected,
or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or to the MAI or SRA designations) shall be
disseminated to the general public through advertising or sales media, public relations media,
news media, or other public means of communication without the prior written consent an
approval of the appraiser(s). '

. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. Tt may
not be used for any purpose by any person other than the party to whom it is addressed without
the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event only with proper written qualification and
only in its entirety,

- The party for whom this appraisal report was prepared may distribute copies of this appraisal
report in its entirety, to such third parties as may be selected by the party for whom this appraisal
report was prepared; however, portions of this appraisal report shall not be given to third parties
without the prior written consent of the signatories of this appraisal report.

- Additional copies of this appraisal may be obtained for an appropriate fee only with the
knowledge and consent of the client,

- The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26, 1992. We have not
made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine whether o not it
is in conformity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a
compliance survey of the property together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the
ADA could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements
of the act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value of the property. Since we
have no direct evidence relating to this issue, we did not consider possible noncompliance with
the requirements of ADA in estimating the value of the property.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompsoen, 111, MATL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

|

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISATL

The purpose of the appraisal is to define the type of value estimate that the appraisal is intended. This
value could be Market Value, that is what the property should sell for on the open market; Going
Concern Value, the value for a specific use or user; Insurable Value, the cost to replace the property
should something happen to it; Partial Interest Value, the value of a portion of the bundle of rights that
is inherent in the ownership of a property, such as a percentage interest in the whole property, a leased

fee or leasehold; or Investment Value, the value to an individual investor considering his investment

criteria and potential tax ramifications:

The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the Market Value of the subject property in the fee simple
estate, as of May 12, 2011.

FUNCTION AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL

The function and intended use of the appraisal is for the client's internal use, including but not limited
to, rendering a decision to sell the property.  The client of this appraisal is Th@ Charleston County
School District, and no others. It is the understanding of the appraiser that the intended use of this
appraisal is for determination of value for sale, and no other use. Should a copy of this report be
provided fo a third party by the client, that party does not become a recognized client by the appraiser,

without written agreement in advance, nor does that third party have any rights of the client.

4926 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, IIf, ML Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 8

IDENTIFICATION AND HISTORY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

The subject property is identified on the Charleston County Assessor's Tax Maps as TMS No. 459-05-
01-067. It is owned by Charleston County School District 20. It was acquired by a deed recorded in
the R.M.C. Office of the County of Charleston.

The property is located in the City of Charleston, and County of Charleston, and is the school located
220 Nassau Street.  Its dimensions are approximately 82,823 SF. 1.90 acres and currently improved

with a 42,575 S.F. 2 story school.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



190 ]

aol
155

ONILISW

HARRIS

SEEC TMS c¢439-1-3

ar

NYsSsyN

SCHooL

HENRY F. ARCHER ELENENTARY

YIAONYH

SEE TH3 ¢468-8-2

i33uls

g
9 &
=
%
5
2 )
COURT ¢
S
PN I e
DINT R/
3~ )56 SR
g
E 35‘
=
“lr R “ = .
ELY, T 35.{ag 35
76 2] 2 70
R o LEF
e - i LEE
ﬂ\ T — T "
ey N
WEST BOUND  U.S. T ﬂ

M5 ©453 5.3

TAX MAP PREPARED BY THE COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE.
THE CHARLESTON COUNTY BOARD OF ASSESSMENT com
TROL RESERVES THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT T0. SELL THIS MAP.
N0 RESALE'OR"REPROGUCTION FOR RESALE PURPOSE I3
PERMITTEL.

SEE TMS ed4f9-5-4

TAX DISTRICT NO, I

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 20

TAX MAP NUMBER

AREA: (ITY OF CHARLESTON

AERIAL PHOTO NO. 4 - 620 A6z

Rl g

1-= 100"

1=




ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, ITI, MAJ, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 16

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL INVESTIGATION

This appraisal analysis will be completed in several distinct phases; general data collection,
neighborhood data collection, subject property data collection, market data collection, analysis of all
collected data, highest and best use analysis, valuation, and report preparation. These phases are

described below.

General Data Collection and Analvsis:

This involves collection of data relating to national, regionial, and local trends; and identification and
analysis of the social, economic, governmental, and environmental forces affecting the market value.

Neighborhood Data Collection and Analvsis:

This entails inspecting the subject neighborhood; collecting and analyzing data on growth trends,

demographics, physical characteristics, utilities, and public or private infrastructure.

Subject Property Data Collection and Analysis:

In this phase, the subject property is inspected, the people with knowledge of the property and its
operations are interviewed, available blueprints and site plans are reviewed, relevant information such
as real estate taxes and zoning are reviewed, and the functionality and condition of the subject

improvements are analyzed.

Market Diata Collection and Analvsis:

In this phase we will obtain and verify comparable sales data for both vacant land and improved
properties; collect comparable rental data; inspect the comparables and collect market information
related to capitalization rates, operating expenses, yield requirements, construction costs and

depreciation.

Highest and Best Use Analvsis:

In this phase we will analyze all collected data within the framework of supply and demand, legal use,
physically possible use, feasible use and that use which is maximally productive both for the site as

though vacant, and the property as improved, if applicable.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Islaand, South Carolinz 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, 111, MAJI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine. i1

Valuation:
In this phase, we will apply the Direct Sales Comparison Approach to estimate land value. To estimate
the market value of improved property, we apply as applicable the Direct Sales Comparison, Cost, and

Income Approaches. These indications of value will then be reconciled into a final value estimate.

Report Preparation: The final phase of the appraisal process is the preparation of a full and complete

reportt.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Esland, South Carolina 29487



?Duck Island

aried

Myers Bend A__(___r_//

)
150,
j; l\e{LEUY PARK

Ril

S

S
e DARLIRES
e

2
N,
S
p)

(e

%G
H
\ -
—

4

V3 Town Creek Drum Isfand
: K v

s
8%,
s
i
drarde=t
iy

A)

17 P,
= rMemoriaI Bridgt

. e
- 2 : & e : S
\ % Subject [<5Rg;, e v T
X %fipro:‘ﬁ rtL\ 5> Hog Island Reach sty

/(;" X

= \ A
9,\; )
__‘ ” B Dpiml\‘s/oﬂf& Wales University
9
ground E
1;\":‘ }~\ _-g_‘f
S omf
)
1y & -+ 5
7
Patriof
\6‘(\/' B =)
{}o \?\\_9/" Y |
2 AU ;
% B R |
Ry \ R _74 o ) < 5
. ” e N - -
\\ M sc}ql\é/::\d)ﬂ\
% S A\ 0 ot
-. Vef@ran&Affﬁw \M‘Ed[)\ O
//E\/y \-\_.‘/V' A
h Beth Elohim
*
Efé{Magﬂme
“Ehurch
A piscopal Church WShutes Folly lslari
e -Washington House
Wathanif] Russell House. ... _
\ (Sﬁ“" b SLastle Pinckng
: -l%ng Ic
] -{uﬁ-‘g lbun Mansion
!

L= {
& Tribfte Point Gardens
3

appoo Creek Bridge

PR

7 "-.‘/",,‘;al,f _Charlest

National Country Club
il Creek

2000 Delorme. Street Atlas US4 © 2000 GDT, Inc,, Rel. 04/2000



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, 11, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 13

- AREA ANALYSIS

The City of Charleston in Charleston County, South Carolina is one of America's most historic cities,
having been incorporated in 1783. English colonists established the original settlement in 1670, under
a grant by Charles II, King of England, in whose honor the city was named Charles Towne. The center
of the city is located on a peninsula of land at the confluence of the Ashley and Cooper Rivers which

create a deep water harbor only five miles from the Atlantic Ocean.

Charleston County 1s one of three counties which makes up the Metro Region. This three county
metropolitan statistical area (MSA) includes Berkeley, Dorchester and Cﬁarleston Counties. In
reviewing the Charleston area economy, the Charleston MSA should be considered as one entity
because of the close physical and economic association of the counties. Charleston County is the
cultural and economic epicenter, Berkeley is the largest county geographically, and Dorchester is the
fastest growing county in South Carolina in regard to residential growth. The City of Charleston and

North Charleston are the two major urban areas within the Metro Region.

The Charleston MSA is not a regional distribution center because of the coast line limitation. However,
it is a major port ¢ity and has many amenities which contribute to the quality of life prevalent in the
area. These factors have resulted in a steady growth. Over the last two decades, the Charleston
Regional Development Alliance announced the relocation of over 100 existing companies and over
20,000 new, direct jobs to the Charleston area. Led by Boeing;s plant for sections of the newly
developed 787, and the recent announcement and construction start of a second assembly line for the

787 to supplement the Seattle plant’é production line and the 1990's Nucor's 500 million dollar steel

mill in Berkeley County, other new large scale developments include Amoco, Quoizel. And the 1980's
-1990's Belk Department Stores distribution warehouse, Saks Fifth Avenue, and Mikasa distribution

warehouse, which have fallen victim to the recession of the past four years.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, I, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate. Inc. 14

According to the Alliance, in the first half of 2004, 5 new companies had announced their relocation
to the area with a capital investment of $12.58+ million and 252 new jobs. In 1999, the Alliance
announced 16 new or expanded companies during the past year with a total capital investment of ovér
$314 million and 1,535 new jobs. ~ The last four years with the gradual, then rapid slowing of the
economy, has seen some indications of job availability with the closing of the Mikasa distribution
center and the layoffs at some plants including the American LaFrance plant and some other smaller

plants.

The economic development activity combined with the good seaport facilities and favorable business
climate, particularly the Boeing developments with over 7,000 new jobs with Boeing, and another 5,000
+supporting and spinoff operation jobs should altow for some continued growth in each of the region’s

£COonomic sectors.

Population
The Charleston County population growth between 1990 to 2000 was 5.1% compared to 8.3% for the

Metro area, and from 2000 to 2008, projected 12.3% compared to a Metro growth of 17.4%. The
population for the entire state from 1990 to 2000 grew from 3,486,703 to 4,012,012, or 15.1%, and in
2008 estimated at 4,479,800, or 11.7%. These -demographic growth rates bode well for a continuing
good economic climate for the Metro area. The population trends as prepared by the Center for

Business Research,

The greatest future growth is projected to occur in Berkeley and Dorchester Counties which are

obtaining a growing industriai base. However, the peninsula Charleston area has been the center of the

--financial-legal -community and is expected-to-continue-to-maintain-thisposition—The Federaland

County Courthouses and office buildings in downtown Charleston anchor a large satellite office area.
Hurricane Hugo in 1989 caused the County Court system to move temporarily to North Charleston, but
construction of a new Court Annex to the County Office Building near Broad, Meeting and King

Streets has been completed.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 25487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Tnc, 15

The 2000 Census population statistics show the current population for the Charleston MSA was
549,033. This represents an increase of 8.3% over the 1990 Census. 2008 estimate of 644,506

represents an increase of 17.4%.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAJI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 16

Economic - The Trident economy is heavily based on three major economic forces: (1) tourism, (2)

healthcare and (3) the port. These will be addressed briefly in order.

1. Tourism. In 2003 an estimated 4.06 million visitors came to the Charleston region for
conventions, recreation dr sightseeing, in 2009, 3.93 million, with a top in 2007 of 4.33 million.
The downtown area of Charleston dates back to 1680, with existing houses from the mid 1700's.
The old portion of Charleston has one of the best stocks of vintage architecture in the country,
and has received national recognition for preservation of the original character of the residential
areas. The City of Charleston, through police power and zoning, has encouraged restoration and
preservation of structures, neighborhoods and quality of life that offers visitors a view of past
eras. Other attractions include the beaches, museums, historic forts and plantations, parks,

gardens and wildlife refuges.

Tourism has an estimated $2.8 billion annual economic impact to the Charleston region that

provides over 94,000 direct and in-direct visitor related jobs in the local economy.

The average daily rate for hotels was $107.80 in 2001 and increased to $109.75 in 2002 and
then $105.72 in 2003, rate for 2004 was $112.67, 2005 - $128,61; 2006 - $138.89; 2007 -
$150.47. Occupancy rate has also increased from 67.3% in 2002 to 68.24% in 2003, 67.78% -
2004, 70.11% in 2005, 72.5% in 2006 and 73.5 in 2007 .

2. Healthcare - The Charleston region’s healthcare industry’s core is based with more than 2,000

- physician and ien primary care hospitals, which collectively employ approximately 17,000. 1 he

——restof the industry includes private medical offices, nursing and personal care services and
other healthcare organizations. By supporting 32,000 total direct jobs in the tri-county area, the
healthcare industry directly employs about one in ten of all workers in the region, confirming
it as one of the major economic engines. The region’s overall performance in 1999 led the

medical community to continue expanding to meet the healthcare needs of a growing

49%6 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 17

population. Since that time, CareAlliance Health Systems (the alliance of Roper and Bon-
Secours St. Francis hospitals) has constructed a 40,000 square foot medical center east of the
Cooper River in Mt. Pleasant, as well as adding an ambulatory surgical center in Moncks
Comer. On Daniel Island, Trident Health Systems has constructed a 40,000 square foot
outpatient medical center and has also completed a new center in the Moncks Corner area. The
Medical University of South Carolina welcomed a new president, Dr. Raymond Greenberg,
after the retirement of Dr. James Edwards, also a former governor of South Carolina. MUSC
is perhaps the hub of the entire medical industry economically, as it is the tri-county’s single
largest employer with over 10,000 employees at its colleges, medical service centers and
research facilities. A study of MUSC’s externally funded medical research in the Ch.a.rleston
area found that the research conducted under its auspices had an economic impact of over $131
million on the Charleston region.  The opening of the new MUSC hospital in early 2008
gréatly expands the medical capability in the area. There are new hospitals of Roper Saint
Francis and of Tenet East Cooper Hospitals with a opening for Roper at Carolina Park
scheduled Novemberl, 2010 and East Cooper adjacent to the existing campus of Von Kolnitz

opened in the spring of 2010 will greatly expand service for the East Cooper area.

Port Facilities

The Port of Charleston is the fifth busiest container port in the United States and ranks first on
the entire Southeast and Gulf Coasts. The Port has four intermodal facilities which handle
container, breakbulk, project cargo, heavy lift, refrigerated, barge service and ro/ro cargo. The
port terminals offer 18 container cranes and can accommodate 18 vesséls at a time. A fifth
terminal is currently being planned for construction on 1,300 acres at the old Charleston Naval

Base, centrally located in the Charleston region. ————— -

ORION is the S.C. State Ports Authority’s computerized document processing system which

allows 90% of cargo to be cleared before ships enter the port. U.S. Customs and the U.S.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IIT, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 18

Department of Agriculture, along with all types of port-related public and private entities are

linked to ORION, allowing for one of the fastest cargo clearance systems in the nations.

The Port of Charleston is the busiest of the three in South Carolina and is, in fact, the fifth
busiest in the entire nation when measured by twenty-foot equivalent unit (TEU) activity. In
2004 the South Carolina Ports Authority (SPA) served more than 2,503 ships and barges at its
. terminals in Charleston, Georgetown, and Port Royal was closed in early 2008. The Charleston
Port is the busiest container port along the Southeast and Gulf coasts. The SPA handled
1,884,000 TEU’s 2007; 1,694,000 TEU’s in 2008 and 1,368,000 TEU’s in 2009. Breakbulk
cargo decreased to 835,000 tons in 2009, down from 947,000 in 2008 and 1,235,000 in 2007.
In addition, the port owned grain elevator handled 68,400 tons of bulk shipments. Top
commodities across Charleston docks include foodstuffs, forest products, consumer goods,
machinery, metals, vehicles, chemicals and clay products. Accomplishments by the Port for its
future success include the completion in 2004 of the harbor deepening project that began in
1999 and deepened the inner harbor channels to 45 feet at mean low water, as well as their
investment of millions of dollars on equipment and existing facility improvements. Long-term
needs include preparing to permit a new three berth, 280-acre marine terminal at the former
Charleston Naval Base. The SPA also announced in 2007 The SPA condemned property for
a state port in Jasper County on the Savannah River. There an agreement in process for a
jointly operated port between South Carolina and Georgia. These achievements were crucial
in order to continue to support the existence of over 15,000 direct and indirect jobs in the
Charleston tri-county area and 83,000 jobs statewide. The upcoming challenge for the Port will
pe permit approval for the proposed Global Gateway tenﬁinal, which would be phased in over

the next 151020 years—The terminal is planned for the southernmost tip of The old Naval Base:

With the Port of Charleston’s continued success, the forecast is for the South Carolina. State

Ports Authority’s total tonnage to increase.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, IIT, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine. 19

Retail Trade - According to the South Carolina Tax Commission, retail sales have been as follows:

Annual Economic Indicators
Charleston Metro Area
Gross Retail Sales ($000
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Berkeley 2,792,175 2,916,269 2,774,618 . 3,338,564 3,717,958 4,010,417 N/A
Charleston 10,042,058 10,681,929 12,050,201 13,084,036 13,084,036 13,408,466
Dorchester 1,207,613 1,404,172 1,571,065 1,789,947 1,733,522 1,853,076
MSA 114,041,847 15,002,370 | 16,395,884 1 18,134,003 18,585,516 19,271,959 #
Increase ] J

Source: South Carolina Tax Commission Charleston Chamber of Commerce

EFmployment History

Emplovment History - Charleston MSA

| - Civilian Labor Foree - Emploved * * Unemploved

1996 244,320 233,090 11,230 4.6%
1997 262,450 256,256 6,194 2.4%
1998 262,620 255,860 6,760 2.6%
1999 266,420 258,040 8,380 3.1%
2000 282,490 276,010 6,480 2.3%
2001 281,840 272,350 9.490 3.2%
2002 268,344 256,189 12,155 4.5%
2003 278,825 264,212 14,613 5.2%
2004 288,507 273,061 15,446 5.4%
2005 296,690 - 280,730 15,960 5.4%

—— 2006 —304,527 289,018 15,509 —5.1% —

2007 313,324 298,998 14,326 4.6%
2009 322,308 290,964 31,344 9.7%

Source: South Carolina Department of Labor/Charleston Chamber of Commerce

Inerployment Rate

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadinalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompseon, 111, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 20

Income

Charleston County average household income grew from $18,305 in 1980 to $28,922 in 1990, an
mcrease of 58% for a ten year period or an average of 5.8% per year, This yearly increase is greater than
the rate of inflation. The average household income for Charleston County was $54,744 for 2003

according to sales and marketing management magazines survey of buying power.

According to the 2000 Survey of Buying Power, the Median Household income for the Charleston
MSA was $33,607 versus $32,285 in 1999 and the Average Household income was $40,600.
~ Approximately 25.7% of the households have incomes between $20,000-$34,999; 19.3% are between
$35,000 and $49,999; and 26.3% of the households in Charleston have incomes of over $50,000.

According to Charleston Regional Development Alliance in 2008 there were 237,004 households with

a median household income of $52,302 and an average household income of $70,143

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITT, MAI., Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 21

Construction - The total construction industry in the Metro area is reflected in the chart below:

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 . 2008
PERMITS
Single Family 3,784 3,139 4,984 5384 737,371 8,084 7.304 5,602 N/A
Multi Family 1,624 1,184 997 2,010 935 2,734 1,769 1,178
Total New 5,408 4.923 5,981 7,394 8,306 10,818 9,073 6,780 &
Residential
New Non 1,136 1,012 1,043 1,043 1,214 1,461 1,357 1,278
Residential
VALUE OF
CONSTRUCT
TON ($000)
Single Family 574,323 572,793 766,780 797,465 1,136,449 1,470,099 1,429,059 1,150,064
Multi Family 135,839 77,853 71,244 102,891 80,740 289,891 163,952 117,648
Total New 715,739 692,208 838,024 903,563 1,217,189 1,759,990 1,593,011 1,267,712
Residential
New Non 275,196 399,634 245,424 240,900 300,265 455,683 492,736 447,121
Residential
Total § Value * 1,189.8 1,050,279 | 1,215,133 1,302,023 1,791,296 | 2,406,938 2,336,767 1,849,658

09

*Includes new permits plus additions and alterations.

Source - Chamber of Cominerce

Housing

The increase from 1980 to 1990 was 31.6% and from 1990 to 2000 is 17.2%.

BERKELEY, DORCHESTER, CHARLESTON HOUSING UNITS

1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2008

Berkeley 9,732 . 16,240 31,775 45697 54,717 55326
 Dorchester 7,025 9,726 20,338 30,682 37,237 43414

Charleston ~ 61.951 77,067 99.764 123.550 141,031  138.264

Region 78,708 103,033 151,859 199,879 232,985 237,004

Source: 2000 Data based on information from the South Carolina Division of Research & Statistical Services, Statistical
Abstract, South Carolina Budget & Control Board

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 22

Higher Education
The MSA has varied educational facilities. The Medical University of South Carolina (MUSC)

located in Charleston was established in 1824 and was the first medical school in the south, with
approximately 2,400 students. It has six colleges and a 596-bed hospital. The Citadel (the Military
College of South Carolina with over 3,600 students), the College of Charleston/University of
Charleston (with over 11,500 students), and Charleston Southern University (formerly Baptist
College, with over 2,800 students) are three liberal art schools in the area. Trident Technical College
(with over 11,000 students) is operated by the State Board for technical education and is the primary
facility to train workers for industry located in South Carolina. TTC has developed a culinary
school to replace the Johnson & Wales closed in 2006. Other facilities include The Lowcountry
Graduate Center (a cooperative effort of The Citadel, The College of Charleston and MUSC),
Webster University, Miller-Motte Technical School, Limestone College (satellite facility), Embrey-
Riddle Aeronautical University, Charleston Schobl of Law (established 2004) and Charleston
School of Law. There is also Southern Wesleyan University in North Charleston and American
College of Building Arts, Centura College, ECPI College of Technology, Southern Tllinois
University, Strayer University, Troy University, Virginia College, and Voorhees College. The

enrollments total 34,879 undergraduate students and 7,027 graduate students.

General

As in most major seaport cities, the older industrial areas are found on the waterfront o;r majorrivers,
with newer development in industrial parks near primary arterial highways and the International
Airport in North Charleston. The main business community is located in the downtown area. The
peninsula city is a dense urban area with mixed uses of the seaport and business community, the

historic residential area and the educational-hospital complexes working together.

The upper metropolitan region contains numerous bedroom communities for the Charleston area.
Small towns such as Summerville, Goose Creek, Moncks Comer, Ladson, Hanahan, and outlying

unincorporated subdivisions have numerous single family home areas. The residents of these areas

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IIl, MAIL, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 23

mostly use Interstate 26 to commute to the urban employment centers. Most manufacturing concerns
are located north of Charleston in lower Berkeley and Dorchester Counties and especially in the

Summerville and Moncks Corner areas.

The Charleston economy appears to be stable and is expected, after the current economic downturn,
to have continued growth in the foreseeable future. The four basic factors influencing real estate
values, identified as social, economic, governmental and physical, all appear to be well balanced,

creating an overall stable real estate market in the Charleston area.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



'\_\ 1
W -

e
‘

P b

N
Tr of Commercg;-;g..




ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITl, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 25

NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS

The subject property is located in a neighborhood considered to be the area between Mary Street and
Huger Street, east of Meeting Street in the Peninsula City of Charleston. This area is generally
known as the Eastside The primary development in the subject neighborhood is low to mid density
residential properties, with some apartment buildings and neighborhood commercial and office uses.

To the east is the Maritime center of the Port of Charleston. To the south is the Wraggborough and
amix of upper leve] residential, office and commercial properties, to the west is the upper end of the
Central Business District and the Westside, and to the north is newer mixed development of the

early to mid 20" century.

The area originally was settled around 1800 and gradually expanded to cover the entire peninsula
up to Mt. Pleasant Street, by the 1920's. Harleston Village and Ansonborough were initially outlying
subdivisions of the City in about 1800. The area enjoys an average to slightly below average

reputation in comparison with the rest of the Charleston Metropolitan area.

The topography in the area is basically level with adequate drainage. The appraiser has not made any
study of the soil conditions in the area, however, his general knowledge of the area dictates that low
rise buildings with spread footings can be supported in many areas, but, any high rise construction
will require pilings to the marl, which varies from 20 to 70 feet below the surface. The appraiser

recommends soil tests before any major construction.
Utilities are available in the area as follows:

Power is provided by South Carolina Electric & Gas Company.

Water is provided by Charleston Water System. o
Sewer 1s provided by the Commissioners of Public Works, now called the Charleston Water
System.

Telephone service is provided by AT&T, formerly BellSouth.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. Q. Nick Thompson, ITT, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 26

This area has enjoyed a relatively stable real estate growth over the past 50 years and this trend is

expected to continue for the foreseeable future.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, IiI, MATL Anpraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 27

ZONING
The subject property is currently zoned DR2 - Diverse Residential by the City of Charleston

Planning and Zoning Board. This zoning designation is compatible with the current use of the

preperties in the area.

CENSUS TRACT AND FLOOD DATA

The subject property is located in Census Tract 4. F shown on Flood Map Panel 45019C 0512 ],
dated November 17, 2004. The subject property is in Zone AE elevation 13 meaning that the first
floor finished surface must be above 13 feet MSL. The property is in a flood Plain and subject to
flood in a severe weather situation like very heavy rain, and Hurricanes when well over several

inches of rain overwhelm the city drainage system, or storm surge hits.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carclina 29487



Page 1 of 1

Prepared for:
ACKRE-C.O. Mick Thompson. il }Al

220 Massau 5t
Charleston. SC 29403-5024

FLOODSCARE

irF- kcd Hazards Map

Map Humber
45018C0542)

Effective bata
Hovember 17, 2004

http://ﬂoodfnap.alamode.com: 8080/FloodScapelmage?customerNum=1&caption=ACRE-... 5/13/2011



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, 11T, MAJ, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 29

ASSESSMENT AND TAXES

Under the current Constitution and Statutes of the State of South Carolina, the assessment function
is in the hands of the County Assessor, except for industrial and utilities, which are assessed by the
South Carolina State Tax Commission. Valuationis based on use and/or market value with different

ratios for different classes of property.

Agricultural property is assessed at use value, upon approved application, with a four percént ratio

for private ownership or six percent for corporate ownership.

The primary residence is assessed at four percent upon application.

Industrial and utility properties are assessed at ten and one-half percent of the Tax Commission

appraised value.

All other property is assessed at six percent of market value,

The subject property is currently exempt as a government owned property. If taxable, it would be
based on a 2005 reappraisal. The assessment is based on a 6% ratio. The 2010 millage for the
subject's tax district was .2601, less a credit from a sales tax rebate begun in 1991 based on 0.00142
x appraised value for the City and County Levy. This is the cost of governmental operations. This

millage includes all of the governmental entities.

Due to increased cost of government, 2011 taxes are expected to be slightly higher.

There was a complete revaluation of the county for 2005. Values should approximate market values

and millage was adjusted for zero increase in tax base countywide. Recent legislation now require

revaluation every 5 years. The next anticipated revaluation is planned for 2011. Under current law,

owner occupied residential property is capped at a 15% increase in value for tax purposes

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITT, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 30

SITE DESCRIPTION

Location
The subject property is located at 220 Nassau Street, City of Charleston, Charleston County, South
Carolina. The property is 6 blocks northeast of the upper Charleston CBD.

Size. Shape and Access

The subject school site is rectangle in shape and contains approximately 1.90 acres, 82,823 square

feet.

Topography
The subject site is level and at grade with Nassau Street sidewalk. Drainage appears to be adequate.

Soils

As referenced previously, a report of subsurface soil conditions is not available. An inspection of
the property indicated that there were no apparent adverse soil conditions affecting the subject
property. The area is typically sandy loam soil, with a relatively high water table and several grand

trees.

Potential Environmental Hazards

A Phase I Environmental Assessment report was not furnished. In the absence of a Phase Ireport,
this appraisal assumes there are no potential environmental hazards present on the site that would

adversely affect the value. Please note the Limiting Conditions regarding this matter.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Seuth Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 31

Utilities
Utilities available to the site include electricity, telephone, and municipal water and sewer. Utilities
appear to be available in sufficient quantity to serve the existing school development, or virtually any

other use.

Summary
In conclusion, the subject site contains the necessary utilities and is of an adequate size and condition
to support current and similar demand usage. The physical and functional characteristics meet the

standards of the typical purchasers of this type of property in this area.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, 11, MAEL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc, 32

IMPROVEMENTS

The site is presently improved with 42,575 S.F. elementary school, 2 story, brick on concrete
foundation and slab, built up and Gable shingle roof.  The floor plan of the building is included.
and 1s typically functional for th¢ mid 1930's age. It was renovated in 2006, but, is not earthquake
reinforced. The building is approaching the end of its functional and economic life, and has been
taken out of service because it fails to provide a modern design and degrees of finish commensurate

with modern educational and is being excessed.

4996 Maybark Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Sonth Carelina 29487



400714

T;
.28

&

Oly 9079

Geol 118 980

SOdNY O

s

T
LITHT

4S5 G659

{1

NAIHOLIANY

ds Les

HALNID VIO3W

H4IHO Y

6

5L/

90/

——1

=

—

divy

1S 884

LO L

4S ¢¢8

T
LW.—._‘ EW_

3s_leg _\
CEL
HOVLS an
el
-

W13 JOA10—SHIUNYS




|

— | 7

[ S S | i ;

1 i N —— i
oL b oY R S

*m__.-%\’ﬁﬁ Sy - q l"%;l E
iR —
7 e A P

e d / i 4 yd 4 /'/ /’7 e :
// // // 4 // //'/

prommny

0G|

™~
N
ww2
|
!

S g

i /j// y ’ - / ]

7 $hre fo aubiTom QELO\‘J}/ g 1
e VA Ay g

J 894 SF ™

pr——;

Lt

il
i
' ! ]
: .
1% 217
ﬁ ‘ / 1
f - }
a & 5 |
J 891 SF S 928 5F ||
P #5338 SF . o |
i 205 HES | racuLty DISTRICT 20 BOARD BGOK 1 210
LOUNGE ROOM STORAGE | _
H - 3 B 207 5
7 L N N 1
3 1
' ™ - B0J S SN i
| 706 SF |2 690 SF |3 680 SF g”}
)
. Ky
206 7~



[ — . [ ——

[ ) . e
_‘ i i T _.m _, .I_A_ Ui.,i —— sti.!ﬂam_

T ] ol ]
©

o
£
et d

as Ll

-

Li ]

1

~

NG
-
\“\:"
Il

um Nm.,©ﬁ r ] h_m L_w f® e HS v/ wm\\
. 45 ¥6 NYD o

: T = = . pr— iow—)

[—

_7//

A " H e

) T




HOOS 191 3HlL _O

NG

dO074 dNOO3IS — ily '©H0d18

SNdAVD dIHOHY

~.
(0]
/
o
w

NO

51 3HL OL

e e e Zmy
&S 8697
Geel 118 90 )
SALNID VIOIN
@ s L e A g 1




ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson., 11I, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 33

HIGHEST AND BEST USE
The Appraisal Institute defines highest and best use as follows:

"That reasonable and probable use that supports the highest present value,
as defined, as of the effective date of the appraisal. Alternatively, that use,
from among reasonably probable and legal alternative uses, found to be
physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and which
results in highest land value."

The definition above applies specifically to the highest and best use of the land. Tt is to be
recognized that in cases where a site has existing improvements on it, the highest and best use may
very well be determined to be different from the existing use. The existing use will continue,
however, unless and until land value in its highest and best use exceeds the total value of the

property in its existing use.
The four essential criteria for use under this concept were considered in the sequence shown below:

1. Physically possible uses were considered in terms of the size, shape, land area and
topography. Also considered were the availability of public utilities.

2. ,Legally permissible uses were considered. These result from such limitations as
those imposed by private deed restrictions, zoning, building codes and environmental
regulations. '

3. Financially feasible uses are those uses that meet the conditions imposed by the two

previous criteria and which may be expected to produce a positive financial return.

4. Maximally Productive use is that which among the highest financially feasible uses
provides the highest rate of return, or value (given a constant rate of return).

Generally accepted professional appraisal practice dictates that in appraising improved property, the
highest and best use be estimated under two different premises. First, the highest and best use of the
site as if the site were vacant and available for development must be estimated. The second analysis
estimates the highest and best use of the property as presently improved, if improved, which is not

the case in this analysis.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. Q. Nick Thompson, Iil, MAJY, Appraisals. Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 34

Highest and Best Use of the Site. Vacant

The highest and best use of the subject site will be discussed in terms of its physical, legal and

feasible uses. Then the maximum productive use of the site is analyzed.

Physical Use of the Site. As mentioned in the Description of the Site the subject property is 1.90

acres, rectangular in shape to accommodate the typical site for a building. The sites are not limited
in its development except by size. The soil conditions appear acceptable, and most any type of
development is possible. Therefore, the site is not physically restricted except by size, and most any
use is physically possible within size constraints. The site individually offer potential of residential

redevelopment, or the whole site works for a similar use as it is currently used,

Legal Use of the Site. The subject property is currently zoned as DR2 diverse residential, by the

City of Chatleston. As mentioned in the Zoning section of this report this zoning allows single and
limited multiple family residential and supporting uses, including schools as a permitted use.

Therefore, these are the legally permissible uses of this property.

Financially Feasible Uses of the Site. The feasible uses of a site are determined not only by its

physical and legal constraints, but also by current market conditions. As previously noted, although
the site is not restricted physically, except by size, it is legally restricted to use as diverse or, single
family development, or school use. Since the use as a school is physically deficient under current

standards, an alternate use as a social services, or similar use site is reasonable.

Maximally Productive Use. The highest and best use of the land is that use from among the
financially feasible uses that provides the highest rate of rettun (or value), vsually ~ver the long term.
Since the most financially feasible use of the site is service, or similar, this is the maximally

productive use as if vacant, and redevelopment of the site as improved.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O, Nick Thompson. HI, MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine, 35

LAND SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

The most universally accepted method of valuing vacant land is by comparison with properties that
have recently sold in the competing marketplace, with adjustments for differences to estimate the

value that the subj ect property would have sold.

'The appraiser has researched the sales that have occurred in the area and has selected the sales listed

on the following pages as the most comparable.

Discussion of Adjustments:

Time - prior to 2007, value growth in the area was in the range of 10% per year. With the economic
downturn in late 2007 and 2008, magnified in later 2008 by the credit crunch, and possible gains in
early 2007 have been offset.

Location - location os a subjective adjustment to reflect the market acceptance of the location of the
sale and the subject property appropriate adjustments are made, as necessary. Sales used are from
the Fastside area which has distinct sub-markets above and below Lee Street. Values drop
dramatically as one moves north. The Subject is in the middle of the transition as evidenced by the
last sale, Drews Court on the same tax map with the subject, and midway between the values of the

Columbus Street sales and Cedar Street Sales.

Size - there 1s little or no adjustment necessary for size of land unit value, as the sales are relatively

close and the unit values are typically consistent. Location is a more significant consideration.

Based on the followjing analysis of these sales, it is the opmnion of the appraiser that the subject
property should sell for $11.00 per Square foot for a typical lot.  The subjrect parcels are all very
regular and front streets so that any subdivision would only require a survey and plat, estimated at
5% plus an allowance of 10% entrepreneurship and 15% time cost of money discount. Allowing

30% cost to subdivide, the net land value would be $7.70/SF. This would produce the low side of

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, I, MAY Appraisals, Counseling & Reaj Estate, Inc. §§

value estimate compared to a total sale @ $11.00/ ST, top side estimate producing a value range for

the subject land of:
SUMMARY OF LAND VALUE Realistic estimate
459-05-01-067, 82,823 SF = $637,737 - $911,053 $800,000

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, I{I, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine.

Land Comparables Table

TMS #

4590101056
4590101058
4590504151
4390504010
4590504301
4590903020
4590002131
4590903046
4590902142
4550903037
4590504041
4590504108

4590501054

ADDRESS

15 CEDAR

i1 CEDAR

67 HANCVER

101 AMERICA

58 HANOVER

33 REID

69 AMERICA

62 SOUTH

74 AMERICA

4 HANOVER

46 AIKEN

80 HANOVER

14 DREWS CT

DATE
09,2005
05,2007

06,2007

06,2009

04,2006
04,2009
i2,2006
06,2005
06,23005
11,2007
03,2008
09,2005
05,2005

02,2007

SALE PR.
$22,000
$15,000
$65,000
$44,560
$80,000
$71,000
$70,000
$58,000
$50,000
$50,000
$40,000
340,000
$33,000

$30.000

AREA
3,600
3,000
2,080
2,600
3,300
3,300
4,114
4,400
2,976
2,838
2,838
2,614
2,240

2,520

SP/SF
$6.11
$5.00
$31.25
$17.11
$24.24
$21.52
$17.01
$13.18
$16.80
$17.62
$14.09
$15.30
$14.33

$11.90G

COMPARISON
LOC, TIME +45%

LOC, CONDIT. +55%

LOC, -10%

SHAPE, TIME +20%

TIME +20%

TIME ADJT = 0.9%/MO
TIME +20
TIME +20%

LOC  +35%

ADJ SP/SF
$8.26
$7.75
$31.25
$17.11
$24.24
$19.36
$17.01
$15.81
$20.16
$17.62
$17.62
$18.36
$17.68

$16.07

49%6 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Scuth Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, O, Nick Thompson, I11. MAL Appraisais, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 33

COST APPROACH TO VALUE

The major premise of the Cost Approach is that no prudent purchaser would pay more than the cost
to acquire a similar site and construct a functionally equivalent building with allowance for

depreciation.

In the case of this appraisal, the subject property is a relatively old school building, +/-75 years old,
which has functional and economic obsolescence the improvement. Although the current use of the
property is moderately functional for a school building, market usability would dictate that the

design create a functional and economic adjustment in addition to physical depreciation.

Depreciation attributable to the property includes physical wear and tear. Replacement cost, less
depreciation, plus land value and entrepreneurial risk and profit equate to the value indication by the

Cost Approach.

The appraiser has relied on Marshall Valuation Service, a nationally recognized cost manual, which
the appraiser has found to be very reliable in the Southeastern market. During the 1970's, the
appraiser had the opportunity to crosscheck this cost service against actual bid construction for
shopping centers and warchouses constructed for Sears Roebuck & Comipany throughout the
southeast. In all instances, the computed cost was within 5% of the actual cost. Additionally, the
appraiser has on occasion checked the manual against actual construction costs in the Charleston area
over the past decade. Therefore, the appraiser feels very comfortable with the accuracy of the cost

estimate.

The appraiser considered the subject building to be class C average quality school building ( Section
18- C-average. The Base cost per square footis $122.94/S.F. Adjustments for perimeter is 0.904,
time at 1.02, and location at .88 are necessary. The adjusted cost per square foot is $99.76. The

subject has 42,575 square feet for a reproduction cost of $4,247,282

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carelina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson. ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine. 39

The .appraiser estimates, based on an inspection May 12, 2011, that the depreciation applicable to
the subject property is approximately 80%, or $3,397,825. The depreciated value of the
improvements is $849,456. Site improvements and recreation equipment are not included. This is
the cost to create the property with allowance for depreciation. Realistically, any developer who
considers creating a property such as the subject would require an allowance for entrepreneurial risk
and profit to go into the deal. This is compensation for the risks and aggravations associated with
the construction and lease up to create and operate investment property. The appraiser considers a
10 % allowance for entrepreneurial risk and profit to be reflective of the market. The indicated value
of the improvements is $849,456/0.90 = $943,840. Add the value of the land, $800,000, for a
total value of $1,743,840, rounded to $1,740,000. This value is subject to error as the estimate of

depreciation is not reliable.

4996 Maybzank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, TIT, MAI Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 40

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

The basic premise of the sales comparison approach is that a property will sell in relation to what
other similar properties have sold, with adjustments for any differences. School sales are few and
far between, so a national search is necessary to find sufficient sales to make an estimate of value
for the subject property. A review of all the located sales, shown on the table following this section,
- shows that properties of age tend to decline in value significantly as the functional aspects of
buildings change, and depreciation takes a toll. One of the most significant variables to value is
relative land value. Since a determination of the local land value of the sale is virtually impossible
to accurately determine, sales are selected for comparison that have a similar surrounding economic
environment.  Sales of similar age are most reflective of property value for the subject. A study
of these sales indicate that the 75 year old subject, renovated in 2006, but, not earthquake protected,
should sell for in the range of $30.00 per square foot, The subject property has 42,575 SF for a
maximum potential value of $1,277,250, rounded to $1,280,000.

Indicated property Value:

ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED AND EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS
$1.280,000

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



NAONIND

NAMONNN

SHIAVY3T ONNOA TSEdWVO - H3ANE

SHWOH ALINONNIW ANYTHIAYIM A LHONOE

MNVE LSNHL NNS A8 LHONOE 44 3TvS ANV &
FOFVI00 LE1LdYE ¥YIN'HOUNHO 1SILdva AB LHONOA
NAMOL A8 LHONO8

TYLIdSOH YvaN DNITING "HOL20d A8 LHONOE
TOOHIS SNINIOrady OL NOISNVdX3 AN HOL LHONoE
NAMOL A8 LHDNO"Y

AINNYOILNYNOY3Y HOd LHONOg

TO0HIS Ol 41O NYILSIHHD WOWL 031Y3ANOD BNIFg
35N WILNIQISTHE ATIAVSIL TN OL O3LY3IANOD ONI3]
NMONYNM

NAMONYNA

HONYHE Q0¥ OLY3Nd 40 AINN HO4 LHONOE HOWNHD
NMONMNN

38N JNYS Y04 d10S TOOHIS ¥ HOHNHOD

HILNID ALINNWWOD OL d3LYIANOD ONIZg
NAONMNN

ALIMIDYH 2HY0 OL O3143ANCD ONIZE

ALMIDYH IUYO WH3L ONOT 0L O3LY3IANCD ONIZE
SOONQD OL J3LHIAANCD ONIZg

LNIANOD OL O3 LH3IANOD

38N 1YNOILYDN03 g3aNNILNOD ¥4 d3sYHONNd

38N YNOILYONA3 QANNILNOD Y04 Q3svHOHNd

23N TYNOILYONA3 A3NNILNOD ¥Od a3sYHONNd
33N HOYUNHD Y04 d3svHOHNd

35N IYNOLLYONA3 GINNILNOD ¥04 a3svHOdNd
38N TYNOLLYONA3 Y04 3SYHIHNd

38N HOY¥NHO HO4 a3svHIHNd

LSNITYNOILYONAT 3S3ANVAYT HO4 A38vYHOUNd
38N TWNOILYONA3 QINNLLNOD HO4 3svYHOHNd

38N TWNOILYDONA3a d3NNILNOD HOo4 a38vyHONENd

LNIWNYIACS FLVLS AG A3SYHOUN

SLINM 'S3H PL OL NOISHIANOD HOd A3svHORENd

O3Z[I¥ANYA 'ASLdNEMNYE NI 100HIS

ANIWNYIACS 3LVLS Ag 380 301440

380 INFWNHIACD

381 70CHDS 03NNILNCD

SN TYNOLLYDNAT AINNILNOD HO4 A38YHOUNd
SLINIWWOD

£2'8E

a4
fot-]
8
06
el
ol
gL
Co-
8t
A4
FA4
Pe
Eoid
Bl
€L
PE
Ll
1%
8%
at
gE
Q8
18
98
98
S6
69
66
\g
P
8
£Z
€9
g2
LL
122}
gL

B9
6l
44
0z
61
43

ITWs@3aoyY 24078 48/

WIN

87°2es

00°0%

9£'68%
68'12$
[ TA
z28'04%
cL'eols
L1°088
62858
£Ti8
29'66%
D6'EPS
P0'gE
0EELS
veres
50'9Lg
068'ZLE
¥L0Z8
0g'es
00°0¢
00'0$
or'0ze
ye'as
£8°6%
8€°05%
00'a%
0E'LLS
ao'os
03'0%
0008
00'0$
19628
£T'6L8
68'0E$
00°0%

PE'GES

96'F$
BLBLE
88°5
DOELS
SE'BES
PN
00'LZE
2668
000§
61123
£6'ZZE
9£'698
68'L.2¢
z8'L02¢
z8°04%
Z1'a0L%
Ly'0BS
62'85%
8FLLE
18'89L%
0B'EhE
¥0'6%
9162
EbLE8
BZ'LL8
yi'pLS
LLLES
L Z'Es
52018
E6'1Zs
E8'PZH
95'9%
OE'GLS
16108
aL'les
ZorLE
89'LES
|2°8zs
FLLES
LLG18
LE'LES
06'9Z%
Zh'Bp
9Z'8¢%

SIOVHIAY

0%

000'62k'2%
000'SLpS
000'022'2%
Q00'0r6'LS
000'00€'+$
000'090'e$
000'00L'v3
000'GLES
000'0r8'Z$
000'00Z°e$
ZLE'0OYS
£15'0869
000'229'Z8
000'9L9'sE
000'818'78
000'098'LS
000°'000'2%
WIN

YIN
000'6598
'L LES
000'SZH LS
000'009'5%
WiN
008'262'LS
WiN

WIN

VIN

WIN
000'L2Z'}S
000'SLLE
000'05/%
WiIN

000'861'Z4

0oo'saL$
000'098 14

000'DLL'LE
000'LLE'LS
000'PEPS
000°'PEVS
000'086¢
000'008'e$

000'LPLS
000'9E$
D00'SZ8%
000'00F' 28

000'F LS

nav‘eLzs
000'S8Z$
000'05¥S$

000'085%
000'06v%
000'698%
000'ZZES
000'059%
000’0528
000'005%
000'007%
000'86¥'Z$
0006998
001'S6Z' 4%
000'sZY'2e
000'SL¥S
000'0zZ'28
000'0F6' LS
000'00E"' &
000'060'c%
0D0'00L'#S
000'005%
000'00§'v$
000'002'E
ZiE'oors
£l5'or0'ze
000'000'P%
000'050'5%
000'056'r$
000°'098'2$
000'005's%
000'0gES
000'009'Z$
000'008%
EvP'Lrbd
000'084'L8
000'000'8%
000'050'1$
008°902'L$
000'+00'L4
000'062'+5
000'5£98
000'039%
000'008' 1S
000°000'S
000'002'L%
000'00}°L§

SE'0L}
840'9Z
294'LpL
9LL'YT
BBY'SZ
808'pE
Z8'ez
L09'EE
000'0}
UE'LE
TLp'9g
£96'7E
004’12
000'L)
96822
rIE'LL
006'LE
0EQ'08
[eteion
003'9z
008'24
1Zv'ss
£4B'69
698'90}
000'05E
000'05€
00.'68
671'LZT
599'ze
00€'v0L
ELZ'ZE
556'5Y
L6E'PLL
094 bLE
9Zi'eE
LBE'PLL
865'LE
B¥L'zal
00L'Le
52T Ly
S06' Ly
TiL'iE
08Z'¥Z
968'8¢

S86k

0002
0961

ys6L
0661
066l
6961
S.6L
0961
rB6L
1881
L6l

0961

981
896G
£Z61)
0Z6 L
861
9064
SEBL
2061
0461
6561
8864
06l
0561
G861
LL6L
0461
L8GL
LB6L
8561
€861
286l
0Z6L
Zlel
OE6L
0061
00861
§T6L
§681
EVGL
oveL
Sa6l
046l
o113
9861
ozsl
0e6 1
(A%
ANN
LzélL
Ligl
8964
6861
LBBL
¥S61

WLIOL 4S8 INTYADQTE INTYA ANYT 3218d 3TvS Id Y3y ©Q78 dILYAONTY 20A

08IM6  LloZ
YiN Loz
WiN ooz
BEVBFES 0L0Z
+EEL00'S080 600T
YN 80027
VIN 2002
WiN 3002
005'9694 8002
\ZoB6YS  B00Z
YLBLZZ 5002
BOZ0'EZL6 POOZ
YIN #00Z
WiN 00z
¥IN p00Z
WIN vaoz
wiN $00Z
YIN £002
WiIN zoonz
wiN ooz
WiN 000Z
wiN pooz
¥PL'LEEN  GBBL
YIN 9661
YIN 966+
YIN 5661
YIN FEBL
YIN ¥6B1
wiN v661
WiN 2661
WiIN £661
WIN £661
WIN 2661
YIN 1861
YN LBBL
YIN 188
YIN 0GB
ViN 0661
WiN 0651
wiN 065}
wiN 086k
YiN 8861
WiN 9881
iN 9881
Od'aa

wd

AN

IMvsoalva LS

NATAOOHH
ITTNANTIHD
ITUANTIHD

V.ivdHd3
IATNAHSYN
H00d 371011
0d0dsqdig
HOOH I1LLN
ANVSYId LN
ACr LNNOW
HO8 ¥NO.LAYa
YIZWNI00
Fasine
Xvddiv4
NOLSHHYIO
Advd HILNIM
1WA
a713lddiv4

JTNASINGT

Y.LLIEYIN
A1ASINOT
ANYETY MIN
NOLS3TdYHO
NOLdWYH N

SHYIWAT
HOSANIM MaN
HLASHOS

00 NOLSNOH
NMOLNITTY
YOOONYLLYHO
ANVETY
ITUAHSY
HOAMNIHD
SML YIAONYH

HIVIDLNOW
YA NITI0D
LaHI Ly
1HOd3IAIHHS
odoasaioo
LNVEY3Td LW
NOLSITHYHO
vIiann1oo
ALID

ANNIAY HdTVA Laz

HOS W33 INCD Wed
H2S 3700IW ¥3MEYd WHL
133418 31ddY L0EL
3Hld 3TTASHEYID 808t
133HLS HLEE M LLE
vel3Llnoyd

133418 Ad3Llva 0bve
TI¥H ONYIQ00M

QY QHYHOHO 00¢

4 SI¥HOW 30470 S 008
T0O0HIS 183404 N3 19
AWIAYIY STIONY ATOH
LHNOD ONIXM H3ATS
OvOH TvIYULNOW

04 48 TIIMOH oosy
2AY HLZLL MmN L09Z
avod SIHHOW

AHVYZOH ATOH

QY A¥H3d NOSNHOr
T139X3 40 AW3av OV

1S ON(YdS '3 08 379aIn
TYNOILYDOA AVHHnin
WES BLYINDYINWIL AYYI
AINM YYALLSIM
323703 ANVHdId3
39371700 L4IL
AUYLNIWINS SYINOHL
TI00 NYATTSIM QILINA
SAYOHSSONHD IHL

H3$ ¥HO ALH3HDNOA
T10CHOS N3ddIT N3g
JOQHOS LIVUIAVYT

3AY ANYTHOIH St
39371102 "W SINOLvg
18 3A0HO 29t L

7700 AFTT¥A NIO10D
IAY INIHSHI

SAHIY QVOYE §Zrs

10D ALINOWIWOD INAVM
TOOHOS ¥34000 18v3
d3Hd NOSYW

T00H38 W33 NOSN3g
AWYN T100HDS

HOHV3S JAIMNOILYN ‘S37¥S TOOHIS - Y.LV 1IMyvin

44
tF
44
34
or
=13
8e
LE
£y
SE
PE
£E
A%
Le

62
8T
4
9z
se
4
EZ
Frd
1
aT
Gl
gl
L
9t
St
FL
£
cl
b
ot

TN YOO o

on



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IT1, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.
Cornelius Owen Thompson, I, MAIL SRPA, SRA :
4996 Maybank Highway Born: December 10, 1942
Wadmalaw Island, S.C. 29487 Phone: (843) 762-5722, Fax 843-762-5723
Email - Nick@acrecot3.com
Certified General Appraiser: South Carolina #CG 85
Education
B.S. Degree - Economics
College of Charleston
Charleston, South Carolina 1964
Professional Studies:
Building Cost Estimating - TEC 1970
AIREA:
Course ] - Appraising - University of Georgia 1968
Course Il - ncome Problems - University of Georgia 1969
Course IV - Condemnation - University of Chicago 1971
Course VI - Advanced Capitalization - University
of Indiana 1973
Course IX - Apprajsal Review - Tulane University 1974
Course VII - Industrial, Chicago, Illinois 1977
Course VI - Investment Analysis, Boca Raton
College Audit 1980
Course X - Market Analysis, Univ. of GA Audit 1985
Standards of Professional Practice 1686,1991,1995,2001
Course IAl - Instructor Audit 1986
Demonstration Appraisal Commercial Retail 1974
Demonstration Appraisal Residential 1975
Course IBA, Instructor Audit and Exam 1990
Course IBB, Instructor Audit 1990
Various Seminars 1970-2002
Appraisal Institute:
Course 520 - Admissions Audit and Exam 1993
TAAO:
Income Approach to Value 1969
Narrative Report Writing 1971
Society of Real Estate Appraisers: '
Examination 101 1975
R-2 1975
201 1975

Licensed Real Estate Broker - State of 8.C.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, O. Nick Thompson, 111, MAI. Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 42

C.0. Thompson, HI. MAIL. SRPA. SRA Continued
Prior Experience:

Operations Director for R.E. Developer 1966-67
Commnercial and Subdivision Properties:
Appraiser, Appraisal Supervision - Charleston 1967-75

County Assessor's Office - Appraised and Reviewed

all types of commercial, residential and Special

Purpose Properties using all approaches to value.

Manager, Property Taxes, Sears Roebuck & Company 1975-1978
Appraised for Ad Valorem Tax various types of
Commercial and Industrial Distribution Property,
Consultant for Real Estate Department

Appraisal, Real Estate Consultant 1976-

President, Attaway Leinbach Thompson & Assoc. 1978-1981
Partner, Attaway Thompson and Associates 1981-1987
Parfner, Attaway Thompson Jeffers & Associates 1987-1989
President, Attaway Thompson Jeffers & Assoc.,Inc. 1990-1993
President, Attaway Thompson McCall & Assoc., Inc 1994-1995
President, Attaway Thompson & Associates, Inc. 1995-1997
President, Attaway Thompson McCall & Assoc., Inc. 1998-2002
President ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, 11T, MAI 2002-

Valuation of all Types of Income Producing
Properties, Land Market and Feasibility
Studies, and Real Estate Counseling on all

types of Real Estate
Professional Associations:
Member, Appraisal Institute, (MAI, SRA) 1991
Chairman, Body of Knowledge Committee 1994
General Admissions Committee-Vice Chairman 1993
Member, Body of Knowledge Committee 1992,1995-1997
Liaison General Admissions Committee 1592
Liaison Admissions Co-Ordination Committee 1992
Member, General Adimissions Committee of the
General Appraisal Board 1991-1992
Approved Faculty, Principle and Procedures 1991
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser,
State of South Carolina, Certificate Mo. CG 85- 1991-Present
Approved Instructor Pre-Licensed 1, 2, and 3 1991-1993
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser,
State of North Carolina, Certificate No. A1793- 1991-Present
State of Georgia, Certificate No. 002031 1991-1994
1997-2003 Dropped no use
State of Virginia, Certificate No. 4756 1998 -2003 Dropped no use

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Ysland, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C,. O. Nick Thompson, JIL, MAL, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc, 43

C.0. Thompson, III. MAT SRPA. SRA. Continucd

American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers - MAI 1977
Member, Industrial Examination Committee 1978-1979
Sub-Committee Chairman, Industrial Examination- 1980-1982
National Board of Examiners - Examinations,

Assistant Chief Examiner 1983,1984
Chief Examiner 1985,1986
Member, National Admissions Committee- 1983,1985,1986,1990
Body of Knowledge Committee 1986
Member, National Admissions Appeal Board 1987-1990
Vice Chairman 1989
Chairman 1990
Member, 5 Point National Admissions Task Force- 1988
Member, National Education Task Force 1589
Instructor Panel National Education Committee
IA Course Series 1987-1990
Contingent Faculty SPP 1987-1990
Member of Governing Council 1988-1989
Society of Real Estate Appraisers - SRPA, SRA
Chapter 122, President 1979-1981
Member, Demonstration Grading Committee 1976-1981

South Carolina Association of Assessing Officials -
Past Secretary, Treasurer and Vice President

Greater Charleston Board of Realtors of National
Association of Realtors

Education Committee 1981-1982
Legislative Committee 1984-1986
Member of Board of Directors 1982-1983
South Carolina Association of Realtors -
Legislative Committee 1982-1987
Member State Board of Directors 1982,1983,1985
Primary Work Focus

General commercial, industrial and special purpose properties, with in-depth knowledge anid
research in golf course, hotel and motel, hospital and contaminated property valuation.

Over the years, I have spent significant time valuing properties for acquisition by
condemnation, both for the condemnor and condemnee, and valuation for tax appeals.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Rea] Estate, Inc. 44

C.0. Thompson, III. MATL SRPA, SRA. Continued

General Client List

Numerous local and regional banks, and other lending institutions, investment groups and
individuals. Local, state and national government agencies, including City and County of
Charleston and their Housing Authorities, Charleston County School Board, Mt. Pleasant
Water & Sewer Authority, James Island PSD, City of Hollywood, St. Stephens, SCDOT,
Right of Way acquisition resolution, College of Charleston, Trident Tech, US Government
Departments of: Navy, Interior, Justice, and Post Office, covering counseling and valuation
for general acquisition and disposal of properties in fee simple and easements for power,
water, sewer, drainage, and road right of ways.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



SCHOOL DIS RICT

R

5

(SRR
-

1, 5

')
.‘A ﬂ.l

F&
29

M U’,

alh
ariestor

i

BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael F. Bobby
DATE: January 23, 2012

SUBJECT: Adoption of Revised Methods for Handling Surplus, Grounds and
Facilities

Recommendation: [t is hereby recommended that the Charleston School
District Board of Trustees adopt the revised practices and pracedures for the
District's handling of surplus inventory of grounds and/or buildings. See
attached.

The material submitted for: [ Action " Information
"] Open " Executive

%, 7 o
I . : :{.- e _:{((4 .
Nancy J. Mch!ey Ed.D Michael L. Bobby, -
Superintendent of Schools Chief of Finance, Operatlonb &

Human Resources

N/A
William H. Lewis
Chief Operations Officer

4% ) . X Item voted on and
) U\ULJ rit W) ‘ﬁfat_\ ~ recommended for Board
ndy Bohn Coats - Chair by A&F Committee on

Audit & Finance Committee Lor 1:25-12 e



Finance & Operations
January 23, 2012

TOPIC: Adoption of Revised Methods for Handling Surplus, Grounds and
Facilities

BACKGROUND:

Dating back to 2009, part and parcel to the adoption of the budget for fiscal
year 2009, direction was given by the Board to develop & sustainable
funding system for operating the schools of Charleston County. One of the
strategies adopted at the time was to strategically utilize surplus assets to
generate a positive revenue stream for the District as opposed to a negative
revenue stream which occurs when a building is shuttered and/or
underutilized.

Since that time, the Board adopted a set of practices and procedures that
District staff would follow supporting the Board’s directive in this regard.
Also after this adoption, we have continued to evolve with respect to the
utilization and/or determination of use for surplus inventory of buildings
and/or grounds.

DISCUSSION:

In the past several months, as we continued to analyze the inventory of said
assets, we have utilized legal counsel (Lynn Crooks) to help analyze our
options with respect to several pending land/building issues. (You may
recall that we have had discussions with the Board in the past six months
with respect to interest by the College of Charleston in some of the property
on the Memminger site as well as discussions about 11 2 St. Phillip Street.).
As we consider what would be in the District’'s best interest with respect to
the procedures to be used in dealing with different types of business
opportunities and strategies, our legal counsel has helped to revise our
methodclogies and ensure that we are within the statutory requirements
that govern these transitions while at the same time ensuring the Board and
staff have maximum flexibility within the statutory requirements to establish
the best terms and return for the District.

Attached, you will find both the original set of practices and procedures that
was adopted on October 26, 2009 as well as the version being recommended
for approval at this time.



RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston School District Board of
Trustees adopt the revised practices and procedures for the District's
handling of surplus inventory of grounds and/or buildings. See attached.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:

The future fiscal impact is not able to be given in an estimated return in
terms of hard dollars. However, the outcome of the ability to utilize the
greatest degree of flexibility with respect to generating the strategies that
are in the best interest of the School District will have a positive short and
long term fiscal impact for the District.

DATA SOURCES:

Lynn Crooks
Michael Bobby
Troy Williams

PREPARED BY:
Michael Bobby

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:

Lynn Crooks
REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A




TOPIC: REVIEW OF CCSD SURPLUS BUILDING AND LAND MANAGEMENT

PROCEDURES

BACKGROUND:

On October 26. 2009, the Board of Trustees established certain procedures for the disposition of school
facilities and properties cuwrrently not being used for educational purposes. The imention of the Board of
Trustees was to provide a means of restoring the District’s fund balance. achieve maximum economic
benefit from its real property assets and be fully accountable for the handling of public assets and funds

through a transparent and well-documented process.

While considering all of the existing land/building asset opportunities. the District has identified current
procedures which have conflicting provisions and also limit the District’s statutory powers to dispose of
properties for less than tair market value if’ deemed by the Board of Trustees to be in the best interest of

the District and on terms other than a bid or auction process,

South Carolina Code of Laws Section 39-19-250 (1976. as amended) provides as follows:

The school trustees ot the several school districts may sell or lease school property, real or
personal. in their school district whenever they deem it expedient to do so and apply the
proceeds of any such sale or lease to the school fund of the district. The consent of the county
board of education...shall be first obtained by the trustees desiring to make any such sale or

lease.
The South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (SC Code of Laws. Section 30-4-40(3)) provides an

exemption from disclosure as follows:

(3) Documents of and documents incidental to proposed contractual arrangements and
documents of and documents incidental to proposed sales or purchases of property; however:

(a) these documents are not exempt from disclosure once a contract is entered into or the
property is sold or purchased except as otherwise provided in this section;



(b)a contract tor the sale or purchase of real estate shall remain exempt from disclosure until the
deed is executed, but this exemption applies only to those contracts of sale or purchase where
the execution of the deed occurs within twelve months trom the date of sale or purchase:

(¢} confidential proprietary information provided to a public body for economic development or

contract negotiations purposes is not required 1o be disclosed

The Freedom of Information disclosure exemption coupled with the broad powers of discretion

.

eranted to the Board of Trustees of the District to sell or lease school property “whenever they deem
it expedient to do so” provide the Board with great flexibility in the process of disposing of its real
properties, 11 it were 10 take a similar approach as the Budget and Control Board of the State of
South Carolina in the provisions regarding the disposal of surplus real estate, the Board would have
the discretion to determine. on a case by case basis, the method of disposal to be used. “Possible
methods include: auction. sealed bids, listing the property with a private broker or any method

determined ....lo be commercially reasonable considering the nvpe and location of property

involved™ (SC Code of Laws Section |-11-58).

DISCUSSION:

The strategy outlined below details what is intended to be improved alternative processes for the benefit
of the District’s sale and/or leasing of properties owned by the District which vary depending on whether
the Board of Trustees determines to offer such propertyv(ies) for sale or lease 1o the public or for private
sale or leasing.

I Private Sale or Leasce. or Private Exchange of Property.

A. Superintendent and District Staff comprised of Chief” Operating Officer for Capital
Programs. Chief of Finance. Operations. and Human Resources Officer and Directlor of
Operations. Planning & Systems Improvement (“Staft™) will identify, on an annual basis.

the real property. defined as land. buildings and other improvements attached or aftixed

4



to the land (“Real Property™) that is no longer needed by the Charleston County School
District (“District”) and not likely 1o be needed in the future.

B. Staff will obtain an appraisal of the Real Property (if an appraisal has not been made
within 6 months) from a South Carolina licensed MAI appraiser and. if applicable, an
appraisal of the property. real or personal. to be acquired in exchange

¢, One of the three Staff members will present to the District’s Board of Trustees (~“Board™)
a legal description of the Real Property, a copy of the appraisal (or both appraisals, it
applicable) and a recommendation © disposc of the Real Property by private sale or

lease,

D. If the Board votes to sell or lease the Real Property by private means, the Board shall
specify the terms of sale or lease including but not limited 10 the range of rental amount
and renewal options, if the Real Property is to be leased. and the range of purchase price.
closing date, listing of the Real Property with a licensed South Carolina real estate broker
or direct negotiation with interested parties, or an exchange with the owner(s) ol the
identitied exchange propertv(ies) if the Real Property is o be sold (“Private Terms of
Sale/l.ease™) and shall authorize the Staft o proceed with the private sale or lease
process,

Public Sale or Leas¢

A, Superintendent and Staft” will identify. on an annual basis. the Real Property that is no
longer needed by the District and not likely to be needed in the future.

B. Staff will obtain an appraisal of the Real Property (if an appraisal has not been made
within 6 months) from a South Carolina licensed MAI appraiser.

C. One of the three Staft members will present to the Board a legal description of the Real
Property. a copy of the appraisal and a recommendation to dispose of the Real Praperty

by public sale or lease.

a2



D. If the Board votes to sell or lease the Real Property by public means. it shall also

determine whether the sale or lease shall be by scaled bids or by auction and shall

eslablish the terms of sale or lease including bur not limited to the minimum rental

amount and renewal options, if the Real Property is 1o be leased. and a minimum sales

price, condition of Real Property and closing date. if the Real Property is to be sold

(~Public Terms of Sale/Lease™).

L. It the public method of disposition selected by the Board is by sealed bids, the process in

subparagraph | below shall apply. It the public method of disposition selected by the

Board is by auction. the process in subparagraph 2 below shall apply:

1. Sealed Bids.

(a) Preparation of Bid Documents. The Office of Operations. Planning & Systems

(b)

(¢

Improvement will prepare bid documents based on Public Terms of Sale/l.ease
provided by the Board.

Advertisement of Bid. An advertisement/notice of solicitation of bids will be

placed in a newspaper of general circulation at least three times over a 30 day
period prior to receipt of bids or proposals. in the South Carolina Business
Opportunities (SCBO) and on the District’s website.

Deposit.  All bidders must submit a cashier’s check or certitied funds with their
bid payable 1o the District in the amount of five (3%) percent of their bid as a
deposit ("Deposit™). 1t a bid is accepted. the Deposit will be applied toward the
purchase price or rent, as applicable. It the successful bidder defaults, the
Deposit shall be forfeited and the District shall be entitled 10 retain the Deposit as
agreed liquidated damages.  Deposits on all bids not accepted are returned
without interest or penalty after a final conwact or lease is executed with the

successtul bidder.

5N



(d) Review of bids. All bids shall be reviewed by a panel selected by the Director of
Operations, Planning & Systems Improvement.  The Chief of Finance,
Operations, and Human Resources Officer shall be a member of that panel.

(e) Recommendation to Board. The Chief of Finance, Operations. and Human

Resources Officer shall make a recommendation to the Board on behalf of the
panel as to which bidder should be awarded the contract or lease. The
recommendation can also be (1) for the Board to not accept any of the bids based
on none meeting the criteria established by the Board and defer the matter until
additional or modified bids are received or (ii) for the Board to consider an
alternative method of disposition.
2. Auction.
(a) Auctioneer. The Office ot Operations, Planning & Systems Improvement will

determine whether it will conduct the auction or contract for auction services.

= 5
Cxr

Advertisement_of Auction.  An advertisement/notice ol the auction will be

placed in a newspaper of general circulation at least three times over a 30 day
period prior o receipt of bids or proposals. in the South Carolina Business
Oppertunities (SCBO} and on the District’s website.

Contract /Lease Terms. The terms of the contract or lease that the successtul

(£

bidder at auction will be obligated to sign if the Board accepts the bid will be
posted on the District’s website when the auction is first advertised and will
remain on the website through the ¢losing of the auction.

(d

Deposit. The successful bidder at the auction must submit a cashier’s check or
certified funds with their bid payable to the District in the amount of five (3%)
percent of their bid as a deposit ("Deposit™) and sign the purchase contract or
lease which is the bidder’s offer to purchase or lease the Real Property. The offer

will be delivered to the Board tor acceptance or rejection. It the bid is accepted.

L



the contract or lease will be signed on behalf of the District and the Deposit will
be applied toward the purchase price or rent. as applicable. 1 the successlul

bidder defaults on the bid. the Deposit shall be forfeited and the District shall be

entitled to retain the Deposit as agreed liquidated damages.

(¢) Non-acceptance of Bid. The Board reserves the right not to accept any auction

bids submitted, 1" the Board exercises this option. the Board shall determine
whether to re-auction the Real Property, remove it from the auction process or
otherwise dispose of the Real Property in any manner set forth herein. including

but not limited 1o a private sale or lease of the Real Property.

Information will be made available to the public only if the Board decides to dispose of Real

Property by a public method of sale or lease.

6



IOPIC: REVIEW OF CCSD SURPLUS BUILDING AND LAND MANAGEMENT

PROCEDURES

BACKGROUND:

On October 26, 2009, the Board of Trustees established certain procedures for the disposition of school
facilities and properties currently not being used tor educational purposes. The intention of the Board of
Trustees was to provide a means of restoring the District’s fund balance. achieve maximum economic
benefit from its real property assets and be fully accoumable tor the handling of public assets and funds

through a transparent and well-documented process,

While considering all of the existing land’building asset opportunities. the District has identified current
procedures which have conflicting provisions and also limit the Distriet’s statutory powers to dispose of

properties for less than fair market value it deemed by the Board of Trustees 1o be in the best interest of

the District and on terms other than a bid or auction process.

South Carolina Code of Laws Section 39-19-250 (1976, as amended) provides as follows:

The school trustees of the several school districts may sell or lease school property, real or
personal. in their school district whenever they deem it expedient 10 do so and apply the
proceeds of any such sale or lease 1o the school fund of the district. The consent of the county
bouard of education...shall be first obtained by the wrustees desiring 10 make any such sale or
lease.

The South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (SC Code of Laws. Section 30-4-40(5)) provides an

exemption from disclosure as follows:

(3) Documents of and documents incidental 1o proposed contractual arrangements and
documents of and documents incidental to proposed sales or purchases of property: however:

(a)these documents are not exempt from disclosure once a contract is entered into or the
property is sold or purchased except as otherwise provided in this section:



{b)a contract for the sale or purchase of real estate shall remain exempt [rom disclosure until the

deed is executed. but this exemption applies only to those contracts of sale or purchase where

the execution of the deed occurs within twelve months from the date of sale or purchase:

(c) confidential proprietary mformation provided to a public body for economic development or

contract negotiations purposes is not required to be disclosed
The Freedom of Information disclosure exemption coupled with the broad powers of discretion
granted 1o the Board of Trustees of the District to sell or lease school property “whenever they deem
it expedient to do so” provide the Board with great flexibility in the process of disposing of its real
properties. I it were to take a similar approach as the Budget and Control Board of the State of
South Caralina in the provisions regarding the disposal of surplus real estate. the Board would have
the discretion to determine. on a case by case basis, the method of disposal 1o be used. “Possible
methods include: auction, sealed bids, listing the property with a private broker or anyv method
determined ....to be commercially reasonable considering the type and location of property

involved™ (SC Code of Laws Section 1-11-38).

DISCUSSION:

The strategy outlined below details what is intended to be improved alternative processes for the benefit
of the District’s sale and/or leasing of properties owned by the District which vary depending on whether
the Board of Trustees determines to offer such property(ics) for sale or lease 10 the public or for private

sale or leasing.

Private Sale or Lease. or Private Exchange of Property.

A. Superintendent and District Staff’ comprised ot Chief Operating Officer for Capital
Programs. Chiel” of Finance, Operations. and Human Resources Officer and Director of
Operations, Planning & Systems Improvement -(~Staf1™) will identifv. on an annual basis.

the real property, delined as land. buildings and other improvements attached or atfixed



10 the land (“Real Property™) that is no longer needed by the Charleston County School
District (*Diswrict”™) and not likely 10 be needed in the future.

Staff will obtain an appraisal of the Real Property (if an appraisal has not been made
within 6 months) from a South Carolina licensed MAI appraiser and. it applicable. an
appraisal of the property, real or personal, to be acquired in exchange
Hret-OperatihecHeertor-Lapita-EresramsUne of the three Statt members will present
to the District’s Board of Trustees ("Board™) a legal description of the Real Property, a
copy of the appraisal (or both appraisals. if applicable) and a recommendation 1o dispose

of the Real Property by private sale or lease.

It the Board votes 1o sell or lease the Real Property by private means. the Board shall
specify the terms of sale or lease including but not limited to the ranve of rental amount
and renewal options. if the Real Propenty is 1o be leased. and the mnge of purchase price.
closing date, listing of the Real Property with a licensed South Carolina real estate broker
or direct negotiation with interested parties, or an exchange with the owner(s) of the
idemtified exchange properiy(ies) if the Real Property is o be sold (“Private Terms of
Sale/Lease™) and shall authorize the Staff 1o proceed with the private sale or lease

process.

Il Public Sale or Lease

A.  Superintendent and Staff will identify. on an annual basis. the Real Property that is no

longer needed by the District and not likely to be needed in the future.
Staff’ will obtain an appraisal of the Real Property (il an appraisal has not been made

within 6 months) from a South Carolina licensed MAI appraiser.

members will present

o the Board a legal description of the Real Property. a copy of the appraisal and a

recommendation to dispose of the Real Property by public sale or lease.



D.

It the Board votes 10 sell or lease the Real Property by public means, it shall also
determine whether the sale or lease shall be by sealed bids or by auction and shall
establish the terms of sale or lease including but not limited 1o the minimun rental
amount and renewal options. if the Real Property is to be leased. and a minimum sales
price. condition of Real Property and closing date. it the Real Property is to be sold
(“Public Terms of Sale/L.ease™).

It the public method of disposition selected by the Board is by sealed bids. the process in
subparagraph 1 below shall apply. I the public method of disposition selected by the
Board is by auction, the process in subparagraph 2 below shall apply:

I. Secaled Bids.

(a) Preparation of Bid Documents. The Otfice of Operations. Planning & Systems

Improvement will prepare bid documents based on Public Terms of Sale/Lease

provided by the Board.

(b} Advertisement of Bid. An advertisement/notice of solicitation of bids will be

placed in a newspaper ol general circulation at least three times over a 30 day
period prior to receipt of bids or proposals. in the South Carolina Business
Opportunities (SCBOj and on the District’s website,

(c) Deposit. All bidders must submit a cashier’s check or certified funds with their
bid payable to the District in the amount of five (3%) percent of their bid as a
deposit (“Deposit™). I a bid is accepted. the Deposit will be applied toward the
purchase price or rent, as applicable. If the successtul bidder defaults. the
Deposit shall be forfeited and the District shall be entitled to retain the Deposit as
agreed liquidated damages.  Deposits on all bids not accepted are retumed
without interest or penalty after a final contract or lease is executed with the

stceessiul bidder.



(d) Review of bids. All bids shall be reviewed by a panel selected by the Direcror of

!J

Operations. Planning & Systems Improvement.  The Chiel of Finance.
Operations. and Human Resources Officer shall be a member of that pancl.

Recommendation to Board. The Chief of Finance, Operations, and Human

Resources Officer shall make a recommendation to the Board an behalt of the
panel as t which bidder should be awarded the contract or lease. The
recommendation ¢an also be (i) for the Board 1o not accept any of the bids based
on none meeting the criteria established by the Board and defer the martter until
additional or modified bids are received or (ii) for the Board 1o consider an

alternative method ol disposition,

Auction.

(a) Auctioneer. The Office of Operations. Planning & Systems Improvement will

(d,

determine whether it will conduct the auction or contract for auction services.

Advertisement of Auction.  An advertisement/notice of the auction will be

placed in a newspaper of general circulation at least three times over a 30 day
period prior to receipt of bids or proposals, in the South Carolina Business
Opportunities (SCBO) and on the District’s website.

Contract /Lease Terms. The terms of the contract or lease that the successful

bidder at auction will be obligated to sign if the Board accepts the bid will be
posted on the District’s website when the auction is 1irst advertised and will
remain on the website through the closing of the auction.

Deposit. The successiul bidder at the auction must submit a cashier’s check or
certitied funds with their bid payable to the District in the amount of five (3%)
percent of their bid as a deposit (“Deposil™) and sign the purchase contract or
lease which is the bidder’s offer to purchase or lease the Real Property. The offer

will be delivered to the Board for acceptance or rejection. If the bid is accepred.

v



the contract or lease will be signed on behalf of the District and the Deposit will
be applied toward the purchase price or rent. as applicable. It the successful
bidder defaults on the bid. the Deposit shall be forfeited and the District shall be
entitled 1o retain the Deposit as agreed liquidated damages.

(e) Non-acceptance of Bid. The Board reserves the right not to aceept any auction
bids submitted. If the Board exercises this option. the Board shall determine
whether 10 re-auction the Real Property. remove it from the auction process or
otherwise dispose of the Real Property in any manner set forth herein, including

but not limited to a private sale or lease of the Real Property.

Information will be made available to the public only if the Board decides to dispose of Real

Property by a public method of sale or lease.

6



Charleston excellence is our standard VISION 2@16
County SCHOOL DISTRICT e TR TGS

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

CHIEF FINANCE & OPERATIONS
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: Seek Approval to Initiate Sale of Property Contiguous to the
Fraser Elementary Site

roacoce to-—octablich
TOCCSo— Tt~ Cotauitald

RECOMMENDATION: It—is—hereby—recommended—that—the-CESD-Beard—of Frustees

A 5 1o
arac cr OO TrCappTrovCUu PIutuLwrt  T oV

C
noandins coranlinnea with _arataeal e dick
peERtMg—COThpTiaTivt Wit protocor—ao— Ui

Upon review of this recommendation, a revised recommendation is hereby

offered by unanimous support of the Audit & Finance Committee (8/4/14) as

follows:
It is hereby recommended that the property, contiguous to the Fraser
campus (24 Amherst Street) not be offered for sale and furthermore that it
be retained as part of the Fraser campus as a whole through and with such
time as the campus is master planned for the Early Childhood Center as
stated in the Phase IV Master Plan and further documented on the Board
approved project list for the November 2014 Referendum.

The material is submitted for: X Action [_] Information

X open [ ] Executive

el fod o

Respectfully submitted:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bobby &/
Superintendent of Schools Chief of Finance & Operations
N/A

William Lewis, Chief Operating Officer

/('l ru \?lb ﬂ‘(x’ u_\,-H“ A 1tem voted on and

Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on 8/4.! [id

D Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy & Personnel Committee Policy Committee on




CHIEF FINANCE & OPERATIONS
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
Seek Approval to Initiate Sale of Property Contiguous to the Fraser
Elementary Site

BACKGROUND:
A private donation was made by Charles Realty Company on June 14, 2012
to the District of a small piece of property contiguous to the Fraser

Elementary School site. This small piece of property had a value at the time
of $137,000.

We have been approached by our commercial real estate consultants with a
proposal that the church nearby is selling some property and there might be
benefit to package our property along with that property for sale (see
attached). Our property would have greater value as it enhance the overall
value of the other property as well.

DISCUSSION:

The property was received as a pure donation. It does not have great value
to the Fraser campus nor for any future plans for the Fraser campus. It
does require some care and maintenance with respect to grounds, etc. Our
commercial real estate consultants, Miles Martschink and John Tecklenberg
brought forward the possibility that we may wish to place this property up
for sale as part of a larger property that is anticipated to be sold as well.
They believe it will enhance the value of the other sale at the same
enhancing the value of our property in providing a cash return to the
District.

Based upon the fact that our property has no significant value to the District
with respect to current or future anticipated utilization of this area, we are
recommending that the Board strongly consider supporting our position,
thus supporting seeking a sale and a cash return on this property.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the property, contiguous to the Fraser
campus (24 Amherst Street) not be offered for sale and furthermore that it
be retained as part of the Fraser campus as a whole through and with such
time as the campus is master planned for the Early Childhood Center as
stated in the Phase IV Master Plan and further documented on the Board
approved project list for the November 2014 Referendum.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
The transactional cost will be paid for through the sale of the property. No
additional cost to the District.



FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
Eliminates ongoing care and maintenance of this parcel/property.

DATA SOURCES:
Miles Martschink and John Tecklenberg, Commercial Real Estate Consultants

PREPARED BY:
Michael L. Bobby

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
John Emerson

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
Wayne Wilcher



CRS Powerioo Property Report

Thursday, July 31, 2014 22 Amherst St, Charleston, SC 29403-5617
Charleston County, SC parcel# 459-09-02-167

Property Report

Property Address 22 Amherst St
Charleston, SC 29403-5617

Subdivision

County Charleston County, SC

Name Ebenezer Social Action And Community
Development Enterprise

Mailing Address 44 Nassau St

Charleston, SC 29403-5511

Property Summary

Property Type Residential
Land Use Resid-Sfr
Improvement Type Dwelling
Square Feet 3136 sf
Parcel/Tax ID 459-09-02-167

Alternate Parcel ID
Account Number

District/Ward 7-1
2010 Census Trct/Blk  |9/2

Sales History through 07/03/2014

Date Amount Buyer/Owners 2uyerl0wners Instrument Quality Book/Page or D
04/16/2003|$338,115|Ebenezer Social Action And Community Development E S444/792
09/28/2001/$590,909(Weh Inc R383051
05/29/1997|$9 Charleston Affordable Hous K294076
10/21/1996/$500 Browne Marian T R275848
05/22/1991|$10 Hamilton James 2202057
02/22/1991|$20,500 |Hamilton James P200231

Tax Assessment

Appraisals Amount Taxes Amount Jurisdiction Rate

Tax Year 2013 |City Taxes $0 |City Of Charleston(34- 82.3
36,52.63,71,72,99)

Appraised Land $48,600 |County Taxes $0 |Charleston 181.1

Appraised Improvements $350,000 |Total Taxes $140

Total Tax Appraisal $398,600 |[Exempt Amount

Total Assessment $23,920 |Exempt Reason

Assessment Rate 6 %

Mortgage History
No mortgages were found for this parcel.

Copyright © 2013, Charleston Trident Multiple Listing Service, Inc.
Copyright © 2013, County of Charleston, South Carolina

Page 1



Property Characteristics: Building

Building#  Type Condition Sq Feet Year Built Effective Year BRs Baths Rooms Stories Units
1 Dwelling  |VeryGood  |1746  |1835 2002 4 1F2H |7 2.5 |
Building Square Feet (Living Space) Building Square Feet (Other)

Construction

Quality Roof Framing Std For Class

Shape Roof Cover Deck Metal Stand Seam
Partitions Cabinet Millwork

Common Wall Floor Finish

Foundation Piers Interior Finish

Floor System Air Conditioning Heat Pump

Exterior Wall Wood Siding Heat Type Heat Pump

Structural Framing Bathroom Tile

Fireplace Y Plumbing Fixtures

Other

Occupancy | Building Data Source |

Property Characteristics: Building

Building # Type Condition Sq Feet Year Built Effective Year BRs Baths  Rooms Stories Units
2 Dwelling ~ |VeryGood  [1390  |1835  |2002 4 |IF1H |7 2 |
Building Square Feet (Living Space) Building Square Feet (Other)

Construction

Quality Roof Framing Std For Class

Shape Roof Cover Deck Metal Stand Seam
Partitions Cabinet Millwork

Common Wall Floor Finish

Foundation Normal For Class Interior Finish

Floor System Air Conditioning Heat Pump

Exterior Wall Wood Siding Heat Type Heat Pump

Structural Framing Bathroom Tile

Fireplace Y Plumbing Fixtures

Other

Occupancy | |Bui|ding Data Source |

Property Characteristics: Extra Features
No extra features were found for this parcel.

Property Characteristics: Lot

Land Use Resid-Sfr Lot Dimensions
Block/Lot Lot Square Feet
Latitude/Longitude Acreage 0.10

32.795033°/-79.934645°

Property Characteristics: Utilities/Area

Gas Source Road Type

Electric Source Topography

Water Source District Trend

Sewer Source Special School District 1
Zoning Code Special School District 2
Owner Type

Legal Description

Subdivision Plat Book/Page
Block/Lot Description 22 24 Amherst
District/Ward 7-1

Copyright © 2013, Charleston Trident Multiple Listing Service, Inc.
Copyright © 2013, County of Charleston, South Carolina

Page 2



Flood Zone Information

Zone Code Flood Risk Description FIRM Panel ID A0 FENE
Eff. Date
AE High Areas subject to inundation by the 1-percent-annual-chance flood event 45019C0516J|11/17/2004

determined by detailed methods. Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) are shown.
Mandatory flood insurance purchase requirements and floodplain
management standards apply.

Zone Source: FEMA Q3 Data

Copyright © 2013, Charleston Trident Multiple Listing Service, Inc.
Copyright © 2013, County of Charleston, South Carolina

Page 3



LEGEND:

Area Reserved for Approval and Recording Stamps

7

CT

RO0DGERS [X0LUMBYS
ALLEy

g L4h5
N I‘fC//V
70,
400(/ FE S,‘/
S
Ales =] MARION
SQUARE
2
a
NOTES:

1. Reference Tax Map Number 459-09-02-167

2. Reference Deed Book S444, page 792
Deed Book 0258 page 465
Deed Book K204 page 182
Deed Book 0104 page 885

3. Property Owner: Ebenezer AME Church

4. The locations of underground utilities are not shown.

5. Surveyor has made no investigation or independent
search for easements of record, encumbrances, restrictive
covenants, ownership title evidence, or any other facts that

an accurate and current title search may disclose.

6. Declaration is made to Original Purchaser
of the survey. It is not transferable to
additional institutions or subsequent owner.

This lot has been checked against area

FEMA maps and to the best of this surveyor's
knowledge said lot is located in flood zone AE(13’).
FEMA Map No. 45019C0516J 11-17-04

Flood zone should be verified with the governing
municipality before design and construction.

Subsurface and environmental conditions were not examined
or considered as a part of this survey.

. Property addresses: 22 and 24 Ambherst Street

10. No trees 24" DBH or larger exist on this property.

11. Largest Lot: 2,370 Sq. Ft.
Smallest Lot: 1,828 Sq. Ft.

12. Water and sewer provided by Charleston Water System.

13.

Property zoned DR—2F
Diverse Residential District

Charleston County School Districrt
TMS 459-09-02-168

® 5/8” Rebar Found
O 5/8" Rebar Set

& Chiseled "+” Set

Maglletje

1 Lapps Court
(aka 1 Orange Court)

Abraham Brown
TMS 459—-09—-02-164

N75°26'58"E N75°26’58"E
23.78’ . 32.42 J
%D 1t Lt LF L ——Yy LF LT |_: T T =y \r
6 Privacy Fence
Lot Y
i
24 Amherst Street -
1,828 Sq. Ft. g
iy 0.042 Ac. g
3 Lot X
I 2
| HVAC 5 22 Ambherst Street §
© - 2,370 Sq. Ft. 8
5 g 0.054 Ac. =
] =
B 7.7
2
g &
1 E E)
al
©
o
N HVAC
[ 1.8
0.5 % 27.3
13.4° N
3lg 20 Amherst Street
< N Sandra Foster
Zl| - o ap TMS 459—-09-02-166
Q> 2 Story v %‘E‘
S Wood Siding o 31‘9
& > =N
Z OQ i
, 9.0’ fa¥) 8
2 6.5 2.7 =
é 2 Story
= N Wood Siding
3 2
R o - &
=5 o
Q ©
g 3 *
0 O a 2
©n | o @
o S 5 ™
> O o (o]
= = Q. w
5o o S . 3
) to% N s
Q
© ) 0, 3
g4 S = :
SE = 0.7 wide CMU Coping
S Iron Picket Gate with Wood Privacy Fence
= ~
©
O
é; 14.6 ¥ | 18.3’ S75°54’33"W  26.03'
212’ to right of way — S75§61'3?"W © §75°26'58"W 31.03 2,
America Street o ) G- o 77 to right of way
@, o Lapps Court (aka Orange Ct.)

Plat to Subdivide

22 Amherst Street
(TMS 469—09—02—167)

Into New

Lot X and Lol Y

Located

City of Charleston
Charleston County, South Carolina

FIELD DATE: July 2, 2014

SURVEYING, INC.

CHARLESTON, SC 29407
PHONE(843)571—-5191
FAX(843)571—7447

6840.DWG palmettols@bellsouth.net

Amherst Street

SCALE 1"= 10’
0 10 20
i s

2065 SAVANNAH HIGHWAY STE. 2

50

I hereby state that to the best of my knowledge, information,
and belief, the survey shown hereon was made in accordance
with the requirements of the Minimum Standards Manual for the
Practice of Land Surveying in South Carolina, and meets or
exceeds the requirements for a Class A survey as specified
therein; also there are no visible encroachments or projections

other than shown

James G. Penington, P.L.S. No. 10291
Palmetto Land Surveying, Inc.

2065 Savannah Highway Suite 2
Charleston, S.C. 29407 571-5191




Appraisals

Comnsaing - C. . Nick Thompson, 1L, MAK

Real .
Estate 4996 Maybank Hwy
Phone 843-762-5722 Wadmalaw Island, S. C. 29487 Retired
Fax 843-762-5723 Email; Nick@acrecet3.com Marie W. Thoempsen

Celi 843-696-5444

March 12, 2012

Mz. Troy Williams, Director of Facilities
Charleston County School District

3999 Riverview Dr

North Charleston, South Carolina 29405

RE: Appraisal of 24 Ambherst Street, City of Charleston, SC, 459-09-02-168

Dear Mr. Williams:

In accordance with your request, the undersigned has inspected the above property and made the
requisite investigation to estimate the market value of the fee simple estate as of March 12, 2012.
Market Value as used above is defined in the attached report.

Based on the appraiser's investigation, analysis and conclusions, an opinion has been formed that
the market value of the subject property, in the fee simple estate, subject to the Certification,
General Assumptions and General Limiting Conditions, (which are incorporated into this letter

by reference and which are fully set forth in the attached report), was:

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
$137.000.

The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation,
or the approval of a loan.



Mr. Troy Williams
March 12, 2012
Page 2

To the best of our ability, this appraisal meets or exceeds the requirements of Title XI of the
Financial Institution Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) of 1989, Public Law
101-73, 103 STAT. 183, 51) (1989). The appraisal has also been made in conformity with the
Code of Ethics of and Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisa
Institute. :

If you have any questions, please call me at (843) 762-5722.
Sincerely,

e, 0. Mop—m

C. O. Thompson, ITI, MAI, SRA
S. C. Certification CG 85

COTII - 2012c005



T




ACRE-C. Q. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc,

=

SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS

Location of Property: 24 Ambherst Street, City & Charleston County, South Carolina, TMS 459-

09-02-168.
Owner: Charles Realty Company
Size of Property: 201’ X 66’ x 127 x 56" x 75" x 10 FF, 9,122 SF, 0.2094 acres
Zoning: DR2, Diverse Residential
Highest and Best Use: Vacant - flag lot residential

Improved — not improved

Improvements None
Value of Land: $00,000
Market Value of Property:

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS

$137,000.
Date of Appraisal: March 8, 2012
Appraiser: C. O. Thompson, I, MAI, SRA
Client: Mr. Troy Williams, Director of Facilities, Charleston County School District

4503 Maybank Hlighway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IH, MAI Appraisals, Counseline & Real Estate, Inc, 2

CERTIFICATION OF THE APPRAISER

The undersigned certifies that to the best of his knowledge and belief:

The Market Value of the Fee Simple Interest in the following real property has been estimated as of
March 12, 2012, as is.

24 Ambherst Street, vacant lot
City of Charleston, Charleston County, South Carolina
TMS No. 459-09-02-168

The property was inspected by C.0O. Thompson, I1I, MAIL, on March 12, 2012.

Neither ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, INC. nor the
signatories of this Certification, have any present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject
of this report and no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported special and General
Assumptions and General Limiting Conditions set forth in this report, and are my personal unbiased
professional analyses, opinions and conclusions.

To the best of the appraiser’s knowledge and belief, the statements of fact contained in this appraisal
report, upon which the analyses, opinions and conclusions expressed herein are based, are true and
correct. No one, other than the signatories of this Certification, prepared the analyses, opinions and
conclusions concerning the real estate set forth 1n this report.

No one else provided significant professional assistance to the person or persons signing this
Certification. '

To the best of the appraiser’s knowledge and belief, the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were
developed and this report has been prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice and to the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice of The Appraisal Institute. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal
Institute relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.

As of the date of this report, I, C.O. Thompson, 1lI, MAJ, have completed the requirements under the
continuing education program of the Appraisal Institute.

The compensation for this appraisal is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a
stipulated result or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the
approval of a loan.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IIT, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc, 3

Based on the appraiser’s investigation, analysis and conclusions, an opinion has been formed that the
market value of the fee simple interest in the subject property, based on a Street inspection at the request
of the client, as of March 12, 2012, subject to the special and General Assumptions and General

Limiting Conditions (which are incorporated by reference into this Certificate and which are fully set
forth in the attached report) was:

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
$137.,000.

QOW

C.O. Thompson, 111, MAL SRA
State Certified General Real Estate
Appraiser, S.C. Certificate No. CG 85

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, I, MAI Appraisals, Counseling & Real Fstate, Inc,

{obn

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS

This appraisal report has been made with, and is subject to, the following general assumptions:

- That title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated. No

responsibility is assumed for the legal descriptions or for any legal matter.

- That the definition of value together with other definitions and assumptions on which our
analyses are based are set forth in appropriate scctions of this report and are a part of these

General Assumptions as if included here in their entirety.

- That title to the property is assumed to be marketable. The property is considered to be under
responsible ownership and management and free of all liens and encumbrances except as

specifically discussed herein.

- That the facts, estimates and opinions furnished the appraisers by others and contained in this
report are considered to be from reliable sources and where feasible have been verified.
However, no responsibility is assumed for the accuracy of the information. We reserve the right
to modify the value estimates should more reliable or accurate information become available

subsequent to delivery of this report.

- All engineering and/or surveys are assumed to be correct. The sketches, plot plans and drawings

included in the report are included only to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

- It is assumed that there are no hidden or other unapparent conditions in the soil, sub-soil,
structures or property which would render them more or less valuable. The appraisers
specifically accept no responsibility for damage by termites, wood borers or any other wood
infesting insects. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for engineering or

inspection which would be required to discover them.

- Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may not
be present on or in the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no
knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, 1s
not qualified to detect such substances. The presence of potentially dangerous or hazardous
materials, gases or toxic substances may affect the value of the property and in this appraisal the
value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there is no such element on or in the property
that would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any

expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover them.

- Good structural and mechanical conditions are assumed to exist, and no opinion as to these

matters is to be inferred or construed from the attached report.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, 111, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc,

HED

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local
environmental regulations and laws unless non-compliance is stated, defined and considered in
the appraisal report.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been complied
with, unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the appraisal report.

It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, legislated or administrative
consents from any local, state or national governmental or private entity or organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value estimate contained in this
report is based. '

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and/or improvements is within the boundaries or
property lines of the property described herein and that there is no encroachment or trespass
unless noted within the report.

1t was assumed that the quality and condition of the interior of the property is consistent with the
visible exterior of the property improvements

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Seuth Carclina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, Ifl. MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

i

GENERAL LIMITING CONDITIONS

This appraisal report has been made with, and is subject to, the following General Limiting Conditions:

- The appraisers, by reason of this appraisal report, are not required to give further consultation,
testimony or to be in attendance in court or at any governmental or other hearing with reference
to the property without prior arrangements. '

- The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements
applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separated allocations for land and
buildings, if any, must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so
used.

- Use and disclosure of the contents of this report are governed by the bylaws and regulations of
the Appraisal Institute. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any
conclusions as to value, the identity of the appraisers or the firm with which they are connected,
or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or to the MAI or SRA designations) shall be
disseminated to the general public through advertising or sales media, public relations media,
news media, or other public means of communication without the prior written consent and
approval of the appraiser(s).

- Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. It may
not be used for any purpose by any person other than the party to whom it is addressed without
the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event only with proper written qualification and
only in its entirety.

- The party for whom this appraisal report was prepared may distribute copies of this appraisal
report in its entirety, to such third parties as may be selected by the party for whom this appraisal
report was prepared; however, portions of this appraisal report shall not be given to third parties
without the prior written consent of the signatories of this appraisal report.

- Additional copies of this appraisal may be obtained for an appropriate fee only with the
knowledge and consent of the client.

- The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26, 1992. We have not
made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine whether or not it is
in conformity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a
compliance survey of the property together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the
ADA could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of
the act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value of the property. Since we
have no direct evidence relating to this issue, we did not consider possible noncompliance with
the requirements of ADA in estimating the value of the property.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Seuth Carelina 25487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, ITT, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

I~

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL

The purpose of the appraisal is to define the type of value estimate that the appraisal is intended. This
value could be Market Value, that is what the property should sell for on the open market; Going
Concern Value, the value for a specific use or user; Insurable Value, the cost to replace the property
should something happen to it; Partial Interest Value, the value of a portion of the bundle of rights that is
inherent in the ownership of a property, such as a percentage interest in the whole property, a leased fee
or leasehold; or Investment Value, the value to an individual investor considering his investment criteria

and potential tax ramifications.

The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the Market Value of the subject property in the fee simple
estate, as of March 12,2012,

FUNCTION AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL

The function and intended use of the appraisal is for the client's internal use, including but not limited to,
rendering a decision to acquire the property by donation. The client of this appraisal is The Charleston
County School District, and no others. It is the understanding of the appraiser that the intended use of
this appraisal is for determination of market value, and no other use. Should a copy of this report be
provided to a third party by the client, that party does not become a recognized client by the appraiser,

without written agreement in advance, nor does that third party have any rights of the client.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, [T, MAL Appraisals, Counsefing & Real Fstate, Inc.

[[]

IDENTIFICATION AND HISTORY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

The subject property is identified on the Charleston County Assessor's Tax Maps as TMS No. 459-09-
02-168. It is owned by Charles Realty Company. It was acquired before 1965 before completion of
the Charleston County Assessor’s office remapping program, as a result no deed of record 1s listed,
because there was no listing on the former property card in the Auditor’s office of the County of
Charleston. No full title search was done by that agency, and a title search is beyond the scope of the
appraisal assignment.

The property is located in the City of Charleston, and County of Charleston, at 24 Amherst Street. Its
dimensions are approximately 201’ x 66° x 127° x 56’ x 75’ x 10 front feet, 9,122 SF. 0.2094 acres and

currently unimproved. The property is overgrown with scrub trees.

There is no record in CTARMLS of any listing or sale of the subject property.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Seuth Carolina 29487



|

SEE THS c459-%-| i

[ E—
STREET
a &3 -
=T 1 187 167 Ty
c - -
wo__.. .| Let I
3 = w - w =
@ " E s =% w
100 & Lt i [
2= o
@ i = - - — +—
™ rrl = SCHNOOL DISTAICT H0. 20 - v B S CHODL DISTRIET No. 2@ = w
b g
e =
@ ¥ (- @ COLUWNBLS  ScHoOL
t ®
o gle =
CR—
L
W @5;'"1 - T Mo 133 . 155 / 2
T @3
- .
= COURT HAMPSTEAD
' . S5 r . N R - A s , -
N 9 53 0 96T o . .
30 G F 73073 FRIERDS WP o a b 3
[1] R BAPTIST l
B 0 b - L bz o CNUECH ?‘
5 &
&) Al Hes I :
o E o o -
H a7 @ a3 @ ay = o I——/ :.:
-3}
3 @ @ « " 5 R - .
&) . = e l 4 1 =) 2
3n 3G x 40 . t210 I_—J 4 o £ i
] =% 3. g - i
@ 5 @) = oz § @3 " &
18 [F1] i L]
260 —t—,j =
@ = F . o @ l ; @
[ i
@ g
!
b
oo
] ) T L] &
- M
()] ) ® [ = N 5
o
1
o g
FF @ - :
I
* I
olo = = = B
3 PEvTECOsTAL N3 ke ™
R AT Hrazd 3 . . -
CRURC N : 2 b - -
E = .-»@ " il |
i = =l = M - w
b
-
|. - " s =
| b o
1 78 s0 lag 57
" . 40 36 34
7 1
!
g
i, "
- 5
”
)
B 1
o s
~ L=
APT, =
] tud
& o Y -
N =L
RE} [ - [
“$ £l [ 40 LT ———
- STREET
. — SEE TMY c45y-9-4
200 FAX MAP PREFARED BY THE COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE. TAX DISTRICT NO. 7 ) TAX MAP NUMBER
] THE CHARLESTON COUNTY BOARD OF ASSESSMENT COMN- Traoe T e
TROL RESEAVES THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO SELL THIS MAR. SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 20 e
H HC RESALE OR REFRODUCTIGN FOR RESALE PURFOSE L5 E v
; i . AREA: CITY OF CHARLESTON
I® . - : AERIAL PHOTO NO.  4-Big



Property Report

Location
Property Address

Subdivision
County

Current Owner
Name
-Mailing Address

“Real Estate

Friday, March G9, 2012

24 Amherst St
Charleston, SC 29403-5617
Hampstead, Eastside

Charleston County, SC

[Charles Realty Company
18 Lavington Rd
Charleston, SC 29407-9607

Property Report

24 Amherst St, Charleston, SC 29403-5617
Charleston County, SC parcel# 459-09-02-168

Property Summary

Property Type Residential
Land Use Vacant-Res
Improvement Type

Square Feet

General Parcel information

ParcelfTax 1D
Alternate Parcel ID

Account Number

DistrictWard 71

459-09-02-168

Census Tract/Block 9.00/2

Sales History through 02/15/2012
No sales information was found for this parcel.

Tax Assessment

5 201 LORS, B,

Appraisals Amount Taxes Amount Jurisdiction Rate
Tax Year 2010 |[City Taxes $0 |City Of Charleston 79.1
Appraised Land $84,000 |County Taxes $0 Charleston 181
Appraised Improvements 30 |Total Taxes $1,191.63

Total Tax Appraisal $84,000 |Exempt Amount

Total Assessment $5,040 Exempt Reason

Assessment Rate 6%

Mortgage History

No mortgagés were found for this parcel.

Property Characteristics: Building
No Buildings were found for this parcel.

Property Characteristics: Extra Features

No exira features were found for this parcel.

Property Characteristics: Lot

Land Use
BlockiLot

Vacant-Res

Latitude/Longitude |32.795258°/-79.034787°

Property Characteristics: Utilities/Area
r

Lot Dimensions
Lot Square Feet

Acreage

!

http://www.crsdata.net/realestate/Eval/ PropertyReport.aspx?p=-6¢-Ipgv623brOUHDIHZGmeOgUwi Smo...



Gas Source
Electric Source
Water Source
Sewer Source
Zoning Code
Owner Type

Legal Description
Subdivision
BlockiLot
District/Ward
Friday, March 08, 2012

|Hampstead, Eastside

17;

Road Type

Topography

District Trend

Special School District 1
Special School District 2

t

Rear 22 24 Amherst

24 Amherst St, Charleston, SC 29403-5617
Charleston County, SC parcel# 459-09-02-168

Plat Book/Page
Description

COFYRIGHT @ 2012 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Infermanion Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed, .
Coritact Us at (80C) 5¢4-7488 ext 3 for Heip.

http://www.crsdata.net/realestate/Eval/PropertyReport.aspx ?p=-6¢-Ipgv623brOUHDIHZ GmeOg Uw1 Smo...



oS Charleston County
@l Il Copyright 2004
{EHA| {Charleston County GIS

CHARLESTON 4045 Bridge View Drive
BOBIY 8

- [North Charleston, SC 29405-7464
Legend '

D Selacted

Featuros

-7 Strests/Roa-
ds :

D Parcels

2009 Color
Photos .

htip://ccgisweb.charlestoncounty.org/servlet/ com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Charleston&Client. ..



Charleston County, South Carolina
Copyright 2004

harleston County GIS
H 1045 Bridge View Drive

TRTH CARELTRA INorth Charleston, SC 29405-7464

Selactad
D Features

Streots/Roa-
ds

] Parcels

2009 Color
Photos

PARCEL NUMBER : 4590902168 )
PARCEL 1D: 4590902168

STREET NUMBER: 24
STREET NAME: AMHERST ST

PROP UNIT:

PROP CITY:

PROP ZIP: 29403

SITE NAME:

GENERAL USE: VCR

MOBILE HOMES: 0

SUBDIVISION: HAMPSTEAD, EASTSIDE
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  REAR 22 24 AMHERST

LGL HI ACRES: 0

LGL MAR ACRES: 0

LGL WATER ACRES: 0

LGL SWAMP ACRES: 0

LGL TOTAL ACRES: 0

TAX DISTRICT: 71

JURISDICTION: CTA

PLAT BOOK: NONE

OWNER ON 1ST: CHARLES REALTY COMPANY

OWNER2 ON 15T:

http://ccgisweb.charlestoncoun_ty.01‘g/serVI€t/COlﬂ.esri.esrimap.Esrimap’?ServiceName=C11a1'Ieston&Client... _



CURRENT OWNER1:

CURRENT OWNER2:

$SALE DATE:

DEED BOOK:

WILL CODE:

WILL DATE:

C O NAME;

MAIL STREET NUMBER: 18

MAIL STREET NAME: LAVINGTON RD
MAIL UNIT:

BEAIL CITY: CHARLESTON
MAIL STATE: 5C

MAIL ZIP: 29407-8507
MAIL COUNTRY:

MAIL POSTAL'CODE:

SALE PRICE:

MULT LOT:

SPLIT CODE:

MLOD GROUP:

FINAL VALUE: - 87000

BUILD COUNT:

AG USE VAL:

AG MARKET TOT:

LR APPROVE:

YEAR BUILT:
BEDROOMS:

FULL BATHS:

THREE QTR BATHS:
HALF BATHS:

TOTAL FINISH AREA:
LIVING AREA:
CONDO-BEDROON:
CONDO FULL BATH:
CONDO H-BATH:

CAP LR VAL:

CAP ASSESSED VALUE:
CAP OTHER VALUE: 87000

O QO 0 000 d 00000z 0o oo

http://ccgisweb.charlestoncounty. org/servlet/com.esii.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Charleston& Client. .



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, IIT, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

(=]

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL INVESTIGATION

This appraisal analysis will be completed in several distinct phases; general data collection,
neighborhood data collection, subject property data collection, market data collection, analysis of all
collected data, highest and besi use analysis, valuation, and report preparation. These phases arc

described below.

General Data Collection and Analysis:

This involves collection of data relating to national, regional, and local trends, and identification and
analysis of the social, economic, governmental, and environmental forces affecting the market value.

Neighborhood Data Collectidn and Analvysis:

This entails inspecting the subject neighborhood; collecting and analyzing data on growth trends,

demographics, physical characteristics, utilities, and public or private infrastructure.

Subject Property Data Collection and Analysis:

In this phase, the subject property is inspected, the people with knowledge of the property and its
operations are interviewed, available blueprints and site plans are reviewed, relevant information such as
real estate taxes and zoning are reviewed, and the functionality and condition of the subject

improvements are analyzed.

Market Data Collection and Analysis:

In this phase we will obtain and verify comparable sales data for vacant land, inspect the comparables

and collect market information.

Highest and Best Use Analysis:

In this phase we will analyze all collected data within the framework of supply and demand, legal use,

physically possible use, feasible use and that use which is maximally productive.

Valuation:
In this phase, we will apply the Direct Sales Comparison Approach to estimate land value.

Report Preparation: The final phase of the appraisal process is the preparation of a full summary report.

49%6 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



Town Creek vam Island

- Crace Memorial B

17;‘_-_—_:._: =

Hog Island Reach

/‘“é/ RS B\"/' 5

300d §f§c’ﬁﬁl‘1&
% JStonay Fl\%\'} \'\
%’%\ A\ o
e)ﬂb’//: D \Lm ; \.\
Fa i - B\ } :
Vg \74\v4

\ i

\ WY

s\ Charleston A

harleEn ﬁlh;tﬁumkﬁs/w}%@nigém@}t}sa )
g\ WA

' \

nr PR
SL ; : P
o\ e LV @

W WA\ 3

b

‘ MWEREL 3\
Lﬁ’qb ; )ﬁfx&;ﬁ )‘.\f_e,ge’ﬁ \ idi !Wgéﬁ @nunf
b S ¢ ‘\'f:-,\,-%/\‘ oy us edica:G‘_eﬂB— -\
A e Y 2N S W\, BHETL
éfg \wmég‘ﬁémfarrs kﬂ\gdica\ Cents e & 1&,@&?\ 3
& Y W= NEE R 3
£ § o LaeE e
: B = e u}?&e’cggfggfﬁr\anms H\o\sﬁi@{ \:».
\ A W N N2
+Rob_(e'r‘.ij\r pitm\O 4}‘2\‘}}\‘ \ ﬂ‘“y\\\\/’
E'EII ’g / \ A b5

gta)

j<]

e '%

Ci;:énestcn LS /\
S * N A5l L 3

% vs CHure = |
1 : it‘Qﬁ&Et‘:,__,I:

_41_ X \ E B\ \“-‘.\,_ =y _ﬁgg;'r:—‘—ﬂ’a ustoms
= WP e e
e N\ - = S 1”1“659’"‘ Elng

= = ‘S@mL an Chirc IJ\,\J&%Q&#WGE
¥ EE@HSUeetrﬂgaﬂeiaHugg@'@'! c

\ ; | P | | W T

r_—-‘ I5emian Hall W B%Thl_r:gl‘:‘}‘@ ﬁ_ rgjl\l
) e Epepaieh hreh _Shutes 7

C._’:Hey\ward— ashiriglon House
'\_:_,‘LJ ?FEaslBay Playground

Ibemarle Point o
& Nathanigl u/sgéﬂ_T‘TBJuse

Cal

Calhoun Mansion

L”- r‘f\ondsiun-AFston House

WhiTe

32000 DeLorme. Street Atlas USA; © 2000 GDT, Inc., Rel. 04/2000




ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 10

ARFEA ANALYSIS

The City of Charleston in Charleston County, South Carolina is one of America's most historic cities,
having been incorporated in 1783. English colonists established the original settlement in 1670, under a
grant by Charles I1, King of England, in whose honor the city was named Charles Towne. The center of
the city is located on a peninsula of land at the confluence of the Ashley and Cooper Rivers which

create a deep water harbor only five miles from the Atlantic Ocean.

Charleston County is one of three counties which make up the Metro Region. This three county
metropolitan statistical area (MSA) includes Berkeley, Dorchester and Charleston Counties. In
reviewing the Charleston area economy, the Charleston MSA should be considered as one entity
because of the close physical and economic association of the counties. Charleston County is the
cultural and economic epicenter, Berkeley is the largest county geographically, and Dorchester is the
fastest growing county in South Carolina in regard to residential growth. The City of Charleston and

North Charleston are the two major urban areas within the Metro Region.

The Charleston MSA is not a regional distribution center because of the coast line limitation. However,
it is a major port city and has many amenities which contribute to the quality of life prevalent in the
area. These factors have resulted in a steady growth. Over the last two decades, the Charleston
Regional Development Alliance announced the relocation of over 100 existing companies and over
20,000 new, direct jobs to the Charleston area. Led by Boeing's plant for sections of the newly
developed 787, and the recent announcement and construction start of a second assembly line for the
787 to supplement the Seattle plant’s production line and the 1990's Nucor's 500 million dollar steel
mill in Berkeley County, other new large scale developments include Amoco, Quoizel. And the 1980's
-1990's Belk Department Stores distribution warehouse, Saks Fifth Avenue, and Mikasa distribution

warehouse, which have fallen victim to the recession of the past four years.

4956 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAI Appraisals. Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 11

According to the Alliance, in the first half of 2004, 5 new companies had announced their relocation to
the area with a capital investment of $12.58+ million and 252 new jobs. In 1999, the Alliance
announced 16 new or expanded companies during the past year with a total capital investment of over
$314 million and 1,535 new jobs. The last four years with the gradual, then rapid slowing of the
economy, has seen some indications of job availability with the closing of the Mikasa disiribution
center and the layoffs at some plants including the American LakFrance plant and some other smaller

planis.

The economic development activity combined with the good seaport facilities and favorable business
climate, particularly the Boeing developments with over 7,000 new jobs with Boeing, and another 5,000
+ supporting and spinoff operation jobs should allow for some continued growth in each of the region’s

economic sectors.

Population
The Charleston County population growth between 1990 to 2000 was 5.1% compared to 8.3% for the

Metro area, and from 2000 to 2008, projected 12.3% compared to a Metro growth of 17.4%. The
population for the entire state from 1990 to 2000 grew from 3,486,703 to 4,012,012, or 15.1%, and in
2008 estimated at 4,479,800, or 11.7%. These demographic growth rates bode well for a continuing
good economic climate for the Metro area. The population trends as prepared by the Center for

Business Research,

The greatest future growth is projected to occur in Berkeley and Dorchester Counties which are
obtaining a growing indusirial base. However, the peninsula Charleston area has been the center of the
ﬁnancial-iegal community and is expected to continue to maintain this position. The Federal and
County Courthouses and office buildings in downtown Charleston anchor a large satellite office area.
Hurricane Hugo in 1989 caused the County Court system to move temporarily to North Charleston, but
construction of a new Court Annex to the County Office Building near Broad, Meeting and King

Streets has been completed.

3906 Maybank Highway, wadmalaw Isiand, south Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, ITL, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 12

The 2000 Census population statistics show the current population for the Charleston MSA was

549,033. This represents an increase of 8.3% over the 1990 Census. 2008 estimate of 644,506

represents an increase of 17.4%.

4994 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 26487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompsen, ITL MAT, Appraisals. Counseling & Real Fstate. Inc, 13

Economic - The Trident economy is heavily based on three major economic forces: (1) tourism, (2)

healthcare and (3) the port. These will be addressed briefly in order.

1. Tourism. In 2003 an estimated 4.06 million visitors came to the Charleston region for.
conventions, recreation or sightseeing, in 2009, 3.93 million, with a top in 2007 of 4.33 million.
The downtown area of Charleston dates back to 1680, with existing houses from the mid
1700's. The old portion of Charleston has one of the best stocks of vintage architecture in the
country, and has received national recognition for preservation of the original character of the
residential areas. The City of Charleston, through police power and zoning, has encouraged
restoration and preservation of structures, neighborhoods and quality of life that offers visitors a
view of past eras. Other attractions include the beaches, museums, historic forts and

plantations, parks, gardens and wildhife refuges.

Tourism has an estimated $2.8 billion annual economic impact to the Charleston region that

provides over 94,000 direct and in-direct visitor related jobs in the local economy.'

The average daily rate for hotels was $107.80 in 2001 and increased to $109.75 in 2002 and
then $105.72 in 2003, rate for 2004 was $112.67, 2005 - $128,61; 2006 - $138.89; 2007 -
$150.47. Occupancy rate has also increased from 67.3% in 2002 to 68.24% in 2003, 67.78% -
2004, 70.11% in 2005, 72.5% in 2006 and 73.5 in 2007 .

2. Healthcare - The Charleston region’s healthcare industry’s core is based with more than 2,000
physician and ten primary care hospitals, which collectively employ approximately 17,000. The
rest of the industry includes private medical offices, nursing and personal care services and
other healthcare organizations. By supporting 32,000 total direct jobs in the {ri-county area, the
healtheare industry directly employs about one in ten of all workers in the region, confirming it
as one of the major economic engines. The region’s overall performance in 1999 led the
medical community fo continue expanding to meet the healthcare needs of a growing

population. Since that time, CarcAlliance Health Systems (the alliance of Roper and Bon-

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, Seuth Carolina 294587



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, I1I, MATL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 14

Secours St. Francis hospitals) has constructed a 40,000 square foot medical center east of the
Cooper River in Mt. Pleasant, as well as adding an ambulatory surgical center in Moncks
Comer. On Daniel Island, Trident Health Systems has constructed a 40,000 square foot
outpatient medical center and has also completed a new center in the Moncks Corner area. The
Medical University of South Carolina welcomed a new president, Dr. Raymond Greenberg,
after the retirement of Dr. James Edwards, also a former governor of South Carolina. MUSCis
perhaps the hub of the entire medical industry economically, as it is the tri-county’s single
largest employer with over 10,000 employees at its colleges, medical service centers and
rescarch facilities. A study of MUSC's externally funded medical research in the Charleston
area found that the research conducted under its auspices had an economic impact of over $131
million on the Charleston region. The opening of the new MUSC hospital in early 2008
greatly expands the medical capability in the area.  There are new hospitals of Roper Saint
Francis and of Tenet East Cooper Hospitals with a opening for Roper at Carolina Park
scheduled November1, 2010 and East Cooper adjacent to the existing campus of Von Konitz

opened in the spring of 2010 will greatly expand service for the East Cooper area.

Port Facilities

The Port of Charleston is the fifth busiest container port in the United States and ranks first on
the entire Southeast and Gulf Coasts. The Port has four intermodal facilities which handle
container, breakbulk, project cargo, heavy lift, refrigerated, barge service and ro/ro cargo. The
port terminals offer 18 container cranes and can accommodate 18 vessels at a time. A fifth
terminal is currently being planned for construction on 1,3'00 acres at the old Charleston Naval

Base, centrally located in the Charleston region.

ORION is the S.C. State Ports Authority's computerized document processing system which
allows 90% of cargo to be cleared before ships enters the port. U.S. Customs and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, along with all types of port-related public and private entities are

linked to ORION, allowing for one of the fastest cargo clearance systems in the nations.

4006 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc, 15

The Port of Charleston is the busiest of the three in South Carolina and is, in fact, the fifth
busiest in the entire nation when measured by twenty-foot equivalent unit (TEU) activity. In
2004 the South Carolina Ports Authority (SPA) served more than 2,503 ships and barges at its
terminals in Charleston, Georgetown, and Port Royal was closed in early 2008. The Charleston
Port is the busiest container port along the Southeast and Gulf coasts. The SPA handled
1,884,000 TEU’s 2007; 1,694,000 TEU's in 2008 and 1,368,000 TEU’s in 2009. Breakbulk
cargo decreased to 835,000 tons in 2009, down from 947,000 in 2008 and 1,235,0001n 2007. In
addition, the port owned grain clevator handled 68,400 tons of bulk shipments. Top
commodities across Charleston docks include foodstuffs, forest products, consumer goods,
machinery, metals, vehicles, chemicals and clay products. Accomplishments by the Port for its
future success include the completion in 2004 of the harbor deepening project that began in
1999 and deepened the inner harbor channels to 45 feet at mean low water, as well as their
mvestment of millions of dollars on equipment and existing facility improvements. Long-term
needs include preparing to permit a new three berth, 280-acre marine terminal at the former
Charleston Naval Base. The SPA also announced in 2007 The SPA condemned property for a
state port in Jasper County on the Savannah River. There an agreement in process for a jointly
operated port between South Carolina and Georgia. These achievements were crucial in order
to continue to support the existence of over 15,000 direct and indirect jobs in the Charleston tri-
county area and 83,000 jobs statewide. The upcoming challenge for the Port will be permit
approval for the proposed Global Gateway terminal, which would be phased in over the next 15

10 20 years. The terminal is planned for the southernmost tip of The old Naval Base.

With the Port of Charleston's continued success, the forecast is for the South Carolina State

Ports Authority’s total tonnage {o increase.

Retail Trade - According to the South Carolina Tax Commission, retail sales have been as follows:

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carelina 20487



ACRE-C. ©. Nick Thompson, HI, MATL, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 16
Anmual Econotnic Indicators
Charleston Mefro Area
Gross Retail Sajes (3000
2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009
Berkeley 2,792,175 2,916,269 2,774,618 3,338,564 3,717,958 4,010,417 N/A
Charleston 10,042,059 10,681,929 12,050,201 13,084,036 13,084,036 13,408,466 "
Dorchester 1,207,613 1,404,172 1,571,065 1,789,947 1,783,622 1,853,076 !
MSA 114,041,847 15,002,370 16,395,884 18,134,093 18,685,616 19,271,958 “
Increase

Source: South Carolina Tax Commission Charleston Chamber of Commerce

Employment History

Employment History - Charleston MSA

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IfI, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc, 17

1996 244320 233,090 11,230 4.6%

1997 262,450 256,256 6,194 2.4%
1998 262,620 255,860 6,760 2.6%
1999 266,420 258,040 8,380 3.1%
2000 282,490 276,010 6,480 2.3%
2001 281,840 272,350 9,490 3.2%
2002 268,344 256,189 12,155 4.5%
2003 278,825 264,212 14,613 5.2%
2004 288,507 273,061 15,446 5.4%
2005 296,690 280,730 15,960 5.4%
20006 304,527 289,018 15,509 5.1%
2007 313,324 298,998 14,326 4.6%
2009 322,308 290,964 31,344 9.7%

Source: South Carolina Department of Labor/Charleston Chamber of Commerce

Income

4966 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, O. Nick Thompson, ITl, MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 18

Charleston County average household income grew from $18,305 in 1980 to $28,922 in 1990, an
increase of 58% for a ten year period or an average of 5.8% per year. This yearly increase is greater than
the rate of inflation. The average houschold income for Charleston County was $54,744 for 2003

according to sales and marketing management magazines survey of buying power.

According to the 2000 Survey of Buying Power, the Median Household income for the Charleston MSA
was $33,607 versus $32,285 in 1999 and the Average Household income was $40,600. Approximately
25.7% of the households have incomes between $20,000-$34,999; 19.3% are between $35,000 and
$49,999; and 26.3% of the households in Charleston have incomes of over $50,000.

According to Charleston Regional Development Alliance in 2008 there were 237,004 households with a

median household income of $52,302 and an average household income of $70,143

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Fstate, Inc.

Construction - The total construction industry in the Metro area is reflected in the chart below:

2000 200% 002 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007 008
PERMITS
Single Family 3,784 3,739 4,984 5,384 737,371 8,084 7,504 5,602 N/A
Multi Family 1,624 1,184 997 2,010 935 2,734 1,769 1,178 “
Total New 5,408 4,923 5,981 7,394 8,306 10,818 9,073 6,780 ¢
Residential
New Non 1,136 1,012 1,043 1,043 1,214 1,461 1,357 1,278 "
Residential
VALUE OF
CONSTRUCTI
ON ($000)
Single Farnily 574,323 572,793 766,780 797,463 1,136,440 | 1,470,009 1,429,059 1,150,064 “
Multi Family 135,835 77,853 71,244 102,891 80,740 289,891 163,952 117,648 '
Total New 715,739 | 692,208 838,024 903,563 1,217,180 | 1,759,990 1,593,011 1,267,712 “
Residential
New Non 275,196 | 399,634 245,424 240,900 300,265 455,683 492,736 447,121 .
Residential
Total § Value * 1,189,8 | 1,050,279 | 1,215,133 | 1,302,023 | 1,791,296 | 2,406,938 | 2,336,767 1,849,658 "

09

*Includes new penmits plus additions and alterations.

Source - Chanber of Commerce

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, III, MIAT, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 20

Housing

The increase from 1980 to 1990 was 31.6% and from 1990 to 2000 is 17.2%.

BERKELEY, DORCHESTER, CHARLESTON HOUSING UNITS

1960 1976 1980 1920 2000 2008
Berkeley 9,732 16,240 31,775 45,697 54,717 55,326
Dorchester 7,025 9,726 20,338 30,682 37,237 43,414
Charleston 61,951 77.067 99,764 123,550 141,031 138,264
Region 78,708 103,033 151,859 199,879 232,985 237,004

Source: 2000 Data based on information from the South Carolina Division of Research & Statistical Services, Statistical Abstract,
South Carolina Budget & Control Board

Higher Education
The MSA has varied educational facilities. The Medical University of South Carolina (MUSC)

located in Charleston was established in 1824 and was the first medical school in the south, with
approximately 2,400 students. Tt has six colleges and a 596-bed hospital. The Citadel (the Military
College of South Carolina with over 3,600 students), the College of Charleston/University of
Charleston (with over 11,500 students), and Charleston Southern University (formerly Baptist
College, with over 2,800 students) arc three liberal art schools in the area. Trident Technical College
(with over 11,000 students) is operated by the State Board for technical education and is the primary
facility to train workers for industry located in South Carolina. TTC has developed a culinary
school to replace the Johnson & Wales closed in 2006. Other facilities include The Lowcountry
Graduate Center (a cooperative effort of The Citadel, The College of Chatleston and MUSC),
Webster University, Miller-Motte Technical School, Limestone College (satellite facility), Embrey-
Riddle Aeronautical University, Charleston School of Law (established 2004) and Charleston
School of Law. There is also Southern Wesleyan University in North Charleston and American
College of Building Arts, Centura College, ECPI College of Technology, Southern Illinois
University, Strayer University, Troy University, Virginia College, and Voorhees College. The
enrollments total 34,879 undergraduate students and 7,027 graduate students.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI. MAL Appraisals. Counseling & Real Fstate, Inc, 21

General

As in most major seaport cities, the older industrial areas are found on the waterfront or major rivers,
with newer development in industrial parks near primary arterial highways and the International
Airport in North Charleston. The main business community is located in the downtown area. The
peninsula city is a dense urban area with mixed uses of the seaport and business community, the

historic residential area and the educational-hospital complexes working together.

The upper metropolitan region contains numerous bedroom communities for the Charleston area.
Small towns such as Summerville, Goose Creek, Moncks Corner, Ladson, Hanahan, and outlying
unincorporated subdivisions have numerous single family home areas. The residents of these areas
mostly use Interstate 26 to commute to the urban employment centers. Most manufacturing concerns
are located north of Charleston in lower Berkeley and Dorchester Counties and especially in the

Summerville and Moncks Comner areas.

The Charleston economy appears to be stable and is expected, after the current economic downturm,
to have continued growth in the foreseecable future. The four basic factors influencing real estate
values, identificd as social, economic, governmental and physical, all appear to be well balanced,

creating an overall stable real estate market in the Charleston area.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, 0. Nick Thompson, III, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

NEIGHBORHOOD MAP

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



e %
s IR
e b "A .\
24 Amberst st L
9 Subject Property : !
p L\

Of Cony s

rce.
-~

"

2

T X
DT, Ing), Rel. 04/2000

eLiorme. Street Atlas USAz©2000 G




ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, IT1, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Fstate, Inc. 23

NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS

The subject property is located in a neighborhood considered to be the area between Mary Sireet and
Huger Street, cast of Meeting Street in the Peninsula City of Charleston. This area is generally
known as the Eastside The primary development in the subject neighborhood is low to mid density
residential properties, with some apartment buildings and neighborhood commercial and office uses.

To the east is the Maritime center of the Port of Charleston. To the south is the Wraggborough
and a mix of upper level residential, office and commercial properties, to the west is the upper end of
the Ceniral Business District and the Westside, and to the north is newer mixed development of the

early to mid 20™ century.

The area originally was settled around 1800 and gradually expanded to cover the entire peninsula up
to Mt. Pleasant Street, by the 1920's. Harleston Village and Ansonborough were initially outlying
subdivisions of the City in about 1800. The area enjoys an average to slightly below average

reputation in comparison with the rest of the Charleston Metropolitan area.

The topography in the area is basically level with adequate drainage. The appraiser has not made any
study of the soil conditions in the arca, however, his general knowledge of the area dictates that low
rise buildings with spread footings can be supported in many areas, but, any high rise construction
will require pilings to the marl, which varies from 20 to 70 feet below the surface. The appraiser

recommends soil tests before any major construction.
Utilities are available in the area as follows:

Power is provided by South Carolina Electric & Gas Company.

Water is provided by Charleston Water System.

Sewer is provided by the Commissioners of Public Works, now called the Charleston Water
System.

Telephone service is provided by AT&T, formerly BellSouth.

eroETIY

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, IIL, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Kstate, Inc. 24

This area has enjoyed a relatively stable real estate growth over the past 50 years and this irend 1s

expected to continue for the foreseeable future.

4006 Maybank Highway, wadmalaw Isiand, South Caroling 29487



ACRE-C. O, Nick Thompson, ITI. MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 5

ZONING
The subject property is currently zoned DR2F - Diverse Residential by the City of Charleston

Planning and Zoning Board. This zoning designation is compatible with the current use of the

properties in the area.

CENSUS TRACT AND FLOOD DATA

The subject property is located in Census Tract 4. It shown on Flood Map Panel 45019C 0516 J,
dated November 17, 2004. The subject property is in Zone AE elevation 13 meaning that the first
floor finished surface must be above 13 feet MSL. The property is in a flood Plain and subject to
flood in a severe weather situation like very heavy rain, and Hurricanes when well over several

inches of rain overwhelm the city drainage system, or storm surge hits.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



o Prepared for:
ACRE-C O. Mick Thompson, [ll. MAI

InterFlood

S Byalgmede 24 Amharsi 5t
vopw.interflood.com « 1-800-252-6633 Charleston, 8C 284035817

JUNMG PRELEL

'1715L7{7)¢72§DSCAI="E Y

Flood Hazards Map

#lap Number
SE018C0S1E)

| Eifeclive Date
i th November 17, 2002

gl

2 13552010 BowrpsProse sndfor FioooSourea Corporstions. A6 rights res=rved. Fstents 8,837,325 =od 5,575,575, Dther peterts pending.  For infor maG 7o

GTlooc=ouac= com.

http:/floodmap.alamode.com:8080/F 100dScapeImag‘e?customerNum:1&caption=ACRE-C.O_. Nick Thom...



ACRE-C. O, Nick Thompsen, 11, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

ASSESSMENT AND TAXES

Under the current Constitution and Statutes of the State of South Carolina, the assessment function is
in the hands of the County Assessor, except for industrial and utilities, which are assessed by the
South Carolina State Tax Commission. Valuation is based on use and/or market value with different

ratios for different classes of property.

Agricultural property is assessed at use value, upon approved application, with a four percent ratio

for private ownership or six percent for corporate ownership.
The primary residence is assessed at four percent upon application.

Industrial and utility properties are assessed at ten and one-half percent of the Tax Commission

appraised value.
All other property is assessed at six percent of market value.

The subject property is currently exempt as a government owned property. If taxable, it would be
based on a 2011 reappraisal. The assessment is based on a 6% ratio. The 2011 millage for the
subject's tax district was .26583, less a credit from a sales tax rebate begun in 1991 based on 0.00141
x appraised value for the City and County Levy. This is the cost of governmental operations. This

millage includes all of the governmental entities.
Due to increased cost of government, 2012 taxes are expected to be slightly higher.
There was a complete revaluation of the county for 2011. Recent legislation now requires

revaluation every 5 years. The next anticipated revaluation is planned for 2016. Under current law,

owner occupied residential property is capped at a 15% increase in value for tax purposes.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C, 0. Nick Thompson, ITT, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Ine, 27

SITE DESCRIPTION

Location
The subject property is located at 24 Amherst Street, City of Charleston, Charleston County, South
Carolina. The property is 3 blocks northeast of the upper Charleston CBD.

Size, Shape and Access

The subject site is rectangle in flag shape and contains approximately 0.2094 acres, 9,122 square

feet. Its dimensions are 2017 x 66> x 127 x 56° x 75" x 10 front feet.

Topography
The subject site is level and at grade with Amherst Street sidewalk. Drainage appears to be

adequate.

Soils
Asreferenced previously, a report of subsurface soil conditions is not available. An inspection of the
property indicated that there were no apparent adverse soil conditions affecting the subject property.

The area is typically sandy loam soil, with a relatively high water table and basically scrub trees

Potential Environmental Hazards

A Phase I Environmental Assessment report was not furnished. In the absence of a Phase [ report,
this appraisal assumes there are no potential environmental hazards present on the site that would

adversely affect the value. Please note the Limiting Conditions regarding this matter.

4896 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thempson, ITT, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 28

Utilities
Utilities available to the site include electricity, telephone, and municipal water and sewer. Utilities

appear to be available in sufficient quantity to serve the existing school development, or virtually any

other use.

Summ
In conclusion, the subject site contains the necessary ufilities and is of an adequate size and condition
to support current and similar demand usage. The physical and functional characteristics meet the

standards of the typical purchasers of this type of property in this area.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, O, Nick Thompson, Il, MAIL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

IMPROVEMENTS

The site 1s presently unimproved.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITl, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 30

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

The Appraisal Institute defines highest and best use as follows:

"That reasonable and probable nse that supports the highest present value, as
defined, as of the effective date of the appraisal. Alternatively, that use, from
among reasonably probable and legal alternative uses, found to be physically
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and which results in
highest land value."

The definition above applies specifically to the highest and best use of the land. It is to be
recognized that in cases where a site has existing improvements on it, the highest and best use may
very well be determined to be different from the existing use. The existing use will continue,
however, unless and until land value in its highest and best use exceeds the total value of the

property in its existing use.

The four essential criteria for use under this concept were considered in the sequence shown below:

1. Physically possible uses were considered in terms of the size, shape, land area and
topography. Also considered was the availability of public ufilities.

2. .Legally permissible uses were considered. These result from such limitations as
those imposed by private deed restrictions, zoning, building codes and environmental
regulations.

3. Financially feasible uses are those uses that meet the conditions imposed by the two

previous criteria and which may be expected to produce a positive financial return.

4. Maximally Productive use is that which among the highest financially feasible uses
provides the highest rate of return, or value (given a constant rate of return).

Generally accepted professional appraisal practice dictates that in appraising improved property, the
highest and best use be estimated under two different premises. First, the highest and best use of the
site as if the site were vacant and available for development must be estimated. The second analysis
estimates the highest and best use of the property as presently improved, if improved, which is not

the case in this analysis.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C, O. Nick Thompsen, I1I, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. k)|

Highest and Best Use of the Site, Vacant

The highest and best use of the subject site will be discussed in terms of its physical, legal and

feasible uses. Then the maximum productive use of the site is analyzed.

Physical Use of the Site. As mentioned in the Description of the Site the subject property is 0.2094
acres, flag shaped lot. The sites are not limited in its development except by size. The soil
conditions appear acceptable, and most any type of development is possible. Therefore, the site is
not physically restricted except by size, and most any use is physically possible within size
constraints.  The site could be uses for a single or multiple residential sites, up to three in a
horizontal property regime with the single 10 foot access point. Additionally, it could be used as an

addition to the Fraser school property giving an additional entrance and recreational space.

Legal Use of the Site. The subject property is currently zoned as DR2F diverse residential, by the
City of Charleston. As mentioned in the Zoning section of this report this zoning allows single and
limited multiple family residential and supporting uses, including schools as a permitted use.

Therefore, these are the legally permissible uses of this property.

Financially Feasible Uses_of the Site. The feasible uses of a site are determined not only by 1ts

physical and legal constraints, but also by current market conditions. As previously noted, although
the site is not restricted physically, except by size, it is legally restricted to use as diverse or, single

family development, or school use.

Maximally Productive Use. The highest and best use of the land 1s that use from among the

financially feasible uses that provides the highest rate of return (or value}, usually over the long term.
Since the most financially feasible use of the site is service, or similar, this is the maximally

productive use as 1f vacant.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Islard, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAL Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 32

LAND SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

The most universally accepted method of valuing vacant land is by comparison with properties that
have recently sold in the competing marketplace, with adjustments for differences to estimate the

value that the subject property would have sold.

The appraiser has researched the sales that have occurred in the area and has selected the sales listed

on the following pages as the most comparable.

Discussion of Adiustment's:

Time - prior to 2007, value growth in the area was in the range of 10%- 20% per year. With the
economic downturn in late 2007 and 2008, magnified in later 2008 by the credit crunch, and possible

gains in early 2007 have been offset.

“Location - location is a subjective adjustment to reflect the market acceptance of the location of the

sale and the subject property appropriate adjustments are made, as necessary.

Size - there is little or no adjustment necessary for size of land unit value, as the sales are relatively

close and the unit values are typically consistent. Location is a more significant consideration.

Based on the following analysis of these sales, it is the opinion of the appraiser that the subject
property should sell for $19.00 per Square foot for a typical lot. The subject is a flag lot with a
ten foot access way to the bulk of the property. Any construction would require delivery of
trucks loaded with materials and concrete, which would be a challenge to the drivers and a
hardship to the construction crews involving extra time and casualty risk to the adj oining

properties, as well as aggravation to the owners of adjacent properties.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. 0. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAIT. Appraisals, Counseling & Real Istate, Inc, 33

It is estimated that the shape of the property would cause an adjustment in the unit price of about
20%., or a unit value of $15.00 per square foot rounded. 9,122 SF at $15.00/SF equals $136,830,

rounded to:

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
$137.000.

4996 Maybank Highway, wadmalaw Istand, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IIl, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

Land Comparables Table
T™MS # ADDRESS
4590101056 15 CEDAR
4590101058 11 CEDAR
4590504151 67 HANOVER
4590504010 101 AMERICA
4590504101 58 HANOVER
4500903020 33 REID
4500902131 69 AMERICA
4590903046 62 SOUTH
4590002142 74 AMERICA
4390903037 4 HANOVER
4590504041 46 AIKEN
4590504109 80 HANOVER
4590501054 14 DREWS CT

459-09-02-068

6 HAMDEN CT

DATE

09,2005

05,2007

06,2007

06,2009

04,2006

04,2009

12,2006

06,2005

06,23005

11,2007

03,2005

09,2005

05,2005

02,2007

a21742

SALEPR.
$22,000
$15,000
$65,000
$44,500
$80,000
$71,000
$70,000
$58,000
$50,000
$50,000
$40,000
$40,000
$33,000

$306,000

$40,000

3,149

AREA

3,600

3,000

2,080

2,600

3,300

3,300

4,114

4,400

2,976

2,838

2,838

2,014

2,240

2,520

§13.12

SP/SF

$6.11

$5.00

$31.25

$17.11

$24.24

§21.52

$17.01

$13.18

516.80

$17.62

$14.09

$15.30

$14.33

$11.90

LoC

COMPARISON

LOC, TIME +45%

LOC, CONDIT. +55%

LOC,

-10%

SHAPE, TIME +20%

TIME +20%

TIME ADIJ = 0.9%/MO

TIME +20

TIME +20%

LOC  +35%

+10 51443

ADJ SP/SF

$8.80

$7.75

$31.25

$17.19

$24.24

$19.36

$17.01

$15.81

$20.16

517.02

$17.62

$18.36

$17.68

$16.67

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 30487



ACRE-C. . Nick Thompson, ITT, MAT Appraisals, Counseline & Real Estate, Inc,

Cornelius Owen Thompson, ITE, MAIL, SRPA, SRA
4996 Maybank Highway Born: December 10, 1942

Wadmalaw Island, S.C. 29487 Phone: (843) 762-5722, Fax 843-762-5723

Email - Nick(@acrecot3.com
Certified General Appraiser: South Carolina #CG 85

Education
B.S. Degree - Economics
College of Charleston
Charleston, South Carolina

Professional Studies:
Building Cost Estimating - TEC
AIREA;
Course 1 - Appraising - University of Georgia
Course II - Income Problems - University of Georgia
Course IV - Condemnation - University of Chicago
Course VI - Advanced Capitalization - University
of Indiana 1973
Course IX - Appraisal Review - Tulane University 1974
Course VII - Industrial, Chicago, 1llinois
Course VI - Investment Analysis, Boca Raton
College Audit
Course X - Market Analysis, Univ. of GA Audit 1985
Standards of Professional Practice
Course 1Al - Instructor Audit

1964

1970
1968

1969
1971

1977
1980

1986,1991,1995,2001
1986

Demonsiration Appraisal Commercial Retail 1974

Demonstration Appraisal Residential 1975

Course IBA, Instructor Audit and Exam 1590

Course IBB, Instructor Audit 1990

Various Seminars 1970-2002
Appraisal Institute:

Course 520 - Admissions Audit and Exam 1993
TAAO:

Income Approach to Value 1969

Narrative Report Writing 1971
Society of Real Estate Appraisers:

Examination 101 1975

R-2 1975
201 1975

Licensed Real Estate Broker - State of S.C. 1973 - current

499¢ Viaybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, IlI, MATL, Appraisals, Connseling & Real Estate, Inc. 36

C.0. Thompson, II. MAT. SRPA, SRA Continued

Prior Experience:
Operations Director for R.E. Developer 1966-67
Commercial and Subdivision Properties:
Appraiser, Appraisal Supervision - Charleston 1967-75

County Assessor's Office - Appraised and Reviewed

all types of commercial, residential and Special

Purpose Properties using all approaches to value.

Manager, Property Taxes, Sears Roebuck & Company 1975-1978
Appraised for Ad Valorem Tax various types of
Commercial and Industrial Distribution Property,
Consultant for Real Estate Department

Appraisal, Real Estate Consultant 1976-
President, Attaway Leinbach Thompson & Assoc. 1978-1981
Partner, Attaway Thompson and Associates 1981-1987

Partner, Attaway Thompson Jeffers & Associates  1987-1989
President, Attaway Thompson Jeffers & Assoc.,Inc. 1990-1993

President, Attaway Thompson McCall & Assoc., Inc 1994-1995
President, Attaway Thompson & Associates, Inc.  1995-1997
President, Attaway Thompson McCall & Assoc., Inc. 1998-2002
President ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, III, MAL 2002-

Valuation of all Types of Income Producing
Properties, Land Market and Feasibility
Studies, and Real Estate Counseling on all

types of Real Estate
Professional Associations:
Member, Appraisal Institute, (MAI, SRA) 1991
Chairman, Body of Knowledge Committee 1994
“General Admissions Committee-Vice Chairman 1993
Member, Body of Knowledge Committee 1992,1995-1997
Liaison General Admissions Committee 1992
Liaison Admissions Co-Ordination Commuitee - 1992
Member, General Admissions Committee of the
General Appraisal Board 1991-1992
Approved Faculty, Principle and Procedures 1991
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser,
State of South Carolina, Certificate No. CG 85- 1991-Present
Approved Instructor Pre-Licensed 1, 2, and 3 1991-1993
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser,
State of North Carolina, Certificate No. A1793- 1991-Present
State of Georgia, Certificate No. 0602031 1991-1994
1997-2003 Dropped no use
State of Virginia, Certificate No. 4756 1998 -2003 Dropped no use

oo

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29437



ACRE-C. (. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc.

C.0O. Thompson, I, MAIL SRPA. SRA, Continued

American Instifute of Real Estate Appraisers - MAI

1977

Member, Industrial Examination Committee
Sub-Committee Chairman, Industrial Examination-
National Board of Examiners - Examinations,
Assistant Chief Examiner
Chief Examiner
Member, National Admissions Committee-
Body of Knowledge Committee
Member, National Admissions Appeal Board

Vice Chairman

Chairman

Member, 5 Point National Admissions Task Force-1988

Member, National Education Task Force
Instructor Panel National Education Committee
1A Course Series
Contingent Faculty SPP
Member of Governing Council
Society of Real Estate Appraisers - SRPA, SRA
Chapter 122, President
Member, Demonstration Grading Committee
South Carolina Association of Assessing Officials -
Past Secretary, Treasurer and Vice President
Greater Charleston Board of Realtors of National
Association of Realtors
Education Committee
Legislative Committee
Member of Board of Directors
South Carolina Association of Realtors -
Legislative Committee
Member State Board of Directors

Primarvy Work Focus

1978-1979
1980-1982

1983,1984
1985,1986

1983,1985,1986,1990

1986
1987-1990
1989
1990

1989

1987-1990
1987-1990
1988-1989

1979-1981
1976-1981

1981-1982
1984-1986
1982-1983

1982-1987
1982,1983,1985

General commercial, industrial and special purpose properties, with in-depth knowledge and
research in golf course, hotel and motel, hospital and contaminated property valuation.

QOver the years, I have spent significant time valuing properties for acquisition by
condemnation, both for the condemnor and condemnee, and valuation for tax appeals.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 20487



ACRE-C. O. Nick Thompson, ITI, MAI, Appraisals, Counseling & Real Estate, Inc. 38

C.0O. Thompson, IIT, MAT, SRPA, SRA, Continued

General Client List

Numerous local and regional banks, and other lending institutions, investment groups and
individuals. Local, state and national government agencies, including City and County of
Charleston and their Housing Authorities, Charleston County School Board, Mt. Pleasant
Water & Sewer Authority, James Island PSD, City of Hollywood, St. Stephens, SCDOT,
Right of Way acquisition resolution, College of Charleston, Trident Tech, US Government
Departments of: Navy, Interior, Justice, and Post Office, covering counseling and valuation
for general acquisition and disposal of properties in fee simple and easements for power,
water, sewer, drainage, and road right of ways.

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN THOUSAND DOLILARS
$137,000.

4996 Maybank Highway, Wadmalaw Island, South Carolina 29487



SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

CAPITAL PROGRAMS
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: New North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School -
Building & Finishes

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Approve the reallocation of project savings from
Wave 1 & 2 projects and 2) Authorize staff to enter into award and contract
with M.B. Kahn Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of
$19,649,000.00, for the New North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary
School - Building & Finishes (Solicitation No. 14-CMG-B-003).

The material is submitted for: X Action [ ] Information
Open [ Executive

Y SN

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Miéhael L. Bobby

SuperiW Schools Chief of Finance & Operations

William Lewis,’Chief Operating Officer

Respectfully submitted:

/LZ// ,R /LL,: E Item voted on and
Todd darrett, Chair recommended for Board L)’
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on __ 5 7 J’/"f f

|:| Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy & Personnel Committee Policy Committee on




CAPITAL PROGRAMS
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
New North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School
BACKGROUND:

On August 9, 2010, by Item 9.8, the Board of Trustees approved the
construction and budget for the New North Charleston Creative Arts
Elementary School. The design was completed and a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ), Solicitation No. 14-SMG-R-003, was advertised on
March 3, 2014 in South Carolina Business Opportunities (SCBO). The RFQ
was also advertised in the Post & Courier and local minority-owned
newspaper, The Charleston Chronicle. The Technical Evaluation Board
presented the results to the Selection Board on April 29, 2014. The
Selection Board is to make a recommendation to the Superintendent on April
30, 2014 as to the six (6) firms pre-qualified to for the Invitation for Bids
(IFB). An IFB for was issued on June 13, 2014. In order to stay on schedule
Staff requested Board of Trustee approval to enter into a contract with the
lowest responsible bidder Not to Exceed (NTE) $18,000,000.00. The Bid was
held on July 22, 2014. Five (5) bids were received. Base Bid results
indicated China Construction America of SC to be the apparent low bidder,
with a bid of $18,060,609.00 but they requested to withdrawal their bid due
to an arithmetic error. The 2" lowest bidder was M.B. Kahn Construction
Company, Inc. with a bid of $19,649,000.00.

Both bids exceeded the Board of Trustee approved NTE amount of
$18,000,000.00. The current available construction budget is
$18,500,000.00. The current SF/Budget was created based on the Ashley
River Creative Arts facility. Due to the incorporation of the 21st Century
Leaning Environment Educational Specifications which increases more
flexible classrooms and collaborative learning spaces, the square footage of
the facility increased approximately 8,000 SF. Funds also need to be
retained in the budget for the future abatement and demolition of the
existing facility once the new facility is completed. Funds are available from
project savings from Wave 1 & 2 projects that have completed or are
nearing completion. Therefore staff is recommending a reallocation of
savings from Wave 1 & 2 projects to fully fund this award as well as retain
funds to abate and demolish the existing facility once the new facility is
completed.

DISCUSSION:



Contract needs to be awarded for the New North Charleston Creative Arts
Elementary School - Building & Finishes Package so students can occupy the
building in January of 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:

Action 1: Approve the reallocation of project savings from Wave 1 & 2
projects per the attached resolution.

Action 2: Authorize staff to enter into award and contract with M.B. Kahn
Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $19,649,000.00, for the New

North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School - Building & Finishes
(Solicitation No. 14-CMG-B-003).

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:

This project is being funded by the one (1) cent sales tax revenues.
FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:

No additional funds required.

DATA SOURCES:

William H. Lewis, COO for Capital Programs

Rick W. Holt, Director, Cumming Construction Management, Inc.
Dale Collier, Brownstone Construction Management

PREPARED BY:

William H. Lewis, COO for Capital Programs

Rick W. Holt, Director, Cumming Construction Management, Inc.
Dale Collier, Brownstone Construction Management

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES

N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES

Lawrence Lutrario, Construction Procurement Officer

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution Requesting Reallocation of Funding
2. April 28, 2014 Board Report



RESOLUTION REQUESTING REALLOCATION OF FUNDING
2010-2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS BUILDING PROGRAM - SALES TAX

2010-2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS BUILDING PROGRAM - SALES TAX - TOTAL BUDGETS AND ADJUSTMENTS

PROJECT # PROJECT APPROVED BUDGET | PROPOSED BUDGET VARIANCE
5130 Buist Academy $32,650,000.00 $31,650,000.00 ($1,000,000.00)
5133 Memminger Elemsntary School $22,400,000.00 $21,900,000.00 {$500,000.00)
5150 Harbor View Elementary School $25,500,000.00 $24,800,000.00 {$700,000.00)
5152 North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School $27,100,000.00 $29,300,000.00 $2,200,000.00

TOTAL $107,650,000.00 $107,650,000.00 $0.00

Resolved this 11th day of August 2014.

By:
Nancy J. McGinley, Ed. D Date
Superintendent of Schools

By: /&% g’g Zg// ¥
Michael Bobby ’ / Date

Chief of Finance, Operations & Human Resources

W W pnre V).

William H. Lewis Date
Chief Operating Officer for Capital Programs




County SCHOOL DISTRIC

Charleston sexcetience is our standa VISION 2(251 6

A regular meeting of the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees was held on Monday, April 28, 2014, in
the Board Room at 75 Calhoun Street. The following members of the Board were present: Mrs. Cindy Bohn Coats,-
Chair, Mr. Tom Ducker — Vice Chair, Mr. Craig Ascue, Rev. Chris Collins, Mr. Todd Garrett, Mr. Michael Miller, Mrs.
Elizabeth Moffly, Mr. Emerson Tripp Wiles, and Dr. Nancy J. McGinley, Superintendent and Executive Secretary. Mr.
Chris Fraser was absent.

Staff members Mr. Michael Bobby, Mr. Bill Briggman, Dr. Charles D’Alfonso, Mr. John Emerson, Mrs. Michele English-
Watson, Dr. Lisa Herring, Mr. Louis Martin, Mr. John McCarron, Dr. Brenda Nelson, Mrs. Terri Nichols, Mr. Paul Padron,
Mrs. Erica Taylor, Mrs. Latisha Vaughan-Brandon, and Dr. James Winbush were also in attendance. Mrs. Audrey Lane
was absent.

The news media was duly notified of the meeting. Media representatives were present.

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to go into Executive Session at 4:30 p.m. to discuss the Executive Session
items listed below. The motion was approved unanimously.

V.

1.5: FY2015 Property and General Liability Insurance Package

1.1: Legal Matters — Mr. John Emerson, General Counsel
1.2: Student Expulsion Appeal Decision
1.3: Student Transfer Appeals Received March 5, 2014 — April 23, 2014
1.4: Appointment — Deputy — Capital Programs

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE, & PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

At 5:50pm Mrs. Coats called the meeting to order. Then she called for a Moment of Silence followed by the

Pledge of Allegiance.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

e Mrs. Coats said agenda item 10.3B was pulled because policy wasn't followed. Also, agenda item 1.4
was pulled earlier by staff.

e Mrs. Moffly suggested moving agenda item 11.4 — Durham Bus Services after Visitors’ Comments.

e Mr. Miller said 10.2G was pulled earlier by the Policy Committee; however, it was determined that the
item would remain on the agenda.

Mr. Ascue moved, seconded by Rev. Collins to approve the recommendation to adopt the agenda with the
revisions listed above. The vote was 8-0.

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS (15 minutes) — Mrs. Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Strategy &
Communications

A. Outstanding Risk Management Product Award — pulled

B. Palmetto Gold Award

Mrs. Melissa Pendergrass, the Director of Nursing Services recognized 4 CCSD registered nurses, Mary
Bebensee of Whitesides Elementary School, Cheryl Dunn of North Charleston Elementary School, Faith
Hostettler of Harbor View Elementary School, and Sharon Moser of West Ashley High School were the only
school nurses in the state to receive the award.

C. SC PTA Outstanding Principal Award — Dr. Clifford Fulmore, the SC PTA State President, recognized
Ms. Karen Felder from Jennie Moore Elementary School for being the SC PTA Outstanding Elementary School
Principal.

D. SCASL Administrator of the Year Award — Dr. Lisa Herring, Chief Academic Officer, recognized Ms.
Connie Doperiela, a recent retiree who served as CCSD’s Team Associate of Library and Media Services, for
receiving the 2014 SC Association of School Librarians Administrator of the Year award.
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT — Dr. Nancy J. McGinley, Superintendent of Schools

1



Dr. McGinley reported the following:

Today marks the beginning of her 8" year as Superintendent of Schools for Charleston County. Dr.
McGinley was appointed April 27, 2007. Members of the Board who worked with her to achieve
steady progress were thanked.

Dr. McGinley shared data from a chart prepared by the Communications Department to illustrate that

significant progress has been made and that schools are better for all children in Charleston County.

0 Back in 2007, there were 22 schools rated unsatisfactory or at risk by the state.

o Today, there are only four schools that are rated unsatisfactory or at-risk.

o Today only 5.4% of students attend a school that is at risk as opposed to nearly 26 percent who
attended in 2007.

o0 In 2007 43% of students attended good/excellent schools. Today that number is 60%.

0 Graduation rate has increased. The overall district rate is up from 61.3% in 2007 to 76.9% in
2013. Substantial improvements have been seen with both the Black and Hispanic students over
the past 7 years. The graduation rate for Black students has increased nearly 12 points while the
Hispanic rate has increased over 24 points.

o Steady progress and positive results have also been seen in the area of school climate. Over the
past 7 years, there have been decreases in both suspensions and expulsions. The District
suspension rate has dropped from 16.6% to 9.9% and the overall expulsion rate has reduced by
half. Consistent with district progress, there has been a 21% reduction in expulsion rates among
Black students

o Steady progress is evident, especially among the Hispanic and Black student populations and
more opportunities are opening up for all students. While there are still a great amount of
challenges to overcome, like the lingering achievement gap and a system that exacerbate the
historical inequities that exist for some students, the CCSD is moving forward and is focused on
ensuring that all students have access to a great education regardless of race or income.

CCSD is dedicated to providing an excellent teacher in every classroom. The five Teacher-of-the-
Year finalists were announced. They are, Ms. Emma Armstrong from St. James-Santee, Mr. Charles
Atkins from Sanders —Clyde, Ms. Kimberly Brown from Lincoln Middle/High, Ms. Jamie Cunningham
from Liberty Hill, and Ms. Misty LeClerc from Wando HS. The finalist will be announced on
Thursday, May 1% at the Charleston River Dogs game.
This past weekend, Ms. Melissa Yarbrough of St. Andrews School of Math and Science was named
the state Air Force Teacher of the Year. This is a great honor and testament to the quality of
teaching corps.
The new Memminger Elementary School held on Friday, April 25" when students, parents,
community partners and District 20 Constituent Board celebrated the new school.
On May 6", the Coastal Community Foundation will present a special day of giving for the District’s
special Children in Crisis Fund that was established to provide assistance to students and families
who need emergency assistance seven years ago. An anonymous donor will match the amount
raised. Therefore, additional funds to help students and families with that experience catastrophic
or unplanned incidents. In the past, the funds were used to buy clothes for students who lose their
possessions in house fires, purchase food, or school supplies.

V1. VISITORS, PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS

1.

Ms. Shante Ellis, MLES PTA president expressed concerns about her son being forced out of the
Montessori School. She inquired about the instability of principals at the school and said the fight
should be for education and not gentrification. She urged the Board to consider a dual track at
Murray LaSaine ES.

Ms. Yolanda Gibbs, a Murray LaSaine ES (MLES) parent, asked Board members about their
participation in the Montessori decision for MLES. She said the community was told they'd have a
dual option (Montessori and traditional programs). She asked about options for the students that do
not choose the Montessori program.

Ms. Juanita Ford inquired about the availability of textbooks at Garrett Academy and other Title |
schools for students.

Ms. Elizabeth Conant, the parent of a special needs student at Wando HS, addressed the Board
about Board Policy IKF and inquired about students with disabilities participation in high school
graduation ceremonies.

Pastor Thomas A. Dixon displayed a Durham booklet to illustrate issues with Durham buses. He
expressed concerns about Durham’s dismissal of Ms. Marquette and suggested she be restored to
her position and be paid for lost time. Pastor Dixon will provide copies booklet for Board members.
Mr. Jerome Smalls, an Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance supporter, urged the Board to
consider both the traditional and Montessori programs. Also, he thanked Rev. Collins for assisting an

2



~

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

African American child from being charged with sexually abusing a teacher.

Mr. Jason Slade expressed concerns about the CCSD school system. He also mentioned bus issues.
Ms. Sonja Campbell addressed the Board about bus safety, overcrowding, and other bus issues.
After stating that some buses were transporting 60-70 high school students, she recommended all
old buses be taken off the bus route. Ms. Campbell made an offer to serve on committee to address
bus issues.

Ms. Addlai Brown, a Murray LaSaine ES parent, urged the Board to reconsider the Montessori
decision for MLES and allow the involvement of all MLES parents since they were promised a dual
track at MLES.

Elder James Johnson, a representative of the National Action Network, expressed concerns about the
Board not paying attention to concerns from individuals in the Black community. He expressed
concerns about education of blacks and said the district is quickly becoming segregated again, since
Dr. McGinley's arrival. He suggested that a protest could be organized in the community if the
African Americans continue to be treated unfairly.

Mrs. Beverly Gadson Birch, an Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance representative, requested
fairness for all students to include traditional opportunities that would allow students to remain at
their neighborhood schools, a reduced number of minority students attending failing schools, an
increased number of African American teachers in all CCSD schools. She urged superintendent to
consider the bus concerns expressed earlier. Then she urged the urged everyone to stop “playing
politics”.

Rev. Dungee suggested a facility be located to address the needs of expelled students.

Ms. Kristina Withouk, a CCSD student, expressed concerns about Durham buses. She said the buses
are hot and a lot of profane words are written all over the buses.

Mr. Richmond Truesdale, a member of the National Action Network, expressed concerns about
inequities in the district citing the number of African American schools that have been closed over
the years. He suggested that Americans should spend more time addressing issues in their home
country and less time addressing issues abroad. He also urged the Board to consider vocational
courses for black schools.

Pastor J. Barbour addressed the Board about Murray LaSaine and James Island Charter HS. Pastor
Barbour who served on the JICHS for a number of years said currently there are no blacks on the
Board. He urged the Board to consider the election process for JICHS board members. Also, he said
three year old white students have already registered for the Montessori School at JICHS and
suggested that the district favored white students over black students.

Mr. Eddie Bello, a Waggner Terrace parent, addressed the Board about a rumor that suggests the
three-year old program will change at James Simons Montessori from full day to half day. He said
this would pose a hardship for parents and suggested the program change be delayed. Also, he
asked the Board to make the 3 year old program a permanent program instead of a temporary
program.

Pastor Gordon Cashwell addressed the Board in support of a middle school at the Burke HS campus.
He suggested the lottery money be used for curriculum purposes and asked the Board to support a
bill to put prayer back in school and take the federal government out of curriculum decisions. He
also invited everyone to the National Day of Prayer on the steps of the Customs House located at
200 East Bay Street on Thursday, May 1% at 6pm.

Mr. Peter Lawrence addressed the Board in support of the District 20 Task Force recommendation to
have a stand-alone middle school on the Rhett Campus, immediately. He spoke of the efforts of
certain individuals to block the stand-alone middle school in District 20 on the Rhett campus.

Mr. Loren Ziff, Co Chair of Push Up & Up, a group that raise money for nonprofit organizations
extended an invitation to an event will be held at Marion Square event May 17" from 9:00am —
12:00 pm. CCSD staff member Mr. David Spurlock is working closely with this group. He urged
participation of board members and others.

Ms. Jennifer Mosier addressed the Board in support of naming of the Stall HS softball field for Ms.
Terri Christensen, a former CCSD teacher and coach that dedicated herself to coaching girls in the
community. She urged the Board to support the recommendation.

Ms. Mandy Herring addressed the Board in support of the continuance of a full-day three-year old
program at James Simons Montessori.

Mr. Weston Fennell, a Waggoner Terrace resident, addressed in support of a full-day three-year old
program at James Simons Montessori.

Mr. Thomas Narselaris, a James Simons Montessori parent, addressed the Board in support of a full
day program for three-year olds and how its implemented suggesting that additional resources were
needed to fully implement the program.



VII.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Mr. Mohammed Idris expressed miscellaneous concerns about individuals on Calhoun Street taking
credit for God’s work.

Ms. Heather Reese, a Murray LaSaine parent, requested equality for all students. She urged the
Board to consider a dual track at MLES.

Ms. Leah Waters expressed concerns about Durham bus services and the dismissal of former
employee, Ms. Cooper. She said Ms. Cooper was unfairly terminated for calling a parent to inform
them that the bus would be late because of mechanical issues. After the dismissal of Ms. Cooper
parents are faced with lots of inconsistencies with student pick-up and drop-off.

Ms. Phylicia Anderson, a Durham bus driver, addressed the Board about the infestation of insects
(bees, roaches, etc) and rats on bus #39 and residue left on bus after the use of pesticides. She
shared pictures illustrating the infestation of roaches on buses with the Board.

Ms. Joan Hepburn, the parent of a Special Education student, addressed the Board in support of the
Durham bus driver that was wrongfully dismissed by Durham Bus Services. She said Ms. Cooper was
very conscientious and helpful with her son.

Mr. Ray Estelle, a Durham driver, expressed concerns about the infestation of pests (roaches, rats,
and bees) and unclean buses. He mentioned a recent news article about SC buses being the oldest
in the country.

Mr. Edward Jones, chair of the District 20 Constituent Board, addressed the Board in support of the
District 20 Task Force decision. He urged the Board to support the recommendation for all District
20 schools to have grades CD-8 with exception to James Simons ES and Buist Academy. He also
urged the Board to address issues related to safe transportation for students.

Ms. Shanequa Ellis suggested relocating Sanders Clyde students in grades 6-8 to the Burke facility
because of overcrowding. Also, she said it would allow students to get academic credits.

Mr. Kevin Frayer, a CCSD student, addressed the Board in support of moving grades 6-8 to the Burke
facility. He said this would allow the students the opportunity to receive high school academic
credits.

Ms. Beth Barrow addressed the Board in support of three-year old program at James Simons ES
program and the stand-alone middle school program. She encouraged the Board to consider the
program proposed by Dr. Lenhardt for middle school students.

Ms. Liisa Sewell addressed the Board about the half day program for three-year olds at James
Simons ES. She said it is disruptive to have three-year olds napping while older students are being
instructed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES/EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

7.1

7.2:

1.1:

1.2:

1.3:

1.4:

1.5:

Open Session Minutes of March 24, 2014

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Wiles to approve the open session minutes of March 24, 2014.
The vote was 8-0.

Executive Session Action Items of April 28, 2014

The Board acted on the following executive session action items of April 28, 2014.

Legal Matters — Mr. John Emerson, General Counsel

The Board discussed legal matters in Executive Session. However, no action was taken.

Student Expulsion Appeal Decision
Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue, to approve overturn the District 4 Constituent Board's
decision and re-admit the student to the Daniel Jenkins Creative Learning Center for the remainder of
the 2013-14 school year. The vote was 8-0.
Student Transfer Appeals Received March 5, 2014 — April 23, 2014
Mr. Miller moved, on behalf of the Strategic Education Committee, to take action on student transfer
appeals received March 5 — April 23.

e Full approval of student transfer appeals #4, 11, 49 & 50;

e Full approval of #20 to James Island Middle - secondary choice; and

e Respond to all other student transfer requests will continue the process in accordance to

policy JFABC.

e Deny all out-of-county transfer requests.
The vote was 7-1 (Collins opposed).
Appointment — Deputy — Capital Programs
This item was pulled.
FY2015 Property and General Liability Insurance Package
Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue, to approve the recommendation authorizing $5,977,000
to procure property and general liability insurance for FY2015. The funding source is FY 2014
General Operating Fund. The vote was 8-0.

4



VIII.

7.3: Financial Minutes of March 24, 2014
Mr. Ascue moved, seconded by Mr. Wiles, to approve the financial minutes of March 24, 2014. The
vote was 8-0.

CAE UPDATE

The Board did not receive a CAE Update.

MANAGEMENT REPORT(S)

There were no management reports to come before the board.
COMMITTEE REPORT(S)

10.1:

Audit & Finance Committee — Mr. Todd Garrett

A. Audit & Finance Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to the Board;
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

No information was provided.

The Board took a five minute break at 7:35pm.

B. Belle Hall Elementary School — Design Services for Phase 2 — Parking and Phase 3
Playground

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue to approve a recommendation authorizing staff to award
the design contract for Belle Hall Elementary parking and Phase 3 — playground to John Ciccarelli
Architect, in the amount of $176,181.00. The funding source is FY2014 Fixed Cost of Ownership.
The vote was 7-0. Note: Rev. Collins did not vote since he was out of the room.

C. New Chicora Elementary School — Building and Finishes

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue, to approve a recommendation authorizing staff and the
superintendent to enter a contract for the New Chicora Elementary School — Building & Finishes
Package at a Not to Exceed (NTE) amount of $20,700,000.00. The funding source is the one (1)
cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 8-0.

Mr. Bobby said the opening is August 2015.

Rev. Collins asked about where it was advertised. Mr. Lewis said due to the shortage of time, the
Audit and Finance was asked to invoke the summer schedule.

D. Surplus Asset Request for Establishing Protocol to Further Develop a Transaction
with Respect to 11 % St. Phillips Street

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mrs. Moffly, to approve a recommendation that the Charleston
County School District Board of Trustees under the Board approved protocol for handling surplus
property and assets approve the recommendation for staff to enter negotiations and bring a
recommendation with the American College of the Building Arts to bring back to the Board for their
final approval a proposed transaction to sell the 11 %2 St. Phillips Street property. The funding
source is Fixed Cost of Ownership funds to handle the preparation of due diligence, sales
documents and recording of all legal documents upon the completion of this transaction. The vote
was 8-0.

Mr. Ascue asked if property is traded, will there be a MOU to allow students participation. Dr.
McGinley said she would work with Mr. Martin to see if there are opportunities to recruit CCSD
students.

E. Burke High School — Career Technology Education (CTE)

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, on a recommendation authorizing staff to negotiate
and award a contract for Burke High School — Career Technology Education (CTE) with Gantt
Huberman Architects, at a cost Not to Exceed (NTE) $368,000.00. The funding source is the one
(1) cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 8-0.

Mrs. Moffly asked for clarification of the District 20 request for the Rhett Building. Mr. Garrett
responded and said there is enough space in the Rhett building.

Mr. Miller said they spoke with the District 20 Task Force and they said a portion of the Rhett
building would be demolished. BL said the intent is to rehabilitate the Burke campus. Upgrading
would be done to rehabilitate the facility to effectively utilize the space. He said the Culinary
program would not impact the middle school program. If there are two stand-alone schools there,

5



10.2:

the front entrance may be moved to Fishburne for Burke and the middle school entrance may be on
Sumter St. Also, the gap may be closed on Fishburne for better security. He said it ay be best to
come back to the board to address middle school issues and not have two architects working on
both projects at the same time.

F. Charleston County School District — Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve a recommendation to award the design
contract for CCSD EOC to Rosenblum Coe Architects, in the amount of $125, 535.00. The funding
source is the one (1) cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 8-0.

G. New James Island Charter High School — Additions and Renovations

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve a recommendation to enter into a contract
with the lowest responsive bidder for the James Island Charter High School — Additions and
Renovations at a Not to Exceed (NTE) amount of $20,200,000,00. The funding source is the one
(1) cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 8-0.

H. Purchase and Installation of Modular Office Space Inside the Distribution Center at
Bridge View

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve a recommendation to purchase and install
a modular office space to consolidate the seven Plant Operations manages into office space inside
the Distribution Center (warehouse) at Bridge View. The estimated cost is $72,869. The funding
source is savings in the solid waste fee from FY2013-2014. The vote was 8-0.

I. New North Charleston Creative Arts Elementary School — Building and Finishes

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve a recommendation to enter into a contract
with the lowest responsible responsive bidder for the New North Charleston Creative Arts
Elementary School — Building & Finishes Package at a Not to Exceed (NTE) amount of
$18,000,000.00. The funding source is the one (1) cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 8-0.

J. Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List of Projects for FY2015

Mr. Garrett moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve the Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List
of Projects for FY2015 without a millage increase. The total amount is $130,000.00. The vote was
8-0.

Mr. Garrett said the amendment included a millage increase. He did not support that.
Policy & Personnel Committee — Mr. Tripp Wiles

A. Policy Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to the Board;
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward, and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

B. Policy JFAB - Nonresident Students

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Garrett, to approve the second reading of the revisions of
policy JFAB. The vote was 6-2 (Collins and Miller opposed).

Mr. Ducker said staff suggested it be effective during the 2015 school year. Ownership of property
in a zone would not guarantee admission into a school. EM asked if this was in accordance to the
state law. Mr. Ducker said it was. Mrs. Coats said the highlighted section was added to the policy.
C. Policy JLCD - Assisting Students with Medications

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Garrett, to approve the second reading of the revisions of
policy JLCD. The vote was 8-0.

D. Policy JFABCA - Voluntary Transfers of Children of CCSD Employees

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Garrett, to approve the second reading of the revisions of
policy JFABCA. The vote was 8-0.

E. Naming of the Charleston Progressive Academy Media Center

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to approve the recommendation to name the media
center at Charleston Progressive Academy “Dr. Maria Goodloe-Johnson Media Center”.  The vote
was 8-0.

F. Naming of the New Meeting Street Education Group School at Brentwood

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to table the recommendation to name the naming until
a meeting is held to discuss the same. The recommendation will come before the board on May
27", (Ascue and Collins opposed).

Mr. Ducker explained that the Policy Committee suggested naming the school “Brentwood
Leadership Academy” instead of the “Leadership Academy of North Charleston” which was

6



10.3:

suggested by the Meeting Street Education Group. However, since the Policy Committee Meeting, a
new recommendation was made to name the school “Meeting Street Elementary at Brentwood”.

Mr. Miller expressed concerns that “Brentwood” was added without input from the community. Mr.
Allen, a representative with the Meeting Street Group, said a large meeting has not been held to
discuss the name. Rev. Collins suggested a meeting be held before the school is named. Mr. Allen
said the intent is to discuss the name with a small group of approximately 20 individuals. Also, he
said if a new name is being created, “Meeting Street” should be considered in addition to
“Brentwood” for branding purposes.

G. Naming of the Stall High School Softball Field

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue to approve the recommendation to name the Stall High
School Softball Field for Terry Christiansen Seal. The vote was 8-0.

H. Policy IKF — Graduation Requirements

Mrs. Coats led the discussion on Policy IKF sharing an option to address participation in
commencement exercises. She said the Board could waive the policy for this year and use policy
that was in place prior to revisions.

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Mr. Miller to waive the policy for this year and use policy that was
in place prior to revisions. The vote was 8-0.

Strategic Education Committee — Mr. Michael Miller

A. Strategic Education Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to the Board,;
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

No information was provided.

B. Acquisition of Naviance

Since the policy requires that four board members-one on the prevailing side-can bring an item
back to the board, the Acquisition of Naviance item was pulled from the agenda.

C. District 20 School/Community Task Force Recommendation

Mr. Ascue moved, seconded by Rev. Collins to table the District 20 Community Task Force
Recommendation to build a free-standing middle school in the downtown and send it to the SEC
and other necessary committees prior to bringing it back to the Board on May 12". The vote was 8-
0.

During discussion, Mr. Miller asked the Strategic Education Committee (SEC) members if a
recommendation is being made to have stand-alone campuses for all but Buist Academy and James
Simons Elementary. Mr. Ducker said that wasn’t the recommendation SEC voted on. However, he
could support it. Rev. Collins said it was his recommendation that the middle school would begin
with the sixth grade at the Rhett building. Dr. McGinley said there hasn't been any parent
engagement meeting for input. Also, she said Sanders Clyde was built for middle school. That
would require discussion with the faculty. She suggested the delaying until August 2015.

Mr. Garrett said while the Board is of being racists again, he supports integrated schools. He has
had conversations with Mr. Miller and Dr. Alfonso and in reviewing the integrated and segregated
data he is aware that the scores are much better at integrated schools. He said adding a middle
school at Burke would not improve integration because the middle program would not have its own
principal. Dr. McGinley said Dr. Lenhardt has presented the advanced program in District 20 around
the community presenting an advanced program in District 20. Her only reservation is that Sanders
Clyde parents haven't been engaged. Therefore, only Memminger and Mitchell students would be
sent to Burke.

Mr. Ducker asked the two District 20 Community leaders, Mr. Edward Jones and Arthur Lawrence to
provide input. Mr. Lawrence said he is the neighborhood association representative and Mr. Jones
is the Constituent Board representative on the District 20 Task Force.

Mr. Miller asked if a higher level product could be delivered to District 20 students. He said parents
want the same offerings as students at the merged schools in District 10. Mr. Lawrence said the
proposal is opportunity for the District to showcase what it has done thus far. He also said the

7



XI.

“elephant in the room” are individuals that don’'t want the middle school on the Burke campus for
selfish reasons.

Mr. Ducker asked the two representatives if they would support a free-standing middle school in the
upcoming building program. They confirmed. Mr. Ducker asked if the K-8 elementary schools
would remain the same as of February 2014. Mr. Lawrence responded that he supports S. Clyde,
Buist and J. Simons remaining K-8. Then, Mr. Lawrence urged the Board not allow Mr. Henry
Copeland, who had interrupted all of the Task Force meetings, to interfere with the process.

Mr. Ascue said he didn't want to disrupt Sanders Clyde since it is doing well. Then he suggested
Sanders Clyde be excluded from the District 20 middle school plan. Also, he requested the plan
address diversity issues. Dr. McGinley said Dr. Lenhardt has devised a plan to address diversity
and has vetted it in the community. Also additional details on projections and other details were
provided by Walt Pusey. A standalone school would allow offering of specialty programs. She
reiterated that her only concern is parental input. The program could startup this year with a small
group of students from Mitchell and Memminger.

Mrs. Coats said a lot is tied to this proposal and there is not a lot of money involved. However, a lot
of other things are wrapped into the District 20 recommendation.

Mrs. Moffly suggested the Board only vote on a standalone middle school for grades 6-8 in the
Rhett building this coming school year.

Rev. Collins asked Mr. Jones to share his request. Mr. Jones said wanted a K-8 program at Buist
Academy and James Simons. Also, he wanted 6-8 grade students in the Rhett building this
upcoming year. Mr. Garrett said this recommendation was not voted on by the District 20
Constituent Board. Mr. Jones said it was. Rev. Collins inquired about Task Force meetings. Mr.
Jones said the meetings were held at various schools in District 20. Mr. Jones suggested a Sunday
meeting for parents. Mr. Garrett said a new downtown middle school couldn’t be justified.

Mrs. Coats suggested pulling the recommendation and bringing it back at a future meeting with
three separate motions.

Rev. Collins suggested voting on the recommendation to have the middle school in the Rhett
building. Dr. McGinley agreed that the vote needs to be broken down to 3-4 motions. Also, she
spoke of the importance of Dr. Lenhardt sharing the program vision at the board meeting on May
12"

Mr. Miller requested Mr. Maurice Cannon accompany Dr. Lenhardt during the presentation. Mrs.
Coats asked Board members to email their specific requests to her.

Rev. Collins requested meetings be held for parent input.

D. Pilot Course Applications — Approval for 2014-2015

Mr. Ascue moved, seconded by Rev. Collins to approve the recommendation for Pilot Course
Applications which follows—Science — West Ashley HS — Investigative Research | & II; English —
West Ashley HS — Essentials of Writing; Fine Arts — Academic Magnet — Honors Guitar | & Honors
Guitar 11; Social Studies — Burke HS — Global Studies I; Social Studies — Military Magnet Academy —
Global Studies Il. The vote was 8-0.

POTENTIAL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

11.1:

11.2:

11.3:

Career and Technology Education Textbook Selection

Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Rev. Collins, approve the recommendation to approve instructional
materials for Career and Technology Education. The vote was 8-0.

June 6" Makeup Day

Rev. Collins moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to approve the recommendation to designate June 6™
as a make up day. The vote was 8-0.

HAC Advertisement

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Rev. Collins, to approve a recommendation to advertise for
volunteers to fill the following HAC seats (one clergy, one student, and one teacher). The vote was
8-0.



Mrs. Coats said the list of candidates has been exhausted. Therefore, an ad would be posted in
paper and on the website.

11.4: Durham Bus Services (Moffly, Miller, Garrett, Collins and Ascue)
Mrs. Moffly moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue, to approve a recommendation to form an Ad Hoc
Committee to with Rev. Collins, Mr. Miller, and Mr. Ascue to investigate the concerns listed and
brings a report to the board on May 2014. Also, Dr. McGinley was asked to identify two staff
members to serve on the committee. The vote was 8-0.

After Mr. Ducker said some of the buses are state owned buses, Mr. Miller suggested having a state
representative to serve on Ad Hoc the committee.
XI1. NEW BUSINESS
1. Mr. Miller requested clarification on the 3-year old Montessori Program at James Simons ES. Dr.
McGinley said she would bring information back to the Board. The issue is that they don’'t have what
is needed to accommodate 3-year old students who take naps.

2. Mr. Ascue requested information on Murray LaSaine Montessori be provided at the next Strategic
Education Committee and Board meetings. Mrs. Coats said she would pull the information.

3. Mr. Ducker suggested Board members take the time to read the visitors’ concerns and consider
discussing at upcoming committee meetings.

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, at 8:57pm Mrs. Coats moved, seconded by Mr. Ascue to
adjourn the meeting.



1 >ex | 2016
VSCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

RISK, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
BOARD AGENDA ITEM
TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: August 11, 2014
SUBJECT: Recommendation to Remove Honey Bee Observation Hives
RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Board endorse

the staff proposal to remove existing observation bee hives from all District
and District-sponsored schools.

The material is submitted for: X Action [_] Information
X Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

[

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D Michael L. Bobby
Superintendent of Schools Chief of Fihance & Operations
N/A

William Lewis, Chief Operating Officer

A / ——

//Z'r/f/, il Lf:—w( " m Item voted on and
Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board y’
Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on __ &~ ‘{--/_

|:| Item voted on and
Tripp Wiles, Chair recommended for Board
Policy & Personnel Committee Policy Committee on




Risk, Safety and Environmental Management
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT:
Recommendation to Remove Honey Bee Observation Hives

BACKGROUND:

In the summer of 2013, it came to the Risk, Safety and Environmental
Management Department’s attention that several district neighborhood and
charter schools had initiated partnerships with a local organization, The Bee
Cause. The mission of the Bee Cause is to “... (sic) Install bee hives in 1,000
schools.”

The District’s Risk Manager met with the Bee Cause’s Executive Director,
Tami Enright, in August 2013 to outline her concerns for the risk exposure to
the District. Chief among these was a lack of a formal MOU or contract with
the District, as well as the absence of a thorough review and endorsement of
the project via the Unsolicited Proposal Process.

Immediately, the Risk, Safety and Environmental Management Department
communicated to the Principals, via Associate Superintendents, a “cease and
desist” on the planned installation of additional bee hives. A risk assessment
was conducted and presented to Senior Leaders on November 14, 2013.

The Senior Leadership Team voted unanimously to “Terminate each school’s
informal partnership with The Bee Cause due to risks inherent in the
introduction of bees to our school environments, as well as the impact of
boring holes in our buildings.” This Team reinforced its position at a spring
2014 meeting, just prior to initiating a plan for hive removal.

DISCUSSION:

As the program had marketed itself heavily in our schools, sponsored charter
schools, and local media, District staff realized that communicating our
desire to terminate the relationship and remove the hives would be a
delicate matter. A plan was developed with General Counsel, Strategy and
Communications, Facility and Asset Management, and Risk, Safety and
Environmental Management. This plan would be executed in summer 2014
when there would be less risk of injury to children, due to errant bees
remaining after hive removal. In the interim, any hives that perished during
the course of the school year would not be re-stocked.

In May 2014, all principals of schools with hives received a letter from
General Counsel, informing them of the District’s intent to formally request
The Bee Cause to remove the hives. The District has paused the execution
plan due to The Bee Cause’s immediate resistance to this information.



RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Board endorse the staff proposal to
remove existing observation bee hives from all District and District-
sponsored schools.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
Cost avoidance of the high likelihood of future claims

DATA SOURCES:
N/A

PREPARED BY:
Dana Enck, Director, Risk, Safety and Environmental Management

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A



% : p dars
’'SCHOOL DISTRICT
75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: John F. Emerson, General Counsel
DATE: August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: Revision to policy BD

RECOMMENDATION:

The material is submitted for: X] Action [ ] Information
Xl open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D
Superintendent of Schools

N/A
William Lewis, Chief Operating Officer

NA

John Barter, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee

E. Tripp Wiles, Esq., Chair
Policy Committee

NA
Michael L. Bobby
Chief of Finance & Operations

John F. Emerson, General Counsel

|:| Item voted on and
recommended for Board
A&F Committee on

|E Item voted on and
recommended for Board
Policy Committee on




OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
August 11, 2014

SUBJECT: Revision of policy BD (Organization of the School Board) to
make a provision for electing officers by secret ballot, to task the
superintendent with presiding over the election of the chairperson, and to
make available to the public the tally sheets showing the roll of board
members and how they voted.

BACKGROUND: The Policy and Personnel Committee has determined that
the election of officers would be more effective if done by secret ballot.
Staff has determined that such a process would be legal and consistent with
the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act if the tally sheet showing the
votes is made available to the public.

DISCUSSION: Members of the Policy and Personnel Committee have
approved the attached revision to Policy BD (Organization of the School
Board) to provide for the election of board officers by secret ballot.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff takes no position on the proposed revision.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST: N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

DATA SOURCES:
Office of General Counsel

PREPARED BY:
John F. Emerson on behalf of Policy and Personnel Committee

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
Yes

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES N/A




Policy wBD# Organization of the School Board
Issued 7/04

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for board organization.

The officers of the board of trustees are chairman and vice-chairman. The secretary shall be the
superintendent. The term of office for the chairman shall be one year with elections scheduled
for the first meeting in November in each calendar year.

The board shall also be reorganized after administering the Oath of Office to any new trustee and
shall have an election of officers as required by law.

ficors shall be-clected by the raiorl he board.

During the election, as the board secretary, the superintendent will preside, acting as temporary
chairman at the meeting until the board elects a new chairperson.

The superintendent will solicit nominations from among the board members for the position of
chairperson and will prepare the ballot.

Officers will be elected by a majority vote of the board. The board will use secret ballots to elect
officers.

The superintendent will collect and count the ballots in the presence of the board. The board’s
general counsel will supervise and verify the vote count and announce the results including a
tally of the votes for each candidate.

The process will be repeated for the office of vice chairperson with the new chairperson
presiding.

The ballots and tally sheet will be retained for the record and will be subject to inspection by
board members. The public may obtain copies of the tally sheet upon request..

Vacancies in the above-mentioned offices shall be filled by the board at its discretion.
Adopted 12/8/75; Revised 10/24/77, 7/26/82, 12/8/86, 11/11/91, 10/12/98, 3/10/03, 7/26/04

Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 59-19-70 - Election of officers.
S.C. Acts and Joint Resolutions:

1967 Act 340 - Creates the School District of Charleston County and abolishes the county
board of education; sets forth the powers of the constituent district boards; Section 3 - Date
trustees to take office -- meetings -- compensation.



2013-2014 Board Expenditures

Below is a summary of Board Expenditures for the 2013-14 school year in
accordance to board policy BID — Board Member Compensation (attached).

Mr. John Barter resigned in Nov. 2013. Mr. Wiles began his service January 2014.

2014 Expenditures

Ascue Craig $ 1,722.25
Coats Cindy $ 1,944.25
Collins Chris $ 1,574.69
Ducker Tom $ 1,728.99
Fraser Chris $0.00
Garrett Todd $ 1,161.18
Miller Michael $ 1,555.52
Moffly Elizabeth $ 1,983.29
Wiles Tripp $ 519.88
Barter John $0.00

Total $ 12,190.05

*Please note the following:




Policy wBID# Board Member Compensation and Expenses
Issued 5/11

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for payment of board expenses.

Under state law, board members receive no compensation for their services, but may be paid a
per diem and mileage for attendance at board meetings. No payment shall be made for any
meeting the board member has not "substantially attended,” meaning the member shall have
considered, and voted upon, more than 50 percent of the issues presented at that meeting.

Board members may attend any in-state meeting or conference at their discretion within the
limits of the budget. Each board member may utilize up to one-ninth of the board's travel budget
allocation for the board. Out-of-state meetings, and expenditures by one member of more than
one-ninth of the budget travel allocation for the board, require board approval. After any out-of-
state meeting, the member shall report to the board about the meeting. Each board member may
also choose to reallocate unused funds in the regular travel account by mutual consent of
affected board members, i.e., those who have not expended their allocated amount; however, the
total line item for this purpose must not be exceeded.

The district shall reimburse board members for all reasonable and necessary expenses incurred
in attending any meeting or conference when on official business of the board or the Charleston
County School District. No payment shall be made without a receipt for the expenditure claimed
and policy DKC applies. No board member may have a district credit card.

Such expenditures for each board member shall be published annually in August.
(Cf. DKC)
Adopted 10/25/82; Revised 7/26/04, 3/13/06, 2/11/08, 8/25/08, 5/9/11
Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 8-15-10 - Compensation of public officials.
Section 59-1-350 - Compensation of board members.
Acts and joint Resolutions:

1967 Act 340 - Creates the School District of Charleston County and abolishes the county
board of education; sets forth the powers of the constituent district boards.

1975 Act 142, Section 3 - Amends 1967 Act 340 to increase per diem for boards.
1983 Act 230, Section 3 - Amends 1967 Act 340 to increase the number of meetings which
the trustees may be paid for attending.

CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT



	8-11-14 Board Agenda
	10.1B Head Start Financials
	10.1C Request to Exempt School Choice Survey
	10.1D SRO MOA's
	10.1E Archer Campus REVISED
	10.1F Seek Approval Amherst-Fraser ES REVISED
	10.1F Seek Approval Amherst-Fraser ES REVISED
	10.1F Seek Approval Amherst-Fraser ES REVISED
	3.5(2) Seek Approval...Church Plat

	3.5(3) Appraisal - Amherst

	10.1G NCCAES-
	10.1H Remove Honey Bee Observation Hives
	10.2B 1st Reading Policy BD Organization of the School Baord
	11.1 Board 2013-2014 Expenditure Report



